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Beaufort Cou nty provides ideal habitat for the White Ibis and other wading bird species. l lere

there: are plenti ful waterways full of small amphibians. reptiles and crustaceans for food . The

White Ibis is monogamous and lives in colonies. It builds nests of sticks in trees or bushes thai

often hang over water.
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Wide steps at Fort Fremont lead to one of two batteries where canons once stood watc h ove r

local waterways during the Spanish Amer ican War and an open door appea rs to be an invitation

to take a step inside o f history. The l-l-acrc site is listed on the National Register of Historic

Places. It was acquired by Beaufort County in 2004 for preservation as a public park.
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October 29,2010

County Council of Beaufort County
Multi-Government Center. 100 Ribaut Road

Post Office Drawer 1228
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228

Telephone (843) 255-1000 FAX (843) 255-9422

To the Chairman, Members of Beaufort County Council,
And Citizens of Beaufort County

Beaufort, South Carolina

Presented herein is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Beaufort County, South

Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This report has been prepared by the County's Finance

Department. and the responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and

fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the County. We believe the data, as

presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth

the financial position and results of operations of the County as measured by the financial activity of its

various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum

understandingof the County's financial affairs are included.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained

in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this

purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to

provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material

misstatements.

Elliott Davis, LLC, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unqualified ("clean") opinion on the

County's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010. The independent auditor's report is

located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and

provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A

complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.
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PROFILE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Beaufort County, which was formed in 1785, operates under the Council/Administrator form of

government with Council members elected for four-year terms from each of the eleven single-member

districts. This report includes all funds of Beaufort County that are controlled by this governing body, and

are considered to be the "reporting entity" known as Beaufort County. The services provided by this

reporting entity, and therefore reflected in this financial report, include, but are not limited to: General

Government (general administrative services, tax assessment and collection, courts and criminal justice

administration, economic development); Public Safety (law enforcement, detention center, emergency

medical services, emergency management, building codes enforcement); Public Works (roads and

drainage, engineering, solid waste); Public Health (animal control, mosquito control, alcohol and drug

programs, disabilities and special needs programs, various subsidies); Public Welfare (veterans services,

social services, various subsidies); and Cultural and Recreation (library, parks and leisure services).

/n light of GASB Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, the County has excluded the school

district, the various public service districts, the fire districts, and the municipalities located within its

boundaries as County Council does not exercise oversight responsibility, and accordingly each entity has

sufficient discretion in the management of its own affairs. The County Treasurer does collect property

taxes and other forms of revenue on behalf of these other political entities. The results of the fiduciary

responsibility are reported on the combined financial statements as Agency Funds.

LOCAL ECONOMY

Beaufort County is located in the southeastern corner of the State of South Carolina, known as the

"Lowcountry.II With a land area of approximately 637 square miles, it is bordered to the south and east by

the Atlantic Ocean, to the west by Jasper County, and to the north by Hampton and Colleton Counties.

Beaufort County stretches nearly 30 miles along the Atlantic Ocean and includes 64 major islands and

hundreds of small islands.

The County is one of the fastest growing areas in South Carolina, with a population of 155,215 in 2010,

up from 86,425 in 1990. The County is a center for tourism, retirement and the associated services, and

the military in South Carolina. The County has a balanced and very stable economy, created by a

diversity of public and private employers, with the unemployment rate well below the national average,

the statewide average, and that of the neighboring counties. The local tax base has grown an average of

approximately4% per year over the last five years (discounting the reassessment year).
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In addition to the established resort community of Hilton Head Island, there are several major

developments underway in southern Beaufort County. These developments include Sun City Hilton

Head, with more than 15,000 residents expected at build-out; Spring Island, Callawassie Island, Colleton

River Plantation, Belfair, and Westbury park. As expected, these developments have sparked an

increase in commercial construction along the Highway 278 corridor, including a Home Depot, a Lowe's,

a Wal-Mart Superstore, an expanded Factory Outlet Mall, a Target department store, and several major

supermarkets.

Likewise, in northern Beaufort County, communities continue to develop at Dataw Island, Lady's Island,

Cat Island, Bray's Island, and Habersham and throughout the City of Beaufort, as well as the Town of

Port Royal.

Beaufort County is also the location for three major military installations, the U.S. Marine Corps Recruit

Depot located at Parris Island, the Marine Corps Air Station-Beaufort, and the Beaufort Naval Hospital.

These locations have benefited by the Department of Defense closing certain other military bases in the

nation.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Our number one goal is to make sure that Beaufort County remains financially sound and that we

maintain a respectable contingency account to take care of the true emergencies that do arise from time

to time; and to provide for a sufficient fund balance to enable our cash flow to carry us through those

months prior to the billing and collection of property tax revenues. We have taken a systematic,

businesslike approach to the running of Beaufort County. Additionally, we want to preserve our current

"AA+" bond rating.

In December 1997, the County adopted a Comprehensive Plan for Beaufort County. A portion of this

plan is a comprehensive land use study which proposes various "preservation areas and greenways". As

a result, the County taxpayers approved two bond referendums totaling $90,000,000 for the purchase of

rural and critical lands. The County has issued $80,000,000 of the $90,000,000 approved by the

referendums with the last issuance related to rural and critical lands occurring in March 2009 for

$20,000,000.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

In December 1999, the County established a tax increment financing district (TIF) to fund construction of

various projects within the Town of Bluffton and surrounding unincorporated areas of Bluffton, which

included the Beaufort County Library System's Bluffton branch. The County borrowed $23,680,000 in tax

increment revenue bonds during November 2003 to fund these projects.

-3-



In December 2001, the County established a TIF to fund construction for the University of South Carolina

Beaufort four-year campus in the New River area of Beaufort County. The New River TIF also funded the

construction of the New River campus of the Technical College of the lowcountry. The County borrowed

$40,000,000 in tax increment revenue bonds during December 2002 to fund these projects.

In December 2006, the County issued bonds for $30,000,000 to "payoff' the County's Bond Anticipation

Notes of $25,000,000 and provide additional funds for the construction of the Bluffton Parkway Project.

This parkway is an alternative route of US Highway 278 and is expected to significantly improve the traffic

flow in Southern Beaufort County. The County had expenditures of $584,549 for this project during fiscal

year 2010.

Additionally, in September 2007, the County issued $25,500,000 in general obligation bonds to further the

County's rural and critical lands program and to provide an extension to the Buckwalter Parkway. Also, in

October 2007, the County issued $17,530,000 in general obligation bonds, to partially "payoff' the

County's 2001 general obligation bonds.

In March 2009, the County issued $5,000,000 of general obligation bonds, to fund various County

projects. Also, in March 2009, the County issued $48,755,000 in bond anticipation notes for its rural and

critical lands program and various County projects, in which the County refinanced these into general

obligation bonds and Build America Bonds in March 2010.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The management of Beaufort County is responsible for developing and maintaining an internal control

structure designed to ensure that the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to

ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The County's accounting system has given

consideration to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed

to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss

from unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial

statements and maintaining accountability for assets. This concept of reasonable assurance recognizes

that the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the evaluation of costs

and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. Accordingly, management believes that

the County's internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance

of proper recording of financial transactions.
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Rural pathways lined with moss-laden Angel Oaks arc cherished in Beaufort County where

remnants o f the Old South meet the new. These avenues 10 grand plantation houses continue to

enchant visitors and residents today.
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Ca st netting tor shrimp is a fun way to liII your dinner plate in Beaufort County where

recreational fishing is pan of the culture. The co mpanionship ora good dog seems to enh anc e: the:

experience. A woode n. flat- bcnomcd bateau allows passage in the shallow waters oflocal creeks

and inle ts.
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This Bald Eaule was found injured on an island in Beaufort Countv bv wildlife officers. It was_ . . .

treated and later released. The Bald Eagle was nearly eliminated in the United States because of

pesticide poisoning but is making a strong comeback. Beaufort County o ilers excellent habitat

for the Bald Eagle because of the County's large bodies of water for hunt ing and its many tall

trees for nesting.
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Sand Fiddler Crabs love the salt marsh and nutrient-rich pluff mud of Beaufort Co unty. They '1rI:

so named because the movement of their smaller claw as they Iced resembles that of a violinist.

The ove rsized claw o f the male is used 10 battle other suitors I{H the same female.
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The While Tailed Deer is the officia l slate animal of Sou th Carolina and they are plen tifu l in

Beaufort Cou nty. This beautiful animal C3 11 run up to 40 mile s an hour. jump 9 1'001 fences and

swim 13 miles per hour . They flash the white underside of their ta il to signal danger.
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REPORT OF INOEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Beaufort County Council
Beaufo rt County
Beaufor t. South Caro lina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental act ivities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Beaufort
County. South Carolina (the County) as of and for the year ended June 30. 2010 which collectively
com prise the County's basic financial statements as liste d in the table of contents. These financia l
sta tements are the respo nsibility of County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial stat ement s based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wi th audi t ing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Stondards, i ssued by the Comptroller General of the Unit ed States. Those standards require th at we
plan and perfo rm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stateme nts are
free of material misstatemen t . An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements. An audit also includes asse ssing the account ing
principles used and signif icant estimates made by management, as well as evaluati ng the overall
financial statement presentat ion. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinio ns.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all mater ial respects,
the respective financial posit ion of the governmental activit ies, the business-t ype activities. each major
fund, and the aggregate remain ing fund information of Beaufo rt County as of June 3D, 2010 and the
respecti ve changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable. thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended, in conformity wi th accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October
29, 2010 on our consideration of Beaufort County's int ernal control over financial reporting and our
tests of it s compliance with cert ain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts. and grant agreemen ts and
other matters. The purpose of t hat report is to describe the scope of our test ing of internal cont ro l over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal cont rol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with governm ent audit ing standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis, and Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health
Plan as listed in the Table of Contents, is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and expressno opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, general, debt service, and capital project fund budgetary
comparison schedules, Clerk of Court and Magistrates fees and fines schedule, and statistical tables as
listed in the Table of Contents are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also
not a required part of the basic financial statements of Beaufort County, South Carolina. The combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, general fund, debt service, and capital project fund
budgetary comparison schedules, Clerk of Court and Magistrate fees and fines schedule, and
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards have been SUbjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basicfinancial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Columbia, South Carolina
October 29, 2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS

FORTHE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE30,2010

As management of Beaufort County, South Carolina (the County), we offer the readers of the County's financial statements this narrative

overview andanalysis of the financial activities of Beaufort County, SouthCarolina for the fiscal yearendedJune 30, 2010. We encourage the

readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we havefurnished in our letter of transmittal,

whichcan be found on pages1 through 5 of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

• The assets of Beaufort County exceeded its liabilities at June30, 2010 by $252,339,506 (net assets). Of this amount$25,371,226

(unrestricted net assets) maybe usedto meetthe government's ongoing obligations to citizensandcreditors.

• The government's total net assets increased by $30,373,813 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 with a $29,339,457

increase resulting from governmental activities anda $1,034,356 increase resulting from business typeactivities.

• At thecloseof the currentfiscalyear, the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fundbalances of $158,601,105, a

decrease of $34,819,231 in comparison with the prioryear. Approximately 10 percent, $16,217,306 is available for spending at the

government's discretion (unreserved, undesignated fundbalance).

• At theend of the current fiscal year, the County's unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $16,217,306, or approximately

16percent ofthe general fundexpenditures andtransfers.

• Beaufort County's net capital assets increased by $60,458,674 during the current fiscal year. The increase in governmental

activities net capital assets of $59,727,512 was mostly the result of sales tax road project additions to construction in progress,

purchases of property through the Real Property Purchase Program, purchases relating to emergency management

communications enhancements and radios, several other roadproject additions throughout the County, and the construction of the

Buckwalter ParkRecreation Center.

OVERVIEW OFTHEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financial statements. The County's basic

financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to

the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements

themselves.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad

overview of the County's finances. in a mannersimilarto a private-sector business. In particular, these statements includeall assets and

liabilities usingthe accrual basisof accounting usedby mostprivate sectorcompanies.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the County's assets less its liabilities, with the difference between the two

reported as net assets. Overtime. increases or decreases in nel assetsmay serveas a useful indicator of whetherthe financial position

of theCounty is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the most recentfiscal year.

All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of

related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for someitemsthat will only resultin cash flows in future

fiscalperiods (e.g., uncollected taxesandearnedbut unused vacation leave).

Both the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by taxes and

intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their

costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government,

publicsafety, publicworks,publichealth, publicwelfare, andcultural andrecreation. The business-type activities include the garage,
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010

stormwater utility, the lady's Island Airport, and the Hilton Head Island Airport. The business-type activities function for all practical

purposes as departments of the County, and therefore have been included as integral parts of the primary government.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 29 through 31 of this report.

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and

demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Beaufort County can be divided into three

categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as governmental activities of the

government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial

statements focus on near-term inflowsand outflowsof spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at

the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the County's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the

information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide

financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing

decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in

fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the County wide general obligation bonds fund, the New River TIF

bonds fund, the sales tax projects fund, the real property program fund. and the 2006 bond projects fund. all of which are considered to

be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for

each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the

general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic fund financial statements can be found on pages 32 through 38 of this report.

Proprietary funds - The County maintains four different types of proprietary funds, three of which are enterprise funds. Enterprise funds

are used to report the same functions as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses

enterprise funds to account for its stormwater utility, Lady's Island Airport, and Hilton Head Island Airport operations. These funds report

the services provided by the County for which the County charges a user fee or charge intended to recover all or a significant portion of

their costs.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary

fund financial statements provide separate information for stormwater utility, Lady's Island Airport, and the Hilton Head Island Airport, all

of which are considered to be major funds of the County.

Internal service funds are an accounting mechanism to accumulate and allocate costs internally for the County. The County uses internal

service funds to account for its garage.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 39 through 42 of this report.
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Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary

funds arenot reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those fundsare not available to support the

County's ownprograms. The accounting used for the fiduciary funds is much like that usedfor proprietary funds.

The statement of fiduciary netassetscan be foundon page43 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in boththe government-wide and the fundfinancial statements. The notesare presented on pages 44 through 68 of the report.

Other supplemental information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents

certain supplemental information that furthersupports the financial statements.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented within this section of this

report andcanbe found on pages 81 through211.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of Beaufort

County, assets exceeded liabilities by $252,339,506 as of June30,2010.

Of this amount, $150,564,474 (approximately 60 percent) reflects the County's investment in capital assets (land, buildings and

equipment); lessany related debtused to acquirethose assets that is still outstanding. The Countyuses these capitalassets to provide

services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County's investment in its capital

assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other

sources. sincethe capital assetsthemselvescannot be used to repaythe debt. Additionally, S32,499,155 (approximately 13 percent).

represents resources that are restricted for capitalprojects. An additional portion of the County'snet assets, $43,904,651 (approximately

17 percent). represents resources that are restricted to the repayment of the County'sbonded indebtedness. The remaining balance of

unrestricted net assets, $25,371,226 (approximately 10 percent), may be usedto meet the govemment's ongoing obligations to citizens

andcreditors.

At the end of the current fiscalyear, BeaufortCounty is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, bothfor the

government as a Whole, aswell as for its separate governmental andbusiness-type activities.
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BeaufortCounty's Net Assets

June 30, 2010 and 2009

GovernmentalActivities Business-type Activities Total

Percent

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 Change

CurrentandOtherAssets s 176,202,333 S 212,379,713 S (319,140) S (1,202,117) S 175,883,193 S 211,177,596 (16.7%)

CapitalAssets 347,251,665 287.524,153 23,805,330 23,074168 371,056,995 310,598,321 19,5%

TotalAssets s 523453,998 s 499903866 S----23.AA6.19!I $ 21 872 051 S 546 940,18~ S 521775917 _ 48%

Long-Term Liabilities S 263,394,416 S 221,352,900 $ 542,007 s 374,809 s 263,936,423 $ 221,727,709 19,0%

OtherLiabilities 29,761,096 77.591,937 903.163 490.578 30.664,259 78,082.515 ~

TotalLiabilities $293.15~ $ fi98,M4 837 $~~ $ 865387 $ 294600,682 s 299810224 ~

NetAssets:

Invested in CapitalAssets

Net of Related Debt s 126,759,144 s 82,426,443 s 23,805,330 s 23,074,168 $ 150,564,474 s 105,500,611 42,7%.
Restricted for CapitalProjects 32,499,155 74,845,975 32,499,155 74,845,975 (56,6%)

Restricted for DebtService 43,904,651 34,763,370 43,904,651 34,763,370 26,3%

Unrestricted (Deficit) 27135.536 8,923,241 (1,764.310) (2,067,504) 25,371,226 6,855,737 ~

s 230298486 s 200959029 s 22041020 $,21006664 $ 252339506 $ 221965693 137%

The County's totalnet assets increasedby $30,373,813 during the 2010 fiscal year. Key elementsof this increase are as follows:

• TheCounty's netcapital assets increasedby $60,5 million, This increaseoccurredmostly from the County's$43.7 million

investment in infrastructure related to the 1% sales tax referendum road project, $8.5 million in purchases of land, $7,4 million in

upgraded radios and related infrastructurefor improved communications abilities in the event of emergencies, 52.2 million for the

Buckwalter ParK Recreation Center, and $2,0 million in otherroadprojects. See the capital assetsanddebt administration section

belowfor moredetail.

• The $42.0 million increasewithin the County's govemmentallong-term liabilitiesand corresponding $47,8 million decreasein other

govemmentalliabilities was mainly caused by the County'srefinancing of its $48,8 million bond anticipation note into 548.8 million in

general obligation bondswithin the 2010 fiscal year. See the capitalassets and debt administration sectionfor more detail.

• Theseincreases were also offset by a $36.2 milliondecreasein the County's governmental currentand other assets, The 536.2

milliondecrease was mostly the result of the Countyspending approximately $12 million of its 2010 bond projectsfund balance,

which included 57.4 million in upgradedradios and related infrastructure for improvedcommunications abilities in the event of

emergencies and $2.2 million for the BuckwalterPark Recreation Center, In addition,the Countycontinued and increasedworK on

its 1% salestaxprojects, in which $9.8 millionmore in cashwas spent than received in the 2010 fiscal year. This was the resultof

the majorityof the worK on these projects beginning well aftersales tax collectionsbegan in prior years. Additionally, another$8,5

millionin ruraland critical lands program land was purchased from the real propertyprogramfund in fiscal year 2010. Lastly,the

County's general fund cash and equity in pooledcash and investments decreasedby approximately $4.3million,which was mostly

due to late anddecliningproperty tax revenuesrelatedto the downturn in the economy and increased shifts to owner-occupied

households, whichdecreaseCounty tax billings. Seethe generalfund and capital assetsand debt administration sectionsbelowfor

moredetail.
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Beaufort County's Changes in Net Assets

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services S 29,584,032 S 28,636,708 S 5,639,841 S 4,854,807 S 35,223,873 S 33,491,515

Operating Grants and

Contributions 8.353,023 8,046,928 133,223 124,881 8,486,246 8,171,809

Capital Grants and

Contributions 2,654,488 4,223,966 1,862,895 986,411 4,517,383 5,210,377

General Revenues:

Property Taxes 91.394,021 92.725,922 91,394.021 92,725,922

Sales Taxes 28,257,192 30,440,867 28,257,192 30,440,867

Grants and Contributions 9,638,402 10,353,360 9,638,402 10.353,360

Unrestricted Investment

Earnings 4,093,395 3,728,745 48,779 59,803 4,142,174 3,788,548

GainlLoss on Sale of

Capital Assets 4,460 478 4,938

Miscellaneous 3,352.570 2,758,685 9,354 3,352,570 2,768,039

Total Revenues 177.331.583 180,915,181 7,685,216 6.035.256 185.016,799 186,950,437

Program Expenses

Governmental Activities:

General Government 35,336,670 33,883,983 35,336,670 33,883,983

Public Safety 50,524,200 49,090,928 50,524,200 49,090,928

Public Works 20,434,597 19,920,007 20,434.597 19,920,007

Public Health 12,267.824 12,227,572 12,267,824 12,227,572

Public Welfare 2,402,787 1,935,787 2,402,787 1,935,787

Cultural and Recreation 15,963,929 16,947,113 15,963,929 16,947,113

Interest 10,812,119 10,906,551 10,812.119 10,906,551

Business-Type Activities:

Stonnwater Utility 3,677,985 3,027.952 3,677.985 3,027,952

Lady'S Island Airport 664,128 1,129,236 664,128 1,129,236

Hilton Head Airport 2,558,747 2.478,208 2,558,747 2,478,208

Total Expenses 147,742,126 144,911,941 6,900860 6.635,396 154,642,986 151,547,337

Excess Revenues over Expenses 29,589,457 36,003,240 784,356 (600,140) 30,373,813 35,403,100

Transfers In I (Out) (250,000) 250,000

Change in Net Assets 29,339,457 36,003,240 1,034,356 (600,140) 30,373,813 35,403,100

Net Assets, Beginning 200,959029 164 955 789 21,006664 21606804 221,965693 186562593

Net Assets, Ending s 230298486 s 200959029 s 22041020 s 21 006664 $ 252339506 s 221965693
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Governmental activities increased the County's net assets by $30.4 million, thereby accounting for 97 percent of the total growth in the net

assets of the County. Key elements in fiscal year 2010's activity are as follows:

• In the 2010 fiscal year, charges for services increased by $947,000 (or 3.3%) over the 2009 fiscal year. This was mostly fueled by a

$485,000 increase in the County's general fund master in equity fees. Additionally, there was an increase in the Treasurer's

execution fees of approximately $261,000 comparing fiscal years 2010 and 2009. Both of these charges for services revenues

increased due to the downturn in the economy fueling more foreclosures and late property tax payments, respectively.

• Fiscal year 2010 capital grants and contributions decreased by approximately $1.6 million (or 37.2%) as compared to the 2009 fiscal

year. This decrease was mostly caused by U.S. Department of Homeland Security Beaufort Radio Interoperable Communications

Project Grant funds of $1.1 million recognized in the 2009 fiscal year, in which the grant also concluded within that year.

Additionally, $.5 million in private grant revenues was recognized in the County's real property program fund in the 2009 fiscal year

related to land conservation, with no such revenues being recognized in the 2010 fiscal year.

• In the 2010 fiscal year, property tax revenues decreased by approximately $1.3 million (or 1.4%) over the 2009 fiscal year. The

1.4% decrease of property tax revenues in the 2010 fiscal year over the 2009 fiscal year is compared to an $11.3 million or 13.9%

increase in property tax revenues in the 2009 fiscal year over the 2008 fiscal year and compared to a $8.8 million or 12.1% increase

in property tax revenues in the 2008 fiscal year over the 2007 fiscal year. Decreases in fiscal year 2010 property taxes were

primarily due to late and declining property tax revenues related to the downturn in the economy and increased shifts to owner­

occupied households, which decrease County tax billings. Increases in fiscal years 2009 and 2008 property taxes were due to

larger amounts of delinquent taxes paid in subsequent fiscal years, increased millage rates, increasing property values, increasing

development, and an increasing population.

• Also, the County's governmental sales taxes decreased by $2.2 million (or 7.2%) due to decreased County's sales tax projects fund

revenues collected in fiscal year 2010 as compared to fiscal year 2009. This was caused by declines in sales tax collections related

to the downturn in the economy and decreased consumer spending.

• County general government expenses increased by $1.5 million (or 4.3%) during the 2010 fiscal year as compared to the 2009 fiscal

year. This was mostly due to increased credit card fees of $1.3 million related to property tax collections throughout fiscal year 2010

within the Treasurer's Office.

• The County's public safety expenses increased by $1.4 million (or 2.9%) when comparing the 2010 and 2009 fiscal years. The

increase resulted mostly from a $.7 million increase in sheriffs office personnel expenditures, a $.4 million increase in other post

employment benefit costs, and a $.2 million increase in public safety-related depreciation in the 2010 fiscal year as compared to the

2009 fiscal year.

• Additionally, the County's cultural and recreation expenditures decreased by $1.0 million (or 5.8%) in the 2010 fiscal year, as

compared to the 2009 fiscal year. This decrease was mostly the result of $802,000 of non-capitalizable repairs to buildings

completed within the 2009 fiscal year, with no such repairs occurring in fiscal year 2010. In addition,the County made a 5300,000

contribution to the Coastal Discovery Museum in fiscal year 2009, with no such contributions in fiscal year 2010.

-16 -



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS

FORTHE FISCALYEARENDED JUNE30. 2010

Business-type activities increased the County'snet assetsby $1.0million, thereby accounting for 3 percentof the total growth in the net

assets of the County. Keyelements of this net increase are as follows:

• FAAgrant revenues, SouthCarolina Aeronautics Commission grantrevenues, and other contributions increased by a combined

$876,484 in fiscalyear2010as compared to fiscalyear 2009for theHiltonHeadIslandAirport and the Lady'sIslandAirport.

Additionally, stormwater utilityfees revenues increased by approximately $868thousand duringthe 2010fiscalyear compared to

the fiscalyearended June30, 2009.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, Beaufort County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds - The focus of the County's govemmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances

of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance

may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $158,601,105, a decrease

of $34,819,231, in comparison with the prior year. ApprOXimately 10 percent of this total fund balance ($16,217,306) constitutes unreserved,

undesignated fundbalance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is reservedto

indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders

($36,158,985), 2} to fund planned capital projects ($32,499,155), 3} to pay debt service ($43,904,651), 4} to fund special revenue projects

($28,138,471), and 5) to advances to other funds ($1,682,537).

General Fund - The general fund is the main operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated

fund balance of the general fund was $16,217,306, while the total fund balance was $18,240,793. As a measure of the general fund's

liquidity, a comparison is made of both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance

represents approximately 16% of total general fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balance represents approximately 18% of total

general fund expenditures.

County Wide General ObligatIon Bonds Fund - At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the county wide general

obligation bonds fund was $7,107,378, all of which was reserved for debt service. The county wide general obligation bonds fund recognized

revenues of $6,685,279, total expenditures of $12,699,701, and $8,760,368, in other financing sources, for a net change in fund balance of

$2,745,946. The county wide general obligation bonds fund balance experienced the $2.7 million increase in fund balance mostly due to the

recognition of $2.9 million in bond premiums in fIScalyear 2010 related to the $48.8 million bond anticipation note refinancing into the County's

2010 A and 2010 B bonds, which totaled $48.8 million.

New RIver TIF Bonds Fund - At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the New River TIF bonds fund was $21,631,316,

aU of which was reserved for debt service. The New River TIF bonds fund recognized revenues of $7,380,380 and expenditures of

$2,549,513, for a net change in fund balance of $4,830,867. The New River TIF fund balance has annually experienced a large amount of

growth in the last several years, because the TtF has a small base value and has experienced significant amounts of assessed value growth

during this period.

Sales Tax Projects Fund - At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the sales tax projects fund was $25,197,818, all of

which was reserved for capital projects. The sales tax projects fund recognized revenues of $28,577,669, total expenditures of $43,709,216,

and $1,998,239 in other financing sources, for a net change in fund balance of ($13,133,308). The County had not started a significant

amount of its sales tax projects work prior to the 2010 fiscal year, thus increasing its fund balance to be spent in upcoming years. These

projects began to get significantly underway in fiscal year 2010, which led to a planned spending down of this fund balance. This trend will

most likely continue over the remaining life of the County's 1% sales tax road improvement program.
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Real Property Program Fund - At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the real property program fund was

$12,221,702, all of which was reserved for capital projects. The real property program fund recognized revenues of $1,693,263 and total

expenditures of $8,482,663, for a net change in fund balance of ($6,789,400). This planned decrease in fund balance of $6,789,400 is solely

related to the County's land preservation program that is funded by bond borrowings authorized by two voter referendums. However, it is

noted that the County received $1.7 million from a former land conservation services vendor who was holding monies for related County

projects.

2006 Bond Projects Fund - At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the 2006 bond projects fund was $10,813,280, all

of which was reserved for capital projects. The 2006 bond projects fund recognized revenues of $973,232, total expenditures of $1,703,900,

and ($406,563) in other financing uses, for a net change in fund balance of ($1,137,231). This planned net fund decrease of $1.1 mimon is

solely related to the County expending the monies borrowed for capital projects from its 2006 general obligation bonds. But, it is noted that the

County received approximately $933,000 from state and federal grants that supplemented these projects.

Details of the County's governmental funds are shown in the government-wide financial statements. Further details of the County's general

fund are shown on Schedule "A" and further details of the County's nonmajor govemmental funds are shown on Schedules "B", "C", "D" and

·E·.

Proprietary funds - The focus of the County's proprietary funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of

spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County proprietary funds' financing requirements. As restrictions,

commitments, and other limitations on net assets significantly affect the availability of fund resources for future use, unreserved net assets

may serve as a useful measure of a government's proprietary net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County's proprietary funds reported combined ending net assets of $22,041,020 an increase of

$1,034,356 in comparison with the prior year.

Stormwater Utility - At the end of the current fiscal year, the net assets of the storrnwater utility fund were $2,981,246, of which $1,291,219

was invested in capital assets, net of related debt, leaving a balance of $1,690,027 in unrestricted net assets. The stormwater utility fund

recognized operating revenues of $3,713,687, total operating expenses of $3,677,985, and $11,165 in net non-operating revenues, for a

change in net assets of $46,867. The 1.6% increase in the stormwater utility fund in the 2010 fIScal year was mostly the result of an $868,000

increase in operating revenues offset by a lesser increase in expenses from fiscal year 2009 to fiscal year 2010.

Lady's Island Airport - At the end of the current fiscal year, the net assets of the Lady's Island Airport fund were $3,813,011, of which

$4,151,902 was invested in capital assets, net of related debt, leaving a deficit balance of $338,891 in unrestricted net assets. The Lady'S

Island Airport recognized operating revenues of $490,691, total operating expenses of $519,129, $716,966 in net non-operating revenues, and

transfers in of $100,000, for a change in net assets of $788,528. The increase in net assets within the Lady's Island Airport fund in the 2010

fiscal year was mostly the result of an increase in Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) revenues of $334,000 for mostly capital projects and

a decrease of $417,000 in non-operating grant expenses, which in fiscal year 2009 was mostly related to FAA-funded tree cutting projects

around the airport, which were not as extensive in fiscal year 2010.

Hilton Head Island Airport - At the end of the current fiscal year, the net assets of the Hilton Head Island Airport fund were $15,246,763, of

which $18,362,209 was invested in capital assets, net of related debt, leaving a deficit balance of $3,115,446 in unrestricted net assets. The

Hilton Head Island Airport recognized operating revenues of $1,568,686, total operating expenses of $2,031,113, $511,388 in net non­

operating revenues, and transfers in of $150,000, for a change in net assets of $198,961. The increase in net assets within the Hilton Head

Island Airport fund in the 2010 fiscal year was mostly the result of FAA grant revenues (which were mostly for capital projects), South Carolina

Aeronautics Commission grant revenues (for capital projects). and other contributions, which increased by a combined $543,000 in fiscal year

2010 as compared to fiscal year 2009.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Original Budget to Final Budget Comparison for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with

Original Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget (Negative)

Revenues:

Taxes s 78,875,528 s 78,875,528 s
Licenses and Permits 2,783,000 2,783,000

Intergovernmental 8,378,606 7,078,192 (1,300,414)

Charges for Services 9,957,714 10,358,464 400,750

Fines and Forfeitures 850,150 850,150

Interest 790,000 981,892 191,892

Miscellaneous 523,500 523,670 170

Total Revenues 102,158,498 101,450,896 (707,602)

Expenditures:

General Government 20,931,975 22,821,855 (1,889,880)

Public Safety 40,924,593 41,424,524 (499,931)

Public Works 16,082,695 15,935,774 146,921

Public Health 5,626,929 5,538,440 88,489

Public Welfare 964,214 964,214

Culture and Recreation 13,570,464 13,523,469 46,995

Capital 1.456,212 1,865,837 (409,625)

Total Expenditures 99,557,082 102,074,113 (2,517,031 )

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures 2,601,416 (623,217) (3,224,633)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,610,732 2,762,106 1,151.374

Transfers Out (4,212,148) (4,241,3091 (29,161>

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses) (2,601,416) (1,479,203) 1,122,213

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,102,420) (2,102,420)

Fund Balance at the

Beginning of the Year 20,940,144 20940,144

Fund Balance at the

End of the Year S 20940144 s 18837 724 s 12102 420>
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Thegeneral fund originalbUdget's net assetsvaried from its final bUdget's net assetsby ($2,102,420). Key elements of this net budget

increase are as follows:

• There weredecreasing budget revisions totaling $1.3 millionto the County'sgeneral fund intergovernmental revenues. The

decreasing budget revisions mostly relate to the State of SouthCarolina decreasing the County's general fund State aid to

subdivisions contribution by approximately $1.1 million from the 2009fiscal year to the 2010 fiscal year.

• Therewere increasing budget revisions totaling $1.9 millionto the County's general fund general governmentexpenditures. The

majorityof the budget increases related to increasedcredit card feesof $1.3million related to property tax collectionsthroughout

fiscal year 2010within the Treasurer's Office. In this, the Treasurer's Office then transferredmonies from the executionfee fund

which increased the general fund transfers in budqet (seebelow)to makeup for the increases in expenditures.

• Therewere increasing budget revisions totaling $1.2million to the County'sgeneral fund transfers in. Of these revisions, the largest

was relatedto $1.3 million in transfersfrom the County'sTreasurer's execution fee fund to the general fund, relatedto expenditures

incurredby the Treasurer's Office for the collection of delinquent taxes. The remainderof bUdget revisions to general fund transfers

in was nettedagainstthe $1.3 million.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Final Budget to Actual Comparison for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2010

Variance

wilh Final Budget

Final Positive

. Budget Actual Negative

Revenues:

Taxes S 78,875,528 S 72.781,606 S (6,093.922)

Licenses and Pennits 2,783,000 2,406,781 (376.219)

Intergovernmental 7.078,192 7,840,690 762,498

Charges for Services 10.358,464 10,871,664 513.200

Fines and Forfeitures 850,150 1,114,192 264,042

Interest 981,892 535,064 (446,828)

Miscellaneous 523,670 784,642 260.972

Total Revenues 101,450,896 96,334,639 (5,116.257)

Expenditures:

General Government 22.821,855 22,193,897 627,958

Public Safely 41,424.524 39,621.813 1.802,711

Public Works 15.935,774 14,911,639 1.024,135

Public Health 5.538.440 5,149.329 389.111

Public Welfare 964.214 871.631 92,583

Culture and Recreation 13.523,469 13.067.668 455,801

Capital 1.865.837 1979.091 (113.254)

Total Expenditures 102.074,113 97,795,068 4,279,045

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

Expendi1ures (623,217) (1,460.429) (837.212)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

2.762,106

(4,241,309)

(1,479.203)

2,754,899

/3,993,821)

(1,238,922)

(7.207)

247,488

240,281

Net Change in Fund Balance (2.102,420) (2.699.351) (596,931)

Fund Balance at the

Beginning of the Year 20.940,144 20,940,144

(596931)S 18 240 793 $!i!===~~~S 18837 724

Fund Balance at the

End of the Year
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FORTHEFISCALYEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2010

The actualnet assets of the County's general fund variedfromits finalbudget'snet assetsby ($596,931). Key elementsof this are as

follows:

• The County's tax revenues wereapproximately $6.1 million lessthan the final budget hadprojected. The shortfallin tax revenues

was primarily caused by the downturn in the housing market and increased home foreclosures, which followed nationalhousing and

foreclosure trends. Also, late and declining property tax revenues related to increased shifts to owner-occupied households, which

decrease Countytax billings, also led to actualCountyrevenues being less than budgetfor fiscal year 2010.

• To react to thedecreasing revenues, the Countydecreased its expenditures by approximately $4.3million from its revised fiscal

2010budget. Thesedecreases camemostlywithin a $1.8millionpositivebUdget to actualvariance within pUblic safety

expenditures, a $1.0millionpositivebudgetto actualvariance withinpublicworks expenditures, a $.6millionpos~ive budgetto

actual variance withingeneralgovernment expenditures, anda $.5 millionpositivebudget to actualvariance within cultural and

recreation expenditures.

o The net $1.8millionpositivevariance withintheCounty's publicsafetyexpenditures fromthe final bUdget camemostly

frompersonnel expenditures beinga combined $1.3million lesswithin the County's sheriffs office,communicationsltraffic

management department, and emergency services department. This was mostly the resultof a partialhiring freeze

enacted by the County to counteract falling revenues due to the downturn in the economy.

o County publicworks' expenditures $1.0millionpositivevariance from the final budgetcame mostlyfrom personnel

expenditures beinga combined $.7millionlessthanbudgeted for the County'sfacil~ies maintenance, publicworks,

engineering, and solidwaste/recycling departments. This was the result of a partialhiringfreezeenactedby the County

to counteract falling revenues due to the downturn in the economy. Additionally, there was a $.5 millionpositivevariance

withinthe County'sSolidWaste/Recycling Department's professional servicesexpenditures, whichmostly related to

wasteand recycling pickupservicesbeingapproximately $444,000 less than bUdget in fIScal year 2010.

o The net $.6 millionpositivevariance within the County's generalgovernment expenditures from the final bUdget was

mostlydrivenby personnel expenditures being a combined $.7million less than bUdgeted for the County'sgeneral

government departments, whichwas the resultof a partial hiringfreeze enactedby the Countyto counteractfalling

revenues due to the downturn in the economy.

o Thenet $.5million positivevariance withinthe County's culturaland recreation expenditures fromthe final budgetcame

mostlyfrom personnel expenditures beinga combined $.5million less than budgeted for the County'sparks and

recreation department and the County's libraries. This was the resultof a partialhiringfreezeenactedby the Countyto

counteract falling revenues due to the downturn in the economy.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets - Beaufort County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2010 was

S371,056,995 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land and easements. buildings and improvements,

infrastructure, and equipment. The total increase in the County's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 19 percent (in

which governmental actlvities capital assets increased by approximately 21 percent and business-type activities capital assets increased by

approximately 3 percent).

Beaufort County's Capital Assets

(Net of Depreciation)

June 30, 2010 and 2009

Governmenta! Activities Business-type Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land S 77,574,420 S 69,117,014 s 13,802,425 $ 13,802,425 s 91,376,845 S 82,919,439

Easements 11,544,500 11.544.500 11,544,500 11,544,500

Construction in Progress 91,336,163 43.067,711 2,158,942 672,020 93,495,105 43,739,731

BUildingsand Improvements 84,714,625 82.854.192 6,306,393 6,766,758 91,021,018 89,620,950

Infrastructure 66,534,507 65,235,335 66,534,507 65,235,335

Equipment 15.547.450 15,705,401 1.537.570 1832.965 17,085.020 17.538.366

Total Capital Assets $ 347251665 $ 287524153 s 23805330 $ 23074168 S 371 056995 $ 310598321

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

• The County purchased approximately S8,5 million in governmental activities land for the County's rural and critical lands program.

• The County added approximately $49.8 million of investments to construction in progress, which is mostly comprised of $43.7

million in sales tax fund projects.

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note 4 on pages 52 through 53 of this report.

- 26-



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCALYEARENDEDJUNE 30, 2010

Long-Term Debt - At the end of the current fiscal year, Beaufort County had $262,752,537 of total long-term debt outstanding. Of this

amount, $201,355,000 is debt backedby the full faith and credit of the government.

BeaufortCounty's Outstanding Debt

June 30, 2010and 2009

Total

General Obligation Bonds

TIF Revenue Bonds

BondAnticipation Notes

Loan Payableto General Fund

CapitalLeases

TotalOutstanding Debt s 261 07000Q

178,390

$ 1682537 $ 1723652

2010

S 201,355,000

59,715,000

1,682,537

S 262752537

2009

s 159,305,000

60,575,000

48,755,000

1,723,652

178.390

$ 270537042

Majoroutstanding debt eventsduringthe currentfiscal year included the following:

• In March 2009, the County issued$48,755,000 of bond anticipation notes bearing an interest rate of 1.75%with a maturitydate of

March 2010. In March2010, the County refinanced the bond anticipation notes into two bonds totaling $48,755,000. The 2010 A

General Obligation Bonds for $24,205,000 have interest rates of 2.0% to 5.0% and the 2010 B Build America General Obligation

Bonds for $24,550,000 have interest rates of 4.7% to 5.625%. $28,755,000 of the proceeds is being used for various County

construction projects and equipment, while the other $20,000,000 of the proceeds of these bonds is being used to fund the County's

rural andcritical landsprojects.

• In May 2010, the County paid off its communication equipment capital lease four years early with a final principal payment of

$145,436 (after its November 2009principalpaymentof $32,954).

Excluding the bondanticipation note refinancing, therewas $7,784,505 in debt serviceprincipalpaid duringthe fiscal year.

The Countymaintains an underlying, uninsured "M+" bond rating from Standard & Poor's Rating Group for all of its generalobligation bonds,

an underlying, uninsured "Aa1"bond rating from Moody'S Investors Servicefor all of its generalobligationbonds, and an underlying, uninsured

"M" bond rating from Fitch for its 2001 through 2007B generalobligations bonds. Additionallythe County maintainsan underlying, uninsured

"A+"bond rating for its TIF revenue bondsfrom Standard& Poor's Rating Group.

Statestatutes limit the amountof generalobligation debt a governmental entitymay issueto 8 percent of its total assessed valuation lessdebt

issued by referendum and debt issued and paid by other sources, The current debt limitation for the County is $156,393,503. Beaufort

Countywas $59,660,414 underthis legal limit at June 30, 2010.

Additional information on the County's long-term debt can be found in note 5 on pages53 through59 of this report.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

• The unemployment rate for Beaufort County was 9.1 percent at June 30, 2010, which is an increase from a rate of 5.2 percent a

year ago. This compares favorably with the State of South Carolina's average unemployment rate of 10.7 percent at June 30, 2010

and the national average unemployment rate of 9.5 percent at June 30, 2010.

• The housing market downturn continued to affect the County during the 2010 fiscal year, however the downturn in the County was

much less severe than in other areas around the country.

• The cost of living in this region still compares favorably to other areas of the country.

All of these factors were considered in preparing Beaufort County's bUdget for the 2011 fiscal year.

During the 2010 fiscal year, unreserved. undesignated fund balance in the general fund decreased by $2,554,106. No fund balance of the

general fund has been appropriated for spending in the County's 2011 fiscal year original budget.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Beaufort County's finances for all those wllh an interest in the government's

finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be

addressed to the Finance Department, Post Office Box 1228, Beaufort, SC 29901-1228.
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Beaufort County

South Carolina

/'ho(o by Larry Coffin

Sunrises and sunsets enhance the drama of the Beaufort County Landscape . On this particular

foggy morning. the rising sun casts an amber glow over an oyster reef



I3eaufC:1I1 County

South Carolina

Photo hJ' Sco tt Quarforth

A path thro ugh (he: fo rest at historic Aharnaha - the: site of a 1r: century; Native Ame rican

Vil lage - leads from Indian mounds 10 the grounds of a 19111 ce ntury co tto n plan tation . The 100·

acre parcel includes 300-year-old lin: oaks and stunning views of the Okatic and Collc ton

Rivers. The prope rty has been preserved by Beaufort County as a passive public park.



Exhibit 1

BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June30, 2010

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals

~

CurrentAssets

CashandEquityin PooledCash and Investments S 149,452,579 s 1,877,652 S 151,330,231

Receivables, Net 5,541,089 1,086,021 6,627,110

DuefromOtherGovernments 9,774,770 9,774,770

Dueto General Fund 1,850,782 (1,850,782)

Advances fromGeneralFund 43,210 (43,210)

Notereceivable 51,429 51,429

Inventories 247,585 247,585

Prepaid Items 519,273 2,921 522,194

Noncurrent Assets

Equity in Pooled Investments 6,044,160 6,044,160

Advances fromGeneralFund 1,639,327 (1,639,327)

Notereceivable 1,285,714 1,285,714

176,202,333 (319,140) 175,883,193

CapitalAssets

Non·Depreciable 180,455,083 15,961,366 196,416,449

Depreciable 166,796,582 7,843,964 174,640.546

347,251 ,665 23,805,330 371.056.995

TotalAssets 523,453,998 23,486,190 546.940.188

LIABILITIES

Liabilities

Accounts Payable 11,145,090 756,679 11,901.769

AccruedPayroll 3,602,452 140,669 3,743.121

AccruedCompensated Absences 158,912 5,815 164,727

AccruedInterestPayable 3,400,954 3,400,954

CurrentPortionof LongTerm Debt 10,170,000 10,170,000

Dueto Others 1,187,250 1,187,250

Deferred Revenue 96,438 96,438

29.761,096 903,163 30,664,259

Long TermLiabilities

Accrued Compensated Absences 3,019,319 110,471 3,129,790

NetOtherPostemployment BenefitsObligation 9,475,097 431,536 9,906,633

Long·Term Obligations 250,900,000 250,900,000

263,394,416 542,007 263,936,423

Total Liabilities 293.155.512 1,445.170 294,600.682

NET ASSETS

Investedin CapitalAssets, Netof RelatedDebt 126,759,144 23,805,330 150,564,474

RestrictedforCapitalProjects 32,499,155 32.499,155

Restrictedfor Debt Service 43,904,651 43.904,651

Unrestricted(Deficit) 27,135,536 (1.764,310) 25.371.226

Total NetAssets S 230,298,486 S 22.041.020 S 252.339.506

The accompanying notesare an integral partof these financialstatements.
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENTOF ACTIVITIES

For the Year EndedJune 30. 2010

Program Revenues

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants

Expenses Services and Contributions and Contributions

Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities

GeneralGovernment S 35,336.670 s 17,046,292 S 1.222,Q52 S
PublicSafety 50.524.200 7.130,652 584,572 690.842
PublicWorks 20,434,597 3,502.896 531.254 1.963.646
Public Health 12,267.824 551.682 4.716.510

PublicWelfare 2,402.787 72,702 708.044

Culturaland Recreation 15,963.929 1,279.808 590,591

Interest 10,812,119

Total Governmental Activities 147,742.126 29,584,032 8.353,023 2,654,488

Business-Type Activities

StormwaterUtility 3,677.985 3,713,687

Lady's IslandAirport 664,128 490.691 861.102

HiltonHeadAirport 2.558,747 1,435,463 133,223 1,001,793

Total Business-Type Activities 6.900,860 5,639.841 133,223 1,862.895

Total s 154.642,986 s 35,223.873 s 8,486,246 $ 4,517.383

GeneralRevenues & Transfers

PropertyTaxes

Sales Taxes

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted

Unrestricted Investment Earnings

Transfers In / (Out)

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets

Miscellaneous

Total GeneralRevenues & Transfers

Changein Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning

Net Assets, Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Governmental

Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Business Type

Activities Totals

Exhibit 2

S (17,068,326) S S (17,068,326)

(42,118,134) (42,118,134)

(14,436,801) (14,436,801 )

(6,999,632) (6,999,632)

(1,622,041 ) (1,622,041 )

(14,093,530) (14,093,530)

(10,812,119) (10,812,119)

(107,150,583) (107,150,583)

35,702 35,702

687,665 687,665

11,732 11,732

735,099 735,099

S (107,150,583) S 735,099 S (106,415,484)

$ 91,394,021 $ $ 91,394,021

28,257,192 28,257,192

9,638,402 9,638,402

4.093.395 48,779 4,142,174

(250,000) 250,000

4,460 478 4,938

3,352,570 3,352,570

136,490,040 299,257 136,789,297

29,339,457 1,034,356 30,373,813

200,959,029 21,006,664 221,965,693

S 230,298,486 $ 22,041,020 S 252,339,506
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2010

CountyWide

General

Obligation New River Sales Tax

General Bonds TIF Bonds Projects

ASSETS

Cash and Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 17,355,680 $ 5,687,273 $ 21,631,316 $ 23,054,171

Receivables, Net 3,863,987 202,728 2,041

Due from Other Governments 1,613,116 6,806,049

Due from Other Funds 1,850,782

Advances to Enterprise Funds 1,682,537

Note receivable 1,337,143

Prepaid Items 99,450

Total Assets s 26,465,552 $ 7,227,144 s 21,631.316 s 29,862,261

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Accounts Payable s 2,675,284 $ $ $ 4,649,011

Accrued Payroll 3,099,803 15,432

Due to others 1,119,332

Deferred Property Tax Revenue 1,330,340 119,766

Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities 8.224,759 119,766 4,664,443

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for Encumbrances 340,950 25,197,818

Reserved for Capital Projects

Reserved for Debt Service 7,107,378 21,631,316

Reserved Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Reserved for Advances to Other Funds 1,682,537

Unreserved 16,217,306

Total Fund Balance 18,240,793 7.107,378 21,631,316 25.197,818

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance s 26,465,552 $ 7,227,144 S 21,631,316 $ 29,862,261

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Real 2006 NonmaJor Total
Property Bond Governmental Governmental
Program Projects Funds Funds

s 11,884.002 $ 11,097.931 s 64.446,921 s 155,157,294

96,125 1.175,171 5,340.052

1.355.605 9,774,770

1,850,782

1.682.537

1.337.143
342.500 5.597 447.547

s 12,226.502 s 11,194.056 $ 66,983,294 $ 175,590,125

$ 4,800 s 380.776 $ 2,872,849 $ 10,582,720

486,803 3,602,038

67,918 1,187,250

70,468 1,520,574

96,438 96,438

4.800 380,776 3,594,476 16,989,020

6,048,741 4,571,476 36,158.985

12.221,702 4,764,539 15,512,914 32.499.155
15,165,957 43.904.651
28,138,471 28.138.471

1.682.537
16,217.306

12,221.702 10,813,280 63,388,818 158,601,105

$ 12,226,502 $ 11,194,056 s 66,983,294 $ 175,590,125
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Beaufo rt County

South Carolina

NWIO by DOll Bodiker

Boathouses at the end of resident ial dock s not only compliment an already scenic landscape. they

arc sometimes a necessity in Beaufort Co unty where there is more water area than land mass.

Here. travel by boat is not only a privil ege: it' s a way of li fe.



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OFTHEBALANCE SHEETOF GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS TO THESTATEMENT OF NETASSETS

June30.2010

TotalGovernmental Fund Balances (Exhibit3)

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the statement of net assets aredifferentbecause:

Capital assets usedin governmental activitiesare notlinancial resources and. therefore. are

not reported in governmental funds($347.251,665 less internalservice fundbalanceof $180.425)

Otherlong-term assets are not available to pay for currentperiod expenditures and. therefore,

are reported asdeferred in governmental funds- propertytaxes

Internal service funds areused by management to charge the costsof fleetservicesto

individual funds. Theassetsand liabilities of the internalservicefundare included in

governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities. including bondspayable. are not due andpayable in the currentperiod

and. therefore. arenot reported in governmental funds

Accrued Interest Payable
Current Portion of LongTerm Debt

Accrued Compensated Absences

NetOtherPostEmployment Benelils Obligation ($9.475,097 less internalservicefund balanceof $5.019)

Long-term obligations

NetAssetsof Governmental Activities

The accompanying notesare an integralpart of these linanclalstatements.
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s 158.601,105

347.071.240

1.520.574

224.830

(3,400,954)

(10,170,000)

(3.178.231)

(9,470.078)
(250,900.000)

$ 230,298.486

Exhibit3

Continued



BEAUFORT COUNTY,SOUTHCAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

CountyWide
General

Obligation New River SalesTax
General Bonds TIF Bonds Projects

Revenues
Property Taxes S 72,781,606 s 6,461,363 S 7.337,824 S
Licenses and Permits 2,406.781
Intergovernmental 7,840,690 149,212 28.257,192
Charges for Services 10,871.664
Finesand Forfeitures 1,114,192
Interest 535,064 74,704 42,556 247,657
Miscellaneous 784,642 72.820

TotalRevenues 96,334,639 6,685,279 7.380,380 28,577.669

Expenditures
Current

General Government 22.193,897
PublicSafety 39,621,813
PublicWorks 14,911,639
PublicHealth 5,149,329
PublicWelfare 871,631
Cultural and Recreation 13,067,668

Debtservice- Principal 6,005,000 580,000
Debt Service - Interestand Fees 6,694,701 1,969,513
CapitalProjects 1,979,091 43.709,216

TotalExpenditures 97,795,068 12,699,701 2.549.513 43.709,216

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (1,460,429) (6,014,422) 4,830,867 (15,131,547)

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)
Issuance of Bonds- Refinancing of BAN 48,755,000
DebtService- Principal - Refinancing of BAN (48,755,000)
BondPremium 2.917,975
Transfers In 2,754,899 5.842,393 1,998,239
Transfers Out (3,993,821)

Total Other Financing Sources(Uses) (1.238,922) 8,760,368 1.998.239

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,699,351) 2,745,946 4.830,867 (13,133,308)

FundBalanceat the Beginning of the Year 20,940,144 4,361,432 16.800,449 38,331.126

FundBalanceat the End of the Year S 18,240,793 S 7.107.378 S 21.631,316 S 25.197.818

The accompanying notes are an integralpart of these financial statements.
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Real 2006 Nonmajor Totals

Property Bond Govemmental Govemmental

Program Projects Funds Funds

$ $ s 4,647.945 $ 91.228.738
5,617.267 8.024.048

962,625 11.693.386 48,903.105
4.800.871 15,672,535

368.885 1.483,On
6.152 10.607 258,680 1.175,420

1,687,111 807.995 3,352,568

1,693,263 973,232 28,195.029 169,839,491

4.597,637 26,791,534
2,920,n8 42,542,591

502,992 15,414,631
6,896,376 12,045,705

951,537 1,823,168
667,321 13,734,989
980,000 7,565,000

2.262,250 10,926,464
8,482,663 1,703.900 20,607,745 76,482,615

8,482,663 1,703,900 40.386,636 207,326,697

(6,789,400) (730.668) (12.191,607) (37.487.206)

48,755,000
(48,755.000)

2.917,975
557,7n 8.260,434 19.413,742

(964,340) (14,705,581) (19.663,742)

(406,563) (6,445.147) 2.667,975

(6,789,400) (1,137,231) (18.636,754) (34.819.231 )

19,011.102 11,950,511 82,025,572 193.420,336

$ 12,221.702 $ 10,813,280 $ 63,388,818 $ 158,601,105
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Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo hy DOll Bodikcr

A dead. fallen oak tree in the marsh has been weathered by wind and water. Its hark has be-en

washed away and its twisted limb s - which grew to ward the changing sunlight - give the tree a

haunted look .
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Beaufort County

South Carolina

photo by Larry Coffin

Beaufort County shrimpers usc the off-season for boat maintenance. The "Little Lynette" is one

o f thousands of shrimp boats found in the coasta l waters of South Caroli na dur ing the while. pink

and brown shrimp seasons. which an: generally between the mouths of ~ lay and January



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OFTHE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TOTHE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the YearEnded June 30, 2010

Total Net Change in Fund Balances· Governmental Funds(Exhibit 4)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities aredifferentbecause:

Government funds report capitaloutlays as expenditures. However, in the statementof activities
the cost of thoseassets are allocated over their estimated usefullivesand reportedas depreciation

expense. This is the amount bywhich capital outlayexcluded depreciation in the curent period
Capital Outlay ($76,482,615 less $3,000,464 in non-capitallzed expenditures)

Depreciation

In the statement of activities, the loss on disposalof capitalassets is reported. Conversely,

governmental funds do not reportany gain or losson disposal of capital assets.

NetBookValue of CapitalAssets Disposed

Because someproperty taxeswill not be collected for several months after the County's fiscal

year ends,theyarenot considered "available" revenues in the governmental funds

Decrease in Deferred PropertyTaxes

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds, leases)provides current financial resourcesto governmental
funds,while the repayment of the principalof long-term debtconsumes the current financial

resources of govemmental funds.Neither transactions hasanyaffecton net assets
Issuance of Long-Term Bonds to Refinance Bond Anticipation Notes
Bond Principal Payments
Capital Lease Principal Payments

Someexpenses reported in the statementof activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and,therefore, are not reportedas expenditures in governmental funds

Decrease in Accrued Interest

Increase in Accrued Compensated Absences
Increase in OtherPost EmploymentBenefit Cost

The net (revenue) expense of certainactivitiesof internalservice fundsreported with governmental activities

Change in NetAssets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesefinancial statements.
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73,482,151
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(489,660)

165,283

(48,755,000)
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178,390

114,345

(69,796)

(3,535,646)

13,600

29,339,457



Exhibit 5

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUNDBALANCES

BUDGET (GAAPBASIS)AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
Forthe YearEndedJune 30,2010

GENERAL
Variance

with FinalBudget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Property Taxes $ 78,875,528 $ 78,875,528 s 72,781,606 $. (6,093,922)

Licenses andPermits 2,783,000 2,783,000 2,406,781 (376,219)

Intergovernmental 8,378,606 7,078,192 7,840,690 762,498

Charges for Services 9,957,714 10,358,464 10,871,664 513,200

Finesand Forfeitures 850,150 850,150 1,114,192 264,042

Interest 790,000 981,892 535,064 (446,828)

Miscellaneous 523,500 523,670 784,642 260,972

TotalRevenues 102,158,498 101,450,896 96,334,639 (5,116,257)

Expenditures
General Government 20,931,975 22,821,855 22,193,897 627,958
PublicSafety 40,924,593 41,424,524 39,621,813 1,802,711
PublicWorks 16,082,695 15,935,774 14,911,639 1,024,135
PublicHealth 5,626,929 5,538,440 5,149,329 389,111
PublicWelfare 964,214 964,214 871,631 92,583
Cultural andRecreation 13,570,464 13,523,469 13,067,668 455,801
Capital 1,456,212 1,865,837 1,979,091 (113,254)

TotalExpenditures 99,557,082 102,074,113 97,795,068 4,279,045

Excess of Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures 2,601,416 (623,217) (1,460,429) (837,212)

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,610,732 2,762,106 2,754,899 (7,207)
Transfers Out (4,212,148) (4,241,309) (3,993,821 ) 247.488

TotalOtherFinancing Sources (Uses) (2,601,416) (1,479,203) (1,238,922) 240,281

Net Change in FundBalance (2,102,420) (2,699,351 ) (596,931)

FundBalance at the Beginning of the Year 20,940,144 20,940,144 20,940,144

FundBalance at the Endof the Year $ 20,940,144 $ 18,837,724 $ 18,240,793 $ (596,931)

The accompanying notesare an integralpart of these financial statements.
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Exhibit 6
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2010

Internal

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Service Fund

Stormwater Lady's Island Hilton Head

Utility Airport Airport Totals Garage

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Investments $ 1,877,080 $ 372 $ 200 $ 1.877,652 $ 339.445

Receivables, Net 206,235 138.586 741,200 1,086.021 201,037

Inventories 186,916 60.669 247,585

Prepayments 862 1.509 550 2.921 71,726

Total Current Assets 2,271,093 201.136 741,950 3.214,179 612,208

Capital Assets 2,733,723 4,830,333 24.365,702 31,929,758 411,911

Accumulated Depreciation (1,442,504) (678,431) (6.003,493) (8,124,428) (231.486)

1,291,219 4,151.902 18,362.209 23,805,330 180,425

Total Assets $ 3,562.312 $ 4,353.038 S 19,104.159 $ 27,019,509 s 792,633

LIABILITIES

Uabilities

Account Payable 108.991 280,816 366.872 756,679 562,370

Accrued Payroll 90.149 5,453 45.067 140,669 414

Accrued Compensated Absences 3,757 128 1.930 5,815

Due to General Fund 242,248 1.608,534 1,850.782

Current Portion of Advance

from General Fund 43210 43,210

Total Current Liabilities 202,897 528.645 2,065,613 2,797,155 562,784

Long Term Liabilities

Accrued Compensated Absences 71,379 2.426 36,666 110,471

Net Other Postemployment

Benefits Obligation 306,790 8,956 115,790 431,536 5.019

Advance from General Fund 1,639,327 1,639.327

Total Long Term Liabilities 378.169 11,382 1,791,783 2.181,334 5,019

Total Liabilities 581.066 540.027 3.857,396 4,978,489 567,803

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, Net

of Related Debt 1,291,219 4,151,902 18,362,209 23,805,330 180,425

Unrestricted (Deficit) 1,690.027 (338.891) (3.115,446) (1,764.310) 44,405

Total Net Assets $ 2,981,246 s 3,813,011 $ 15,246,763 $ 22,041.020 s 224,830

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit 7

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES ANDCHANGES IN FUNDNETASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For theYearEnded June30, 2010

Internal

Business-TxpeActivities - Enterprise Funds Service Fund

storrnwater Lady's Island HiltonHead

Utility Airport Airport Totals Garage

Operating Revenues
Garage BillIngs $ $ $ $ $ 1,944,297

FuelandOil Sales 362,216 362,216 2,460,075

Storrnwater UtilityFees 3,293,905 3,293,905

storrnwater UtilityProject Billings 419,782 419,782

FBD Ground Lease 40,681 40,681

FBOConcessions 7,816 7,816

FBOFuetCommission 90,699 90,699

FlightTraining Commissions 1,355 2,115 3,470

Concession Sales 5,378 5,378

Firefighting Fees 297,755 297,755

Landing Fees 13,567 151,128 164,695

Par1dngITaxi Fees 43,420 43,420

Security Fees 30,643 30,643

Rentals 108,146 641,917 750,063

Hanger Rentals 122,720 122,720

TsA Revenues 133,223 133,223

OtherCharges 29 6,569 6,598

TotalOperating Revenues 3,713,687 490,691 1,568,686 5,773,064 4,404,372

Operating Expenses
Costsof sales andServices 265,442 265,442 2,324,240

Personnel 2,209,568 108,032 955,258 3,272,858 45,961

Purchased Services 696,837 82,133 493,778 1,272,748 2,017,146

Supplies 458,088 10,517 35,970 504,575 7,880

Capital Projects 8,157 8,157

Depreciation 305,335 53,005 546,107 904,447 25,377

TotalOperating Expenses 3,677,985 519,129 2,031,113 6,228,227 4,420,604

Operating Income (Loss) 35,702 (28,438) (462,427) (455,163) (16,232)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

FAAGranls 861,102 760.055 1,621,157

sCAC Granls 123,584 123,584

Contribution fromtheTown of HiltonHeadIsland 118,154 118,154

Non-Operaling GranlExpenses (144,999) (442,214) (587,213)

Gain/(Loss) on sale of Capital Assets (227) 705 478 4,460

Interest Income 11,392 863 36,524 48.779

InlerestExpense (85,420) (85,420)

Total Non-Qperating Revenues (Expenses) 11,165 716,966 511,388 1,239,519 4,460

Transfers In 100,000 150,000 250,000

Change in NetAssets 46,867 788,528 198,961 1,034,356 (11,772)

NetAssets, Beginning 2,934,379 3,024,483 15,047,802 21.006,664 236.602

NetAssels, Ending $ 2,981,246 s 3,813,011 $ 15.246.763 s 22,041.020 s 224,830

Theaccompanying nolesarean integralpartof thesefinancial statements.
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Exhibit8
Sheet 1

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year EndedJune30,2010

Intemal
Business-Type Activities- Enterprise Funds service Fund

Stormwater Lady's Island Hilton Head
Utility Airport Airport Totals Garage

CashFlowsfromOperating Activities:

cash Received fromCustomers and Users $ 3,589,494 S 387,265 $ 1,140,125 $ 5,116,884 $ 4,424,816
Cash Paid to Employees (2,090,154) (103,603) (909,783) (3,103,540) (47,575)
Cash Paid to Suppliers (1,141,848) (113,243) (336,426) (1,591,517) (4,056,909)

TotalProvidedBy (UsedFor)Operating Activities 357,492 170,419 (106,084) 421,827 320,332

CashFlowsfrom Noncapital Financing Activities:
FAAGrants 137,749 420,103 557,852
Non-Operating GrantExpenses (144,999) (442,214) (587,213)

TotalUsedFor Noncapital Financing Activities (7,250) (22,111) (29,361)

Cash Flowsfrom Capital and Related

Financing Activities:

FAA Grants 723,353 339,952 1,063,305
SCACGrants 123,584 123,584
Contribution fromthe Townof HiltonHead Island 118,154 118,154

Transfersfrom General Fund 100,000 150,000 250,000
(Increase)lDecrease in Advances from

HiltonHeadAirport (240,000) 240,000

Proceedsfrom Saleof Capital Assets 10,403 705 11,108 4,460

Purchaseof CapitalAssets (144,665) (747,385) (754,189) (1,646,239)

PrincipalPayment on Debt (41,115) (41,115)

InterestPaidon Debt (85,420) (85,420)

Total Provided By (UsedFor)Capital

and RelatedActivities (134,262) (164,032) 91,671 (206,623) 4,460

CashFlowsfrom Investing Activities:

InterestEamed 11,392 863 36,524 48,779

Net Increasein Cashand CashEquivalents 234,622 234,622 324,792

Cashand CashEquivalents, July 1, 2009 1,642,458 372 200 1,643,030 14,653

Cashand CashEquivalents, June30,2010 $ 1,877,080 $ 372 $ 200 S 1,877,652 $ 339.445

The accompanying notesarean integralpart of these financial statements.
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Exhibit8
Sheet2

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OFCASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Forthe YearEnded June30,2010

Internal

Business-TypeActivities· Enterprise Funds ServiceFund

Stonnwater Lady's Island Hilton Head
Utility Airport Airport Totals Garage

Reconciliation of Operating Income to NetCash

Flowsfrom Operating Activities:

Operating Income(Loss) $ 35,702 $ 128,438) $ (462,427) S (455,163) S 116,232)

Adjustments to Reconcile:
Depreciation 305,335 53,005 546,107 904,447 25,377

Changes in Assetsand Uabilities:

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (124,193) (103,426) (428,561) (656,180) 20,444
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories (21,869) 38 (21,831) 46,727
(Increase) Decrease in OtherCurrent Assets (653) (1,325) (88) (2,066)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 43,756 246,136 193,410 483,302 245,630
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Payroll 369 28 1,405 1,802 (1,610)
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued

Compensated Absences 5,107 464 763 6,334 (4)

Increase (Decrease) in NetOther

Postemployment Benefits Obligation 113,938 3,937 43,307 161.182

16,455 145,852 (189,764) (27,457) 311,187

NetCashFlowfromOperating Activities $ 357,492 $ 170,419 $ (106,084) $ 421,827 $ 320,332
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Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo bv Barry E IVriglu ,\I. D.

The Hilton Head Rear Range Lighthouse is one ora pair o f lights originally built in 18Sl. Today.

only the rear range light still stands . It is 0 11 the golf course at Palmetto Dunes Resort and

a lthough it no longer shows the way for ships at sea and its structure or Cy prus board has been

replaced with srcc r -. it remain s an interestin g landm ark



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NETASSETS

AGENCY FUNDS
June 30,2010

ASSETS
Cash and Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Due to Agency

Total Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Beaufort County, South Carolina, have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles (GAAP)

generallyaccepted in the United Statesof America as appliedto governmentalunits. The Governmental AccountingStandards Board

(GASB) is the accepted standard.selting body for establishing governmentalaccountingand financial reporting principles. The County

alsoappliesFinancial Accounting StandardsBoard (FASB)statementand interpretations issuedon or beforeNovember30, 1989to its

governmental and business-type activities and to its proprietary funds provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB

pronouncements. The moresignificantof the government'saccounting policies are describedbelow.

Reporting Entity

BeaufortCounty operatesunder the Council/Administrator form of governmentwith Council memberselected for four-year

termsfromeachof the elevensingle-memberdistricts. This reportincludesall fundsof BeaufortCountythat are controlled by

this governing body,and are considered to be the "reporting entity"known as BeaufortCounty.

Government-Wide FinancialStatements

The statement of netassetsandthe statementofactivitiesdisplayinformationaboutthe Countyasa whole. Thesestatements

includethe financialactivitiesof the primarygovernment. except for fiduciaryfunds. For the most part, the effect of interfund

activityhas been removed from the statements. The statements distinguishbetweenthose activitiesof the Countythat are

governmental and those that are consideredbusiness -type activities.

The statement of netassetspresentsthe financialconditionof the governmentaland business-type activitiesfor the County at

year-end. The statementof activitiespresentsa comparison between directexpenses andprogram revenues foreachprogram

or function of the County'sgovernmental activitiesandfor thebusiness-type activities of theCounty. Directexpenses arethose

that arespecifically associatedwith a service,program, or departmentand thereforeclearly identifiableto a particularfunction.

Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient for the goods or services offered by the program, grants and

contributions thatare restrictedto meetingthe operational or capital requirements of a particularprogram,and interestearned

on grantsthat is requiredto be used to supporta particularprogram. Revenueswhichare not classifiedas programrevenues

are presented as general revenuesof the County, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with

programrevenues identifies the extent to which eachbusinesssegmentor governmentalfunction is self-financing or draws

from the general revenuesof the County.

FundFinancialStatements

Duringtheyear,the Countysegregatestransactions relatedto certainCountyfunctions oractivities inseparate fundsinorderto

aid financialmanagement and to demonstratelegalcompliance. Fund financialstatements aredesignedto presentfinancial

information of the Countyat this moredetailed level. The focusof governmentalandenterprisefund financialstatements ison

major funds. Eachmajor fund is presentedin a separatecolumn. Nonmajorfunds are aggregatedand presented in a single

column.

Measurement Focus. Basisof Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation

The govemment-wide financial statementsare reportedusing the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual

basis ofaccounting, as is the proprietaryfund. The fiduciaryfund financial statements are reported using no maasurement

focus andthe accrualbasis ofaccounting. Revenues are recorded whenearned andexpensesarerecorded whena liability is

incurred, regardlessof the timingof relatedcash flows. Propertytaxes are recognizedas revenuesin the year forwhich they

are levied. Grantsand similar itemsare recognized as revenueas soonas all eligibilityrequirements imposedbytheprovider

have been mel.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For theYearEnded June30, 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued:

Governmental fundfinancial statements arereported using thecurrent financial resoUlC6S measurement focus andthemodified

accrualbasisof accounting. Revenues are recognized as soonas theyare bothmeasurable andavailable. Revenues are

considered to beavailable whentheyarecollectible within thecurrent periodor soonenoughthereafter topay liabilities of the

current period. Forthispurpose, thegovernment considers revenues to beavailable ifthey arecollected within 60days of the

endof thecurrent fiscalperiod. Expenditures generally arerecorded whena liabilityis incurred, asunderaccrual accounting.

However, debtservice expenditures, aswellasexpenditures related tocompensated absences andclaims andjudgments, are

recorded onlywhen payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be

susceptible to accrual and so havebeen recognized as revenues of the currentfiscal period. All other revenue items are

considered to be measurable andavailable onlywhen cashIs received by the government.

Thegovernment reports the following majorgovernmental funds:

Thegeneralfund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of thegeneral

government, exceptthoserequired to be accounted for in anotherfund.

The county wide generalobligation bond fund accounts for the expenditures of the bond proceeds of the bonds

issued forvarious capitalprojects throughout the County.

The New RiverTIF bonds fund accounts for the expenditure of the bond proceeds of the bonds issued for the

improvements withintheTIFdistrict. These improvements includethe newrivercampus fortheUniversity ofSouth

Carolina-Beaufort and the southcampus for theTechnical College of the Lowcountry.

Thesalestaxprojects fund accounts for theexpenditure of the 1% localsalestaxreferendum proceeds which are

used for various capitalprojects throughout theCounty.

Therealproperty purchase program fundaccounts for theexpenditure ofbondproceeds of thebonds issued forthe

purchase of ruraland critical landswithin the County.

The2006bondprojectsfund accounts for the expenditures of the bondproceeds of the bondsissued forvarious

capitalprojects throughout the County.

The County reports the following majorenterprise funds:

Thestorrnwater utilityfund accounts for the activities of theCounty's storrnwater utilityoperations.

TheLady'sIsland Airportfund accounts for the activities of theCounty'sairportoperations on Lady'sIsland.

The Hillon Head IslandAirport fund accounts for the activities of the County's airport operations on Hilton Head

Island.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

NOTESTO THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For theYearEndedJune 30, 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies- Continued:

The Countyreportsthe following major internalservice fund:

Thegarage fund accountsfor the activities of the County'sgarage operations.

Additionally, the governmentreports the following fund types:

SpecialRevenue Funds

The special revenue fundsareusedto accountfor the proceedsof specificrevenue sources(otherthan

special assessments, or majorcapital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified

purposes.

DebtService Funds

Debtservicefundsareusedto accountfor the accumulation of resources for,andthepayment of,general

long-termdebt principaland interest.

CapitalProjectsFunds

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or

construction of majorcapitalfacilities.

AgencvFunds

The agency funds account for monies held on behalf of school districts, special districts, and other

agencies that use the County as a depositoryor property taxes are collected on behalf of the other

governments. These funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of

operations.

As a generalruletheeffect of interfundactivityhasbeeneliminated fromthe government-wide financialstatements. Exceptions to this

generalrulearecharges betweenthe government's garagefunction andvariousotherfunctionsof thegovernment. Elimination ofthese

charges woulddistortthe direct costs and programrevenues reported for the variousfunctionsconcerned.

Amountreported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicantsfor goods, services, or privilegesprovided, (2)

operating grants and contributions, and (3) capitalgrants and contributions. Internallydedicatedresources are reported as general

revenues ratherthan as programrevenues. Likewise, generalrevenues includeall taxes.

Proprietary fundsdistinguish operating revenuesand expenses from nonoperating items.Operating revenues andexpenses generally

resultfromprOViding servicesand producingand delivering goodsin connection witha proprietaryfund's principalongoingoperations.

Theprincipal operating revenuesofthe Countyenterprise fundarecharges to customers for salesandservices. Operating expenses for

enterprise fundsincludethe cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciationon capitalassets. All revenues and

expenses notmeeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Whenbothrestricted andunrestrictedresources areavailable for use,it is the government's policyto userestricted resources first, then

unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TOTHEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FortheYearEnded June 30,2010

1. Summary of SignificantAccounting Policies - Continued:

NetAssets - Net assets represent thedifference between assets andliabilities. Netassets invested incapitalassets,net of related debt

consists ofcapitalassets, netof accumulateddepreciation, reduced bytheoutstanding balances ofanyborrowing usedfortheacquisition

construction or improvements of thoseassets. Netassets arereported asrestricted when therearelimitations imposed ontheiruseeither

through theenablinglegislation adopted bytheCounty orthroughexternal restriction imposed bycreditors, grantors, laws,or regulations

of othergovernments. Net assets invested in capital assets netof related debt wereas follows:

Net CapitalAssets

Less:CurrentPortion of LongTerm Debt

LongTermObligations

Add UnspentBond Proceeds: RealProperty Program

CapitalProjects Funds

2006BondProjects

$

Governmental

347,251,665

(10,170,000)

(250,900,000)

12,221,702

17,542,497

10,813.280

126759144

$

$

Business-Type

23,805,330

23 805 330

25 years

25 years

25 years

5-10years

Deferred revenue- Deferred revenue ariseswhenassets are recognized beforerevenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. On

governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the availableperiod have also been reported as

deferred revenue.

Equity in Pooled Cashand Investments - TheCounty maintains a pooledcash and investment account for all fundsfor accounting and

investment purposes. This givestheCountytheability to investidlecashfor shortperiods oftimeandtoearnthemostfavorable available

rateof return. The"equityin pooledcashandinvestments" represents theamountof pooled cashandinvestments owned byeachfundof

the County. Certain individual fundsmay reflecta cashdeficit,from time to time. These cash deficits are not considered an equity

transfer sincethe transferhas notbeen approved byCountyCouncil and is considered to be temporary in nature.

Investments - Investments consistof certificates of deposit andrepurchase agreements. With the majority of theCounty's investments

maturing in lessthan 1 year, all investments are recorded at cost,whichapproximates fair value.

Receivables - All receivables are reported at their grossvalue and when appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is

uncollectible.

lnventories-Inventories consistof fuelsand supplies (enterprise funds) andarestatedat the lowerof "first-in, first-out"cost or market.

CaoitalAssets- Capitalassetspurchased or acquired withanoriginal costof $3,000 or moreare reported at historicalcostorestimated

historical cost. Contributed assets are reported atfair market valueasof thedate received. Additions, improvements and othercapital

outlays thatsignificantly extend the usefullifeof anassetarecapitalized. Othercostsincurred for repairs andmaintenance areexpensed

as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is calculated on the straight-line basis starting in the monthof purchase/completion over the

following estimated useful lives:

BUildings

Improvements

Infrastructure

Equipment
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTESTO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2010

1. Summaryof Significant AccountingPolicies - Continued:

Long-Term Obligations -In thegovernment-widefinancialstatements andproprietary fundsfinancialstatements, long-term debtandother

long-termobligations are reported as liabilities in the applicablegovernmentactivities,business-typeactivities, or proprietaryfund type

statementof netassets. Bondpremiumsand discounts aredeferred andamortizedover the life of the bonds using theeffective interest

method. Bondspayableare reportednet of applicablebondpremiumor discount. Bond issuancecostsarereported as deferred charges

and amortized over the termof relateddebt.

In the fund financialstatements,governmentalfund types recognize bondpremiums anddiscounts, aswell asbond issuancecosts,during

the currentperiod. The face amountof debt issued is reportedasbond proceeds. Premiumsreceived on debt issuances arereported as

intereston investments while discounts and issuance costs are reported as interest and fees expenditures.

Compensated Absences - The County accrues compensatedabsences and associated employee-relatedcosts when earned by the

employee. Thegeneral fund is used to liquidate the liability for non-proprietary fund accrued compensated absences.

Due to and fromOther Fundsllnternal Balances- Interfund receivables and payables in the fund financial statementsand internal

balances in thegovernment-wide financial statements arise from interfundtransactions and are recorded by all funds affected in the

period in whichtransactionsare executed. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activityhas been eliminated from the

govemment-wide financial statements.

Revenues- Substantially all governmentalfund revenuesare accrued. Propertytaxes arebilled and collectedwithin the same period in

which the taxesare levied.

Expenditures - Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires

managementto makeestimates and assumptionsthat affect the County'sfinancial position and results of operationsand disclosureof

contingentassetsand liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting • The County uses GAAP as the basis for its budgeting and uses the following procedures in

establishingthe bUdgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

(1) The CountyAdministratorsubmits to County Council,prior to June 1,proposed operating,special revenue,debt service,and

capital improvement(CIP)budgets for the fiscal year commencing July 1. The operating, special revenue,debt service,and

CIPbUdgets include proposedexpenditures, revenues,and financing sources.

(2) TheCouncil requiressuchchanges to be madeas itdeems necessary, providedthe budget remains in balanceand is subject

to the notice of hearing requirementsof Section 4-9·140 of the South Carolina Statutes.

(3) Public hearings are held pursuant to Section 4-9-140 of the South Carolina Statutes in order for the Council to adopt the

tentativeand final budget.

(4) Prior to July 1, the operating, special revenue, debt service and CIP budgets are legally enacted through passage of an

ordinancesetting forth anticipated revenues and appropriations by fund.

- 48-



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the YearEnded June 30, 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies- Continued:

(5) TheCounty Administrator or his designee isauthorized to transferfundsamongoperating accounts oramong capital accounts

within adepartment. All transfers over510,000 between departments andprograms orbetween operating andcapital accounts

must be authorized by the Council in accordance with Section 4·9·140 of the South CarolinaStatutes. In accordance with

County Ordinance #2006/14, Section12, amounts of$10,000 or lesscanbeapprovedbytheCouncil Chairman and/or Council

Finance Committee Chairman; transfers of 55,000 or lesscanbe approved by theCountyAdministrator and/orhisdesignee.

(6) Formal budgetary integration isemployed asa measurement control deviceforallgovernmental funds of theCounty. Thelegal

levelof budgetary control(i.e. the levelatwhichexpenditures maynot legallyexceed appropriations) is thedepartment level.

TheCounty haslegallyadoptedbudgetsfor all funds withtheexception of the following: Clerkof CourtDiscretionary, Sheriffs

Restricted DrugAward Trust,GiftStoreProgram, Sheldon Rehabilitation Project, LibraryTrust,LibrarySpecialTrust, andthe

DSN Community SupportWaiver funds.

(7) Budgets for thegovernmental fund typesare adopted on a basisconsistent with generallyaccepted accounting principles.

(8) Revenues inexcess of the currentbudgetordinance maybe expended asdirectedby therevenue source orfor thepurpose for

which thefundsweregenerated withoutfurtherapproval byCountyCouncil, asper Section14 of CountyOrdinance #2006/14.

(9) Thesefinancial statements havenotbeenupdated for subsequent eventsoccurring afterOctober29,2010, whichis thedate

these financial statements were available to be issued.

2. CashandEquityin PooledCash and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk· Deposits

Custodial credit riskis theriskthat in theeventof a bankfailure,theCounty's depositsmaynotbe returned. TheCountydoesnothavea

depositpolicyfor custodial creditrisk. At June 30, 2010, the carrying amount of the County's depositswas $21,803,475 andthe bank

balance was$26,890,425. State lawrequires thatall of theCounty's deposits becovered byFDICinsurance or bycollateral heldbythe

pledging financial institutions'trust department in theCounty's name. TheCounty's deposits werefullyinsured orcollateralized asofJune

30,2010.

Inyestments

As of June30, 2010, theCountyhas the following investments:

Investment Type

Fair

Value

Investment maturities (in years)

Lessthan

1-5

US Treasury Obligations

US Government Agency Obligations

SouthCarolina LocalGovernment

Investment Pool

19,012,684

190,080.118

209,092,802

2.851.267

5211944069

19,012,684

184,035,958

203,048,642

2,851.267

$205899909

6,044,160

6,044,160

s 6044160

Interest Rate Risk

TheCountydoesnothavea formalinvestment policythat limitsinvestment maturities asa meansof managing itsexposure tofairvalue

lossesarising fromincreasing interestrates.
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2. Cash andEquityin PooledCash and Investments - Continued:

CreditRisk

The County has no investmentpolicy that would further limit its investmentchoices other than state law. As of June 30, 2010, the

underlying security ratings of the County's investment in theSouthCarolinaLocalGovernmentInvestment Pool(LGIP)maybe obtained

fromtheLGIP's complete financialstatements. LGIPis ratedAAAfor long-term unsecured debtandA1+ forshort-term notesbyStandard

& Poor's. These financial statementsmay be obtained bywritingto the followingaddress:

The StateTreasurer'sOffice

LocalGovernmentInvestmentPool

PostOffice Box 11778

Columbia, SC 29211

The County's investments in U.S. GovernmentAgencyObligations were ratedAa2 by Moody'sInvestorsServices.

Concentration of CreditRisk

TheCountyplaces nolimiton the amounttheCountymayinvestin anyone issuer. As of June 30,2010,theCountyhadinvestments with

four issuers that exceeded 5% of total investments.

3. ReceivableslDue from Other Governments/Note Receivable

Allproperty taxesreceivable are shownnet ofallowances for uncollectibles. TheCountyconsiders all taxestobecollectible; therefore, no

allowance for uncollectibles has been established.

Thefollowing detailsreceivables -net by fund:

$ 202,728

CountyWide
General

Obligation
Bonds

Property TaxReceivable

Licenses andFeesReceivable

Accounts Receivable - Other

General
Fund

$ 2,260,506

316,825

1.286.656

$ 3863987 $ 202728

Property Tax Receivable

Licenses and FeesReceivable

Accounts Receivable - Other

2006 Bond
Projects

$

96.125

S 96125

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
$ 119,280

285,612

770,279

$ 1175171

Internal
Stormwater Lady'S Island Hilton Head Service Fund

Utility Aimort Airport Garage
Property Tax Receivable S S S $

Licenses and FeesReceivable 206,235 138,586 741,200 201,037

Accounts Receivable - Other

s 206235 $ 138586 $ 741200 $ 201 037
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3. ReceivableslDue from OtherGovernments/Note Receivable - Continued:

Keydatesin the propertytax cyclefor tax year2009are as follows:

Assessment Date

Property Taxes Levied

Tax Bills Rendered

Property TaxesPayable

Delinquency Date

Tax Sale Dates

The rollowing detailsthe due from othergovernments by fund:

2009

September14, 2009

November18, 2009

March 16,2010

March17, 2010

October4-5,2010

General Government Programs

PublicSafetyPrograms

PublicWorksPrograms

Alcohol & DrugPrograms

Disabilities and SpecialNeedsPrograms

PublicWelfarePrograms

Cultural &Recreational Programs

General
Fund

1,538,803

74,313

s 1613116

SalesTax
Projects

6,806,049

s 6806049

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
151,825

236,669

827,710

52,959

7,614

31,234

47.594

$-1..355605

In November 2006,the Countyissued$17,500,000 in GeneralObligation bondsbeating interestrales or3.5%108.0%andwithvarying

maturities through 2026. The TechnicalCollegeof the Lowcountry's portionof this bond is $1,500,000.

Thefollowing reflectsthe future minimum payments receivable at June 30, 2010, under this nole receivable:

FiscalYear
Ending

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016-2020

2021-2025

2026

Totalminimumnote payments

LessAmountRepresenting Interest

Presentvalue of minimumnote payments

Lesscurrentportion

Long-term portion
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Amount

s 108,563

110,791

113,057

115,168

116,882

593,325

606,032

120.632

1,884,450

<547.307)

1,337,143

(51429)

S 1 285714
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

4. CapitalAssets

Governmental Activities

Balance Disposals Balance
June 30, 2009 Additions or Transfers June30. 2010

CapitalAssetsnotBeingDepreciated:

Land $ 69,117,014 $ 8,457,406 S S 77,574,420

Easements 11,544,500 11,544,500

Construction in Progress 43,067,711 63,048.432 14,779,980 91,336,163

TotalCapitalAssets notBeing Depreciated 123,729,225 71.505,838 14,779,980 180.455.083

OtherCapitalAssets:

BUildings &Improvements 131,304,438 7,160,614 138,465,052

Infrastructure 74,074,746 4,404,860 78,479,606

Equipment 46,499.498 5,190,819 2.000.372 49.689,945

Total OtherCapitalAssets 251,878,682 16,756,293 2,000,372 266,634,603

Accumulated Depreciation -

Buildings &Improvements 48,450,246 5,300,181 53,750,427

Accumulated Depreciation -

Infrastructure 8,839,411 3,105,688 11,945,099

Accumulated Depreciation -

Equipment 30,794,097 4,859,110 1,510,712 34,142.495

TotalAccumulated Depreciation 88,083,754 13.264,979 1 510,712 99,838,021

OtherCapitalAssets, Net 163.794.928 3.491314 489,660 166.796,582

Governmental Activities CapitalAssets, Net $ 287524153 $ 74997152 $15,269640 s 347251665

For the capital assets of the governmental activities, depreciation is computed on the straight-line method of depreciation over the

estimated usefullivesof the assets,which rangefrom five to twenty-five years. Depreciation expensefor the yearendedJune30, 2010

was $13,264,979 and the accumulated depreciationas of June 30, 2010 was $99,838,021.

Thedepreciation expense wasallocatedas follows:

General Government

PublicSafety

PublicWorks

PublicHeallh

PublicWelfare

CulturalandRecreation

Total

$ 3,046,066

4,153,510

3,799,707

147,567

189,558

1.928,571

$.1.3.264979
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4. CapitalAssets - Continued:

Business-Type Activities

CapitalAssetsnot BeingDepreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress

TotalCapitalAssetsnot BeingDepreciated

OtherCapital Assets:

BUildings & Improvements

Equipment

TotalOtherCapital Assets

Accumulated Depreciation -

Buildings &Improvements

Accumulated Depreciation ­

Equipment

TotalAccumulated Depreciation

OtherCapitalAssets, Net

Balance
June 30, 2009

S 13,802,425

672,020

14,474.445

11,509,121

4,350,540

15,859,661

4,742,363

2.517,575

7.259.938

8,599.723

S

Additions

1.486,923

1.486,923

159,317

159,317

460,365

444.082

904.447

(745.130>

Disposals
or Transfers

$

50.588

50,588

39,957

39,957

10631

Balance
June 30, 2010

s 13,802,425

2,158,943

15.961,368

11,509,121

4.459,269

15,968,390

5,202,728

2.921,700

8.124.428

7.843,962

Business-Type Activities CapitalAssets, Net S23 074168 S 741793 $ 10631 S 23805330

For the capital assetsof the business-type activities, depreciation is computed on the straight-line method of depreciation over the

estimated usefullives,whichrangefrom five to twenty.five years,of the assets, Depreciationexpense for theyearendedJune30, 2010

was $904,447 and the accumulated depreciation as of June30,2010 was $8,124,428,

The depreciation expense was allocated as follows:

Stormwater Utility

Lady'sIsland Airport

Hillon HeadAirport

Total

5, Long-Term Obligations

GeneralObligation Bonds

TIF Revenue Bonds

Advances fromGeneralFund

305,335

53,005

546,107

$ 904 447
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Activitles

s 201,355,000

59,715,000

$ 261070000

Business-Type
Activities

s

1.682.537
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

5. Long-Term Obligations- Continued:

General Obligation Bonds

In April 2001, the County issued $30,000,000 in General Obligation bonds, bearing interest rates of 4.375% to 5.25% and with varying

maturity dates through 2020. The proceeds ofthese bonds were used as follows: $10,000,000 for the purchase of real property programs

as approved by referendum in November 2000, $10,000,000 to pay the bond anticipation notes issued May 2000, and $10,000,000 for

various County projects including the purchase oftelecommunications equipment. the construction of additional facilities for the Detention

Center,the construction of additional hangars at the Lady's Island Airport, and for other governmental projects within the County.

In May 2002, the County issued $25,100,000 in General Obligation bonds, bearing interest rates of 3.0% to 4.875% and with varying

maturity dates through 2022. The proceeds of these bonds were used as follows: $10,950,000 to payoff the outstanding bonds and

related costs of the 1993 General Obligation issue and $14,000,000 for various County projects to include the purchase of

telecommunications equipment, improvements to various county parks, construction of solid waste drop off centers, and for other

government construction projects within the County.

In June 2003, the County issued $25,500,000 in General Obligation bonds, bearing interest rates of 2.0% to 5.0% and with varying

maturities through 2023. The proceeds of these bonds were used as follows: $10,000.000 for the purchase of real property program as

approved by referendum in November 2000, $5,000,000 for paving and improving roads within the County, and $10,500,000 for various

County projects including the purchase of telecommunications equipment, improvements to various County parks, and for other

governmental construction projects within the County.

In November 2004, the County issued $30,500,000 in General Obligation bonds bearing interest rates of 3.0% to 5,0% and with varying

maturities through 2025. The proceeds of these bonds were used as follows: $20,000,000 for the purchase of real property program as

approved by referendum in November 2000, and $10,500,000 for various County projects including the purchase of various public works

and public safety vehicles, improvements to various County parks, and for other governmental construction projects within the County.

In November 2006. the County issued $17,500,000 in General Obligation bonds bearing interest rates of 3.5% to 8.0% and with varying

maturities through 2026. The proceeds of these bonds were used for various County projects.

In December 2006, the County issued $30,000,000 in General Obligation bonds bearing interest rates of 4.0% to 6.75% and with varying

maturities through 2026. The proceeds of these bonds were used to ·pay off" the County's Bond Anticipation Notes of $25,000,000 and

provide additional funds for the construction of the Bluffton Parkway Project.

In September 2007, the County issued $25,500,000 of General Obligation Bonds bearing interest rates of 4.0% to 5.0% and with varying

maturity dates through 2027. $20,000,000 ofthe proceeds ofthese bonds was used forthe County's rural and critical lands projects, as

approved by referendum in November 2006, and the remaining $5,500,000 of the proceeds of these bonds was used for the Buckwalter

Parkway extension.
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5. LongTerm Obligations- Continued:

In October2007. the County issued$17,530,000 of GeneralObligationBondsbearing interest rates of 4.0% to 5.0% and withvarying

maturitydates through2020. The proceedsof these bondswere used for refunding a substantialportion of the 2001 County Bonds.

In March 2009, the County issued $5,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds bearing interest rates of 2.5% to 3.0% and with varying

maturitydates through2012. The proceedsof these bondswere used for variousCountyprojects.

InMarch2010,the Countyissued$48,755,000 of GeneralObligation BondsandBuildAmericaGeneralObligation Bondsbearing interest

rates of 2.0% to 5.625% and with maturitydates through 2029. The proceedsof these bonds were used to payoff the relatedbond

anticipation notesthatwere issued in March2009. $20,000,000of the proceedsofthe bondanticipation noteswereusedfor theCounty's

ruraland crilicallands projects and $28,755,000 of the proceedswere usedfor various Countyprojects.

The2001.2002,2003,2005,2006,2006B,2007.2007B,2009,2010A.and201OB generalobligationbondsare collateralized bythefull

faithand credit of the Countyand are payablefrom ad valoremtaxes.

General obligationbonds accountedfor in the County's Statementof Net Assets consist of the following at June 30, 2010:

Ratesand Original Outstanding
Description Dates Maturitv ~ at June 30 2010

2001 CountyBonds 4.375%- 5.25%
211 and 811 2020 30,000,000 1,530,000

2002 CountyBonds 3.0% - 4.875%
211 and 811 2022 25.100.000 11,505,000

2003CountyBonds 2.0%- 5.0%
211 and 811 2023 25,500,000 19.900,000

2005 CountyBonds 3.0%- 5.0%
211 and 811 2025 30.500.000 29,150,000

2006 CountyBonds 3.5%-8.0%
311 and 911 2026 17.500.000 15.600.000

2006BCountyBonds 4.0% -6.75%
311 and 911 2026 30,000.000 28,200,000

2007 CountyBonds 4.0% - 5.0%
311 and 911 2027 25.500,000 24.675.000

2007BCountyBonds 4.0%- 5.0%
211 and 811 2020 17,530,000 17.215,000

2009CountyBonds 2.5%- 3.0%
311 and 911 2012 5.000,000 4.825,000

2010ACountyBonds 2.0% - 5.0%
311 and 9/1 2029 24.205.000 24,205,000

2010BCountyBonds 4.7%- 5.625%
311 and 911 2029 24,550,000 24.550.000

$255385 000 $201355 000
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5. Long Term Obligations - Continued:

A schedule of the debt service requirements associated with the general obligation bonds follows:

Fiscal 2001 2002 2003 2005
Year County County County County

Ending Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds

2011 $ 1,598,850 $ 2,568,525 s 1,828.313 $ 1,795,375

2012 1,111,525 1,899,563 1,781.875

2013 1,113,681 1,966,563 1,917,250

2014 1,113,719 2,029,063 1,897,750

2015 1,116,562 2,086,813 2,176,750

2016-2020 5.628.269 10,531,565 12,434,750

2021-2025 2.271.000 6.230,313 22.581,250

Total 1,598,850 14,923,281 26,572,193 44,585,000

Less Amount

Representing Interest 68,850 3.418,281 6,672.193 15,435.000

Net S 15300aa S 11505000 S 19900000 S 29 150000

Fiscal 2006 2006B 2007 2007B
Year County County County County

Ending Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds

2011 S 1,266,563 S 1,989,250 S 1,623,031 $ 790,600

2012 1.292,563 2,057,250 1,727,031 2.373.800

2013 1,319,000 2,121,250 1,826.031 2.368.600

2014 1,343,625 2.181,250 1,920.031 2,356.000

2015 1,363,625 2.237.250 2,009.031 2,351.200

2016-2020 6.922,125 12,416,000 10,709.655 11,619.200

2021-2025 7,070,375 14,562,750 11,953.813

2026-2029 1,407,375 2811,375 4.999,063

Total 21,985.251 40,376.375 36,767.686 21.859,400

Less Amount

Representing Interest 6,385,251 12,176,375 12,092,686 4,644,400

Net s 15600000 $ 28 200 000 $ 24 675 000 $17 215 000
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5. Long Term Obligations - Continued:

Fiscal 2009 2010A 2010B
Year County County County

Ending Bonds Bonds Bonds Total

2011 s 1,960,625 s 1,061,606 $ 786,332 $17,269,070

2012 3,090,000 1,484,263 806,494 17,624,364

2013 3,299,263 806,494 16,738,132

2014 3,591,950 806,494 17,239,882

2015 3,606,875 806,494 17,754,600

2016-2020 18,196,750 4,032,470 92,490,784

2021-2025 21,931,492 86,600,993

2026-2029 6,148,295 15,366,108

Total 5,050,625 31,240,707 36,124,565 281,083,933

Less Amount

Representing Interest 225,625 7,035,707 11,574,565 79,728,933

Net S 4825.ono $ 24 205 000 S 24 550 000 $201355000

Total interest paid on bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2010 was $7,715,216.

The following is a schedule of principal payments for all general obligation bonds:

Fiscal Year
Ending

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016-2020

2021-2025

2026-2029

Total

Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bonds

Amount

s 8,925,000

9,555,000

8,995,000

9,800,000

10,650,000

64,915,000

74,280,000

14,235.000

$ 201355000

In December 2002, the County issued $40,000,000 in Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bonds for the New River TIF District, bearing

interest rates of 3,0% to 5.5% and with varying maturities through 2027. The proceeds of these bonds were used to provide infrastructure

and other improvements within the Tax Increment Financing District, including buildings for both the University of South Carolina ­

Beaufort and the Technical College of the Lowcountry, which the County owns.

In November 2003, the County issued $23,680,000 in Tax Increment Revenue Bonds for the Bluffton TIF District, bearing interest rates of

2.0% to 5,0% and with varying maturities through 2028. The proceeds of these bonds were used to pay the outstanding bond anticipation

note and to provide infrastructure improvements within the Tax Increment Financing District.
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5. Long Term Obligations - Continued:

The following is a schedule of the debt service requirements:

Fiscal Year New River Bluffton
Ending TIF TIF

2011 s 2,813,262 s 1,489,150

2012 2,993,463 1,575,275

2013 3,172,350 1,731,275

2014 3,349,950 1,905,275

2015 3,451,425 2,100,775

2016-2020 17,932,900 11,091,750

2021-2025 18,425,000 9,915,000

2026-2028 7,508.250 3,067,750

Total 59,646,600 32,876,250

Less Amount Representing Interest 20,986.600 11,821.250

Net $38660000 $21055000

Total

s 4,302,412

4,568,738

4,903,625

5,255,225

5,552,200

29,024,650

28,340,000

10,576.000

92,522,850

32,807.850

S59 715 000

Total interest paid on bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30, 2010 as $3,006,563.

Advances from General Fund

In September 2007, the County issued a note for $1,800,000 for the balance owed for the construction of hangers at the Hilton Head

Island Airport. The note is payable in quarterly payments of $31,634, including interest at 5.0% through June 2032,

Annual requirements to amortize the advances from general fund outstanding at June 30, 2010, are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Loan Payable

Ending to General Fund Principal Interest

2011 $ 126,535 $ 43,210 $ 83,325

2012 126,535 45,411 81,124

2013 126,535 47,725 78,810

2014 126,535 50,156 76,379

2015 126,535 52,711 73,824

2016-2020 632,674 306.679 325,995

2021-2025 632,674 393,174 239,500

2026-2030 632,674 504.064 128,610

2031-2032 253.070 239,407 13663

Total s 2783767 $ 1682537 $ 1 101230

Capital Lease

The County records capital lease payments as current year expenditures in the fund to which the lease applies. The County paid its sole

capital lease off early in the 2010 fiscal year. Total interest paid on the capital lease for the year ended June 30, 2010was approximately

$28,567 which was recorded as expenditure in the Special Revenue Fund for E-911 equipment.
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5. LongTermObligations - Continued:

Governmental ActivitiesChangesin Long-TermObligations

GeneralObligation Bonds

TIF Revenue Bonds

BondAnticipation Notes

Capital Leases

Totals

Balance
June 30, 2009

$ 159,305,000

60,575,000

48,755,000

178,390

$ 268813390

Additions

$ 48,755,000

$....A8J55.0OQ

Retirements

$ 6,705,000

860,000

48,755,000

178,390

s 56498390

Balance
June 30. 2010

$201,355,000

59,715,000

$261070000

Business-Type Activities Changesin Long-TermObligations

Advances from GeneralFund

Balance
June 30, 2009

$ 1723652

Additions

$,===~

Retirements

$ 41 115

Balance
June 30, 2010

S 1682537

Combined Changes in Long-Term Obligations

Balance Balance
June 30, 2009 Additions Retirements June30. 2010

General Obligation Bonds $ 159,305,000 $ 48,755,000 s 6,705,000 $201,355,000

TIF Revenue Bonds 60,575,000 860,000 59,715,000

BondAnticipation Notes 48,755,000 48,755,000

Advances from GeneralFund 1,723,652 41,115 1,682,537

CapitalLeases 178.390 178,390

Totals $ no 537 042 s 48755 DOD $-56539505 $262752537

Current Portion of LongTerm Obligations

The currentportionof long term obligations is computed as follows:

GeneralObligations Bonds $ 8,925,000

TIF RevenueBonds 1,245,000

Advances fromGeneralFund 43,210

$ 10213210

6. Accrued Compensated Absences

The County considersaccrued compensated absences to be reported as a currentand long term liability,

Governmental Activities Changesin Currentand Long-TermObligations

Balance
June 30, 2009
$ 3108435

Additions Retjrements
S 4142358 s 4 072 562

Balance
June30.2010
$ 3178231
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For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010

6. Accrued Compensated Absences- Continued:

Business-Type Activities Changes in Current and Long -TermObligations

Balance
June 30. 2009
s 109952

Additions
$---.15UMl

Retirements
s 148515

Balance
June 30 2010
s 116286

AmountDue
In One Year
s 5815

7. Interlund Transfers/ Due to GeneralFund

Interlundtransfers (in/out)were usedto move resources to/from otherfunds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, or other

requirements. Thesetransfers were permanentin natureandas suchthere are not any anticipated repayments. The following

interlundtransfers were madeduring the yearended June 30, 2010.

s 19663742

Recipient Fund

GeneralFund

CountyWide General Obligation Bonds

CountyWide General Obligation Bonds

CountyWide General Obligation Bonds

CountyWide General Obligation Bonds

SalesTaxProjects

2006 BondProjects

HiltonHeadAirport

Lady's IslandAirport

NonmajorSpecial Revenue Funds

NonmajorSpecial Revenue Funds

NonmajorSpecial Revenue Funds

NonmajorDebtService Funds

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Due to General Fund

Transferring Fund

Nonmajor SpecialRevenue Funds

2006 BondProjects

NonmajorCapitalProjectFunds

NonmajorSpecialRevenueFunds

NonmajorDebtServiceFunds

NonmajorSpecialRevenue Funds

NonmajorCapitalProjectFunds

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

Nonmajor CapitalProjectFunds

NonmajorSpecialRevenue Funds

Nonmajor SpecialRevenue Funds

2006 Bond Projects

NonmaJor CapitalProjectsFunds

s
Amount

2,754.899

925.117

359,942

4,230,778

326,556

1,998,239

557,777

150.000

100,000

3,743,821

703,134

28,934

3,488,774

39,223

256.548

Due to generalfund also included $1,850,782 at June 30, 2010 for advances for certain operatingexpenses of the airportenterprise

funds.
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8. Operating Leases

TheCounty leasescertainoffice space and machineryandequipmentundercancelableoperatingleases. Underthe termsof the lease

agreements, theCounty's obligationto continuerentalobligations is contingentuponthe continuedappropriation of funds bythe County

for thatpurpose. Total rentalexpenses for the year endedJune 30, 2010 were approximately$647,000.

The following is a scheduleof minimum commitments for operating lease payments:

FiscalYear
Ending Amount

2011 S 392,891

2012 154,827

2013 8,774

2014 12

2015 12

2016·2026 113

Total S ----.556 629

9. Deferred Compensation Plans

All stateand localgovemmentemployeescan participatein adeferredcompensation plan createdin accordance with Intemal Revenue

Code457. Theplan,administered by the statepublicemployee retirementsystemthrougha stateapproved nongovemmental thirdparty,

permitsgovernmental employeesto defer a portionof their salaryuntil future years. The deferred compensation is not availableto an

employee until termination, retirement. death, or unforeseeable emergency. Contributionsbyemployees underthe457 programtotaled

$257,561 for theyearendedJune 30, 2010. There areno employer contributions made by the Countyto this plan. Participantaccount

balances are not included in these financial statements.

County employees mayparticipatein a 401(k) or a Roth401(k)deferredcompensation plans availableto state and localgovernmental

employees throughthe state public employee retirementsystem. The 401(k) and Roth 401(k) programs are administeredby a state

approved nongovernmental third party. Contributionsby employees under the 401(k) and Roth 401(k) programstotaled $849,484and

$21,146, respectively, for the year ended June 30,2010. There are no employer contributions made by the County to these plans.

Participant accountbalancesare not included in these financial statements.

10. Relirement Plans

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board{GASB) issuedStatementNo. 27 entitledAccountingfor Pensionsby State and Local

Govemment Employees in November1994. ThisStatement wasamended with the issuanceof GASBStatement No.50entitled Pension

Disclosures- an amendment of GASBStatementsNo.25 andNo.27 in May2007. The followinginformationis providedin orderto meet

the disclosure requirements prescribed in paragraph20 of GASB27 and paragraph7 of GASB50.

SUbstantially all full time,permanentCountyemployees are required by law(Title 9 of the S. C.Code of Laws)to participatein statewide

costsharingmulliple-employer defined benefitpensionplansadministered bythe StateRetirement System. Generally allemployees. with

the exception of law enforcement personnel and certain others,participate in the South Carolina RetirementSystem (SCRS). Law

enforcement personnel and certain other employeesparticipate in the SouthCarolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS).
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10. Retirement Plans-Continued:

BoththeSouthCarolinaRetirementSystemand PoliceOfficersRetirementSystemoffer retirementanddisabilitybenefits,costof living

adjustments on an ad-hocbasis, life insurancebenefits, andsurvivorbenefits. The Plans'provisionsareestablished underTitle9 of the

SCCodeof Laws.

A Comprehensive AnnualFinancialReportcontainingfinancialstatements andrequired supplementary information forthe SouthCarolina

Retirement System and Police Officers RetirementSystem is issued and publicly available by writing the South Carolina Retirement

System, P.O.Box 11960, Columbia, SC 29211 -1960.

Actuarially established employercontribution ratesare as follows:

Retirement Program

Unfunded
Accrued

Normal Liabilitv

Accidental
Death

Program

Group
Life

Insurance
Program

SCRS

PORS

5.00%

8.43%

4.24%

2.22%

NJA

.20%

.15%

.20%

9.39%

11.05%

Contribution ratesaredevelopedbythe SCRSand PORSusingthe entryage normalcostmethod. The normalcontribution ratetocover

current cost has beendeterminedas a levelpercentage of payroll. A market relatedvalue of plan assets is used for actuarialvaluation

purposes. Gainsand lossesare reflectedin the unfunded accruedliabilitiesthat are beingamortizedbyregularannualcontributions asa

levelpercentof payrollwithin a 30 -year period, assuming 4.25 % annualpayrollgrowth for SCRSand PORS.

All employers contribute at the actuarially requiredcontribution rates.

Contribution Information:

CoveredPayroll

Employee Contributions

Employee Contribution Rate (Based uponSalary)

EmployerContributionRate; IncludesGroup

Life Coverage in both SCRS and PORS and

Accidental Death Coverage in PORS(Basedupon Salary)

SCRS

$ 34,377,071

2,231,812

6.50%

9.39%

PORS

s 16,927,063

1,100,258

6.50%

11.05%

TheCounty's employercontributionto the SCRSfor theyearsendedJune 30, 2010,2009 and 2008 were$3,228.011, $3,230,276, and

$2,966,289, respectively, which are equal to the requiredcontributions.

TheCounty's employercontributionto the PORSfor theyearsendedJune 3D,2010,2009 and 2008 were$1,870,440, $1,825,061, and

$1,609,117, respectively, which are equal to the requiredcontributions.

Vesting Requirements:

Wilh fIVe yearsof service,an employeeis entitledto adeferredannuitycommencing at age65 underSCRSand atage 55 underPORS.
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10. Retirement Plans- Continued:

Retirement Benefits:

Retirement benefits of participants in the SeRS and the PORS are currenlly determined as follows:

SCRS - The maximum monthly retirement allowance at age65 or28years'serviceisgenerallydetermined bythe following formula:

• Total 12 highest consecutive quarters of salary(divideby 3).

• Multiplythe amount by 1.82%.

• Multiplythe results by the totalmonths of creditable service.

• Divideresults by 12.

PORS • The retirement benefitat age 55 or 25 years' service is generally determined consistent with the aforementioned SeRB

formula, except that the average salary is multiplied by 2.14%for Class II members.

EarlyRetirement - SCRS

8!m
At least60

55

ServiceRequired

None

25

EarlyRetirement Penalty

5% for eachyearof age under65

4% for eachyearof serviceunder28

Full formula retirement is availablewith28yearsof service. regardless of age, or age 65.

Therearenoearlyretirement provisions underPORS. A member musthave25yearsservicefor full retirement ormustbeage55with5

yearsservice; bothcriteria providefor full formula benefitwithno reduction.

Employees eligiblefor service retirement mayparticipate in theTeacherandRetireeIncentive Program (TER!). TERIparticipants may

retire and begin accumulating retirement benefits on a deferred basis without terminating employment for up to five years. Upon

termination of employment or at the end of the TERI period, whichever is earlier, participants will begin receiving monthly service

retirement benefitswhichwill includeanycostof livingadjustments grantedduringtheTERIperiod. Because participants areconsidered

retired during the TERIperiod, theydo not earn service credit, and are ineligible to receive group life insurance benefitsor disability

retirement benefits. Effective July1,2006,TERI participants whoenteredtheprogram before July1,2005donothavetocontribute SCRS

as longas theyarecovered undertheTERI program.

Disability Retirement

In orderto receive Disability Retirement benefits, an employee musthave5 yearsof credited serviceunlessthe injuryis job related.

Recipients receive aservice retirement benefitbaseduponcontinued service to age65 forSCRSandto age55forPORS withnochange

in compensation.

Accidental DeathProgram

Underthisprovision of the PORS, anannuity isprovided to thesurviving spouse (or thespecified beneficiary) of a memberwhosedeath

was whilein performance of duty. Theannuitywouldequal50% of members' compensation at the timeof death.
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10. Retirement Plans- Continued:

GroupLife Insurance Benefits

A lump-sum payment equaltooneyear' s salaryis payableto the beneficiaryuponthe deathof anactivememberwijhat leastoneyearof

service. There is no service requirement for death resultingfrom actual performanceof duties. Lump-sumpayments of up to $6,000

(SCRSandPCRS)are payableto a retiree's beneficiarybased upon years of service at retirement.

Withdrawalof Employee Contribution

Accumulated contributions andcreditedinterestpayableare paidwithin6 monthsbut not lessthan90 daysaftertermination of allcovered

employment.

Post Retirement Increase

Annual increases in retirement benefitsare calculatedat 4% peryear,providedtheConsumerPriceIndex(CPI)forthepriorcalendar year

was 3%orhigher. If the CPI is less than 3%, CPI is granted. Increasesare approvedannuallySUbject to compliancewith fundingpolicy.

Statewide PlanActuarial Information

TheSouthCarolinaRetirement Systemsdo notdetermineseparate measurements of assetsandpensionbenefitobligations for individual

employers. Anactuarialvaluationis performedfor the systems annually. Nochangesin actuarialassumptions orbenefitprovisions have

occurred subsequent to July 1, 1995. The interest rate assumption for actuarial purposes is 8%. An assumption of future COLA

adjustments was removed(SCRSand PORS) and the methodof valuing assetswas changed from book value to a smoothed market

value.

The Systems usea projectedbenefit methodfor actuarialvaluationwith levelpercentageentryage, normalcostandopen-end unfunded

accruedliability. At July 1, 2009, based upon the actuarialmethodused for funding purposes:

Unfunded Accrued Liability

Liquidation Period

11. Other PostEmployment Benefits (OPES)

Plan Description

$

SCRS

11,967,000,000

30 years

$

PORS

1,082,000,000

30 years

The Countyprovidespost-retirement health, life anddentalcarebenefits,asper the requirements of a localordinance, forcertain retirees.

Itsplan is a single-employer defined benefit plan. Substantially all employeeswho retire under the State retirements plansareeligible to

continuetheircoveragewith the County paying100%of the premiumfor thosewith 28 or more yearsof service,75% of the premiumfor

thosewith20 yearsto 27 yearsof service and 50% of the premiumfor thosewijh 15years to 20 years of service. OnJune 9, 2008. the

Countyclosedthesebenefitsto all employeeshiredafterJune9, 2008. As of year-endthere were61 employeeswhohadretired withthe

Countyandwere receivinghealth insurancebenefits.
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11. OtherPostEmployment Benefits (OPEB)- Continued:

FundingPolicy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Countyare established and may be amended by the County. The required

contribution is currently based on pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the County recognized

expenditures of $10,796,129 for current healthcarepremiums.

AnnualOPEBCost and Net OPEB Obligation

The County's annualOPEB cost is calculatedbased on the annualrequired contribution of the employer(ARC).an amountactuarily

determined in accordance with the parametersof GASBStatement 45. TheARCrepresentsa levelof fundingthat, if paid on anongoing

basis,is projected to covernormalcosteach yearandamortize anyunfundedactuarial liabilities(or fundingexcess)over a periodnot to

exceed 30 years. The following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually

contributed to the plan, and changes in the County'snet OPES:

Governmental Business-Ivpe

NormalCost for CurrentYear s 2,321,526 s 105,833

Amortization of Unamortized Accrued liability 1677.550 76475

AnnualRequired Contribution (ARC) 3,999,076 182,308

Interest on Net OPEBObligation 237,764 10,839

Adjustment to AnnualRequired Contribution (205,129) (9.351)

Annual OPEBCost 4,031,711 183,796

Contributions Made (496065) (22,614)

Increase in NetOPEBObligation 3,535,646 161,182

NetObligation - Beginningof Year 5,939,451 270.354

NetObligation - End of Year $ 9415.091 s 431536

TheCounty's annualOPEBcost, the percentageof annualOPEBcostcontributed to the plan, and the netOPEBobligationfor the 2010

fiscalyearwere as follows:

Percentage
Fiscal of Annual
Year Annual OPEBCost NetOPEB

Ending OPEBCost Contributed Obligation

2010 $4,215,507 12.30% s 9,906,633

2009 3,601,597 21,48% 6,209,805

2008 3,381,788 0% 3,381,788

Funded StatusandFunding Progress

As of January1,2010,the most recentactuarialvaluationdate,the planwas 0.0%funded. The actuarialaccruedliability forbenefrts was

546.2million,resulling in an unfundedactuarialaccruedliability(UAAL)of 546,2million, Also, the unfundedactuarialaccruedliabilityis

beingamortized byanopen or rolling amortization period(withre-amortization ofthe UAALin eachvaluation),absentactuarial gains. As

such,theUAALamountwill never be fully eliminated. Thecovered payroll(annualpayroll of activeemployeescoveredbythe plan)was

549,632,784, and the ratio of the UAAL to the coveredpayrollwas 93.0percent.
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11. OtherPostEmployment Benefits(OPEB)- Continued:

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involveestimates of the value of reported amountsand assumptions about the probability of

occurrence ofeventsfar intothe future. Examples includeassumptions aboutfuture employment, mortality, andthehealthcare costtrend.

Amounts determined regarding the funding statusof theplanandannualrequiredcontributions of theemployeraresubjectto continual

revision as actualresultsare compared with past expectations and new estimatesare madeaboutthe future. The scheduleof funding

progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presentsmulti-year trend

information aboutwhetheractuarialvalueof planassetsis increasing ordecreasingovertimerelative totheactuarial accrued liabilities for

benefits.

Funded StatusandFundingProgress

Projections ofbenefitsfor financialreportingpurposes arebasedon thesubstantive plan (theplanasunderstood bytheemployer andthe

planmembers) andincludethe typesof benefitsprovided at the timeof eachvaluation andthehistorical pattern ofsharing of benefit costs

between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are

designed to reduce the effectsof short-term volatility in actuarialaccruedliabilitiesand the actuarialvalue of assets,consistent withthe

long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, 2010 actuarialvaluation, the projected unit credit method was used. The actuarialassumptions includeda 4.00%

investment rateof return(netof administrative expenses), whichis the blendedrateof theexpected long-term investment returns onplan

assets ontheCounty's own investments calculated basedonthe fundedlevelof theplan at thevaluation date,andan annualheallhcare

cost trendrate of 8.00%in 2010 decreasing to the ultimate rate of 4.50% in 2027. Also, the actuarialassumptions includeda 3.75%

annual salaryrate increase and 2.5%for an annual inflation rate. The UAALis being amortized via the levelpercentage method, which

amortizes the UAALas a constantpercentof payroll. The remaining amortization period at June 30,2010was 28 years.

12. Accrued Compensated Absences and Other Benefits

Effective February 15,1993,BeaufortCountyadopted a newleavepolicyfor all employees. TheTOWP/SCApolicywas replaced witha

policygranting Personal Leave Days and Personal Disability Leave. Under the new policy, employees were entitled to a maximum

Personal Leave balance of 280 hours. Upon termination, employees will be paid for all unused, unpaid Personal Leave up to this

maximum. The liabilityrecordedatJune 30,2010,to coverunused. unpaidPersonalLeaveincludingfringebenefitstotaled$3,294,518.

The County reports $158,912as a current liabilityand S3,019,320 as a long-termliabilityfor governmental activities, while S5,815 as a

current liabilityand $110,471 as a long-term liabilityfor business-type activities.

All leavehoursaccrued inexcessof thisPersonalLeavemaximum wereaccruedto theemployee's Personal Disabilityleaveaccount. A

maximum of 360hoursmaybe maintained in anemployee's PersonalDisabilityleaveaccount. The onlyaccrualto this balance occurs

whenanemployee's Personal Leaveaccountexceeds 280 hours,atwhich timeexcesshoursare"rolledover"to the PersonalDisability

leaveaccount. Personal Disabilityleaveis to be usedin thecaseof anextendedor life threatening illness. Thisaccount canonlybeused

onceall accrued hoursin the PersonalLeaveaccounthavebeen usedto a balanceof 80 hoursor less. Theemployeemustpresenta

doctor's statement verifying the disabilityor illnessin order to utilizehislher PersonalDisabilityleave. Employees with remaining SCA

leavebalances mayretainthosebalances. Thesamerulesgoverning theuse of PersonalDisabilityleaveapplyto the useofSCAleave.

Upontermination of employment with BeaufortCounty, no payment for any unusedSCA or Personal Disabilityleave will be made.
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12. Accrued Compensated Absences and Other Benefits- Continued:

The County does not provide post employment health care benefits except those mandated by the Consolidated Omnibus BUdget

Reconciliation Act (COBRA). The requirements established byCOBRAarefully fundedbyemployeeswhoelectcoverage undertheAct,

and no directcostsare incurredby the County.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

On November 22, 1991, the County entered into a 20 year lease agreementwith the General ServicesAdministration of the U. S.

Government (GSA) for the use of the former Beaufort County Courthouse building by GSA as a Federal Courthouse. Under this

agreement, the Countyrenovated the building in accordance with GSAspecifications atan approximate costof $1,933,744. Financing

hasbeenarranged for the fundingof thesecostsandthe County hasassignedall rightsand interestin the leasepayments fromGSAto

the lender. The termsand required payments on the lease are the same as the terms and required payments on the loan. After the

payment of the roan and the end of the lease term, the assetwill remainas propertyof the County.

Arbitrage rules- Stateandlocalbondsissuedafter1984aresubjectto arbitrage restrictions as enactedbytheFederalGovernment. To

retain thebonds'taxexemptstatus,localgovernments mustcomplywiththe regulations as adopted bythegovernment expendallofthe

bondproceeds withindesignated periods which could be up to three years. The Countybelievesit is in compliance with all arbitrage

rules.

As of June30, 2010,the Countyhas outstanding construction contracts of $36,158,985.

14. RiskManagement and Litigation

The County is exposed to variousrisksof losses relatedto torts; theftsof; damageto and destruction of assets;errorsand omissions;

injuries to employees; and natural disaster. The Countymanages risk through employee educationaland prevention programs and

through the purchase of casualtyand liabilityinsurance. All riskmanagement activitiesare accounted for in the GeneralFund.

Forall of these risks,the Countyis a memberof the Stateof SouthCarolina Insurance Reserve Fund,a public entityriskpool currently

operating as a common risk management and insuranceprogram for local governments. The Countypaysan annualpremium to the

State Insurance Reserve Fund for its insurance coverage. The State Insurance Reserve Fund is self-sustaining through member

premiums and reinsures throughcommercial companies for certain claims.

Expenditures and claimsare recognized when it is probablethat a ross has occurred and the amountof the loss can be reasonability

estimated. In determining claims, eventsthat mightcreateclaims, but for which none have been reported are considered.

The Countyis a partyto several lawsuits which seek to recoverpropertytaxespaid underprotestand to overturnpropertysold at "tax

sales." The County'sattorneyestimates that the amount of actual or potentialclaims against the County at June 30, 2010 will not

materially affect the financialconditions of the County. Therefore, the GeneralFundcontains no provisionfor estimated claims.

The Countyhas not significantly reduced insurancecoverage from the previousyear nor has it settledclaims in excessof insurance

coverage for the last threeyearsthat were material.
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15. Fund Equity Deficit

At June 30, 2010, the accommodations tax program fund had a deficit balance of $25,535. However, the negative fund balance is offset

bya positive fund balance in the general fund.

-68 -



Beaufort County

So uth Carolina

Photo hy Chris Kirk

Loca l residents enjoy many oppo rtunities for subsidizing family grocery hills. The- lagoo ns.

estuaries. rivers. beaches. sounds and waterways of B eau fort County arc num erous a nd full of

popular fish species
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Groups of Brown Pelicans arc often seen flying single file in low formation over Beaufort

County waterways. They swoop near the shorelines of the County ' s approximate ly 300 islands.

diving for fish and crustaceans . Years ago. the Brown Pel ican was nearly eliminated by DDT.

But since the ban on the pestic ide in 1972. Brown Pelican numbers have been on the rise.



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FORTHERETIREEHEALTHPLAN

JUNE30,2010

Schedule1

Actuarial

Accrued

Employer Liability UAALas a

Contributions Actuarial (AAl)- Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial to the Value of Projected AAl Funded Covered of Covered

Fiscal Valuation Retiree Assets UnitCredit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Year Date HealthPlan (a) (b) (b - a) (a1b) (c) «b - a) 1c)

2008 1/1/2008 34,195,432 34,195,432 0.0% 46,695,744 73.2%

2009 1/1/2009 773,580 37.444.707 37,444,707 0.0% 51,950,234 72.1 "10
2010 1/1/2010 518,679 46,166,895 46,166,895 0.0% 49,632,784 93.0%
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Schedule A-1

Sheet 1

Revenues

Property Taxes

Current Taxes

Delinquent Taxes

Automobile Taxes

Penalties

Licenses and Permits

Building Permits

Electrician Licenses

Mobile Home Permits

Marriage Licenses

Animal Licenses

Other Licenses

Cable Franchise Fees

Business Licenses

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

$ 70,378,093 $ 64,412,525 S (5,965,568)

3,300,000 3,785,468 485,468

3,670,200 3,056,377 (613,823)

1,527,235 1,527,236 1

78,875,528 72,781,606 (6,093.922)

834,763 464,341 (370,422)

16.000 14,560 (1,440)

3.175 3.175

. 88.000 80,655 (7,345)

15,500 9.138 (6,362)

84.670 85,150 480

427,370 456,517 29,147

1.313,522 1.293,245 (20,277)

2,783,000 2.406.781 (376.219)

Intergovernmental

State Aid to Subdivisions 5,274,097 5,549,391 275,294

Homestead Exemption 1,030,000 1,121,351 91,351

Merchants' Inventory Tax 186,308 186,309 1

Manufacturers Tax 38,000 46,787 8,787

Motor Carrier Tax 55,860 55,860

Payments in Lieu of Taxes 85,000 138,445 53,445

Veterans Office Stipend 5,267 5,267

Registration and Election 5,942 85,591 79,649

Salary Supplements 7,875 7,875

State Aid to Libraries 159.636 159,636

Tille IV-D Unit Cost 49,011 316,825 267,814

State Aid - Traffic Signals 128,439 128,440 1

State Grant Funds 1,349 1,349

Federal Grant Funds 45,840 31,996 (13,844)

Pollution Control Penalties 5.568 5,568

7,078.192 7,840.690 762,498
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Schedule A-1

Sheet 2

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Charges for Services

Register of Deeds Fees $ 2,560,407 S 2,564,610 S 4,203

Sheriffs Fees 72,923 72,924 1

Probate Court Fees 436,574 478,206 41,632

Magistrates' Civil Fees 188,328 201,870 13,542

Clerk of Court Fees 233,000 286,776 53,776

Family Court Fees 407,362 370,591 (36,771)

Master in Equity Fees 1,097,014 1,336,819 239,805

Tresurer's Fees 5,000 66,498 61,498

Credit Card Convenience Fees 97,313 97,313

EMS Fees 2,027,750 2,044,467 16,717

Solid Waste Disposal Fees 4,550 4,550

DSO I Rezoning I CRB Fees 46,200 53,927 7,727

Vital Statistics 32,000 38,198 6,198

Animal Shelter Fees 28,750 33,122 4,372

Recreation Fees 489,990 565,279 75,289

Sheriffs Service Contracts 2,589,253 2,576,135 (13,118)

Telephone Reimbursements 22,500 27,111 4,611

Solicitor Worthless Check Program 8,406 8,406

Other Fees and Reimbursements 19,550 44,862 25,312

10,358,464 10.871.664 513.200

Fines and Forfeitures

Clerk of Court Fines 12,500 40,740 28,240

Bond Escreatment 2,488 2,488

Magistrates' Court Fines 720,000 863,968 143,968

Library Fines 100,000 130,259 30.259

Other Fines 750 750

Forfeitures 15.162 75.987 60.825

850,150 1,114,192 264,042

Interest 981,892 535.064 (446,828)

Miscellaneous

Rental of County Property 105,164 131,537 26,373

Sale of County Property 319,419 429,137 109,718

Miscellaneous 99,087 223.968 124.881

523,670 784,642 260.972

Total Revenues
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GMP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Expenditures

General Govemment

County Council

Personnel $ 551,603 $ 498,619 $ 52.984

Purchased Services 132,568 114,292 18.276

Supplies 23,177 22,824 353

Other 25.000 25,000

732.348 635,735 96.613

Auditor

Personnel 574,288 587,691 (13.403)

Purchased Services 41,263 49,378 (8.115)

Supplies 8.200 6,583 1,617

623.751 643,652 (19.901)

Treasurer

Personnel 561.894 560,392 1,502

Purchased Services 208.774 215,075 (6.301)

Supplies 33.543 33,487 56

804.211 808.954 (4.743)

Tax Billings and Credit Card Fees

Purchased Services 128,110 128,110

Supplies 2.046 2,046

Other 1,197,493 1.197,493

1.327.649 1.327,649

Clerk of Court

Personnel 744,246 641.225 103.021

Purchased Services 334,135 301,631 32.504

Supplies 23,500 20,618 2.882

1,101.881 963,474 138,407

Family Court

Personnel 320,086 249,298 70,788

Purchased Services 71,182 75,528 (4,346)

Supplies 9.000 12.255 (3.255)

400.268 337.081 63.187

Probate Court

Personnel 799,156 775,415 23,741

Purchased Services 72,729 64,313 8.416

Supplies 9.076 9,447 (371)

880.961 849,175 31.786
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Coroner

Personnel $ 274,604 $ 228,587 $ 46,017

Purchased Services 102,547 126,779 (24,232)

Supplies 23,098 18,524 4.574

400,249 373,890 26.359

Magistrates Court

Personnel 1,466,310 1,243,878 222,432

Purchased Services 292,997 289,565 3,432

Supplies 32.876 27,220 5,656

1,792.183 1,560.663 231,520

Schedule A-2

Sheet 2

Master in Equity

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

General Subsidies

292,523

8,100

3.300

303,923

1,634,513

300,015 (7,492)

6,566 1,534

2,852 448

309,433 (5,510)

1.631,125 3,388

County Administrator

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

Other

Housing Coordinator

Other

Public Information Officer

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

Capital

- 73-

437,284

108,183

16,856

57,239

619,562

206,706

35,175

19,486

2,457

263,824

430,770

472,704

16,068

919,542

3,750

215.858

42,761

22,796

104.594

386.009

6,514

(364,521)

788

57.239

(299.980)

(3.750)

(9,152)

(7,586)

(3,310)

(102.137)

(122,185)



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Schedule A-2

Sheet 3

County Attorney

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

Internal Auditor

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

S 67.734 S 59.715 S 8.019

502.966 492.215 10,751

5,384 4.189 1,195

576,084 556.119 19.965

107,482 107,479 3

4,096 4,095 1

136 136

111,714 111,710 4

Voter Registration and Elections

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

Assessor

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

640.947

23,502

63,117

727,566

2.378,064

152,965

31.363

2.562.392

566,651

94,136

32,975

693,762

2.288.691

110,435

30.190

2,429.316

74,296

(70,634)

30.142

33,804

89,373

42.530

1.173

133,076

Register of Deeds

Personnel 430.591 406,638 23,953

Purchased Services 123.122 110,019 13,103

Supplies 20,912 17.736 3,176

Capital 13.682 13,681 1

588,307 548.074 40,233

Risk Management

Personnel 123.837 123,251 586

Purchased Services 9.051 8,686 365

Supplies 3,685 3,709 (24)

136.573 135,646 927
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Legislative Delegation

Personnel S 81.663 S 81,156 S 507

Purchased Services 2,450 2,038 412

Supplies 700 431 269

84,813 83,625 1.188

Zoning and Development

Personnel 229,530 229.440 90

Purchased Services 18,640 6,798 11,842

Supplies 5,160 4,051 1.109

253.330 240.289 13.041

Planning and Comprehensive Plan

Personnel 809,352 809,165 187

Purchased Services 195,463 94,228 101.235

Supplies 9.032 9,657 (625)

1.013.847 913,050 100.797

GIS

Personnel 415,736 412,980 2,756

Purchased Services 101.049 149.836 (48.787)

Supplies 13,805 18.570 (4,765)

Capital 14,575 14,439 136

545,165 595.825 (50.660)

DA-Community Services

Personnel 143.821 122.517 21.304

Purchased Services 91.534 58.552 32.982

Supplies 1,816 698 1.118

Other 20,000 26,233 (6.233)

257,171 208,000 49.171

Schedule A-2
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Staff Services

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

Employee Services

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

- 75-

350,050

31.329

34.797

416.176

590,064

200.000

15.500

805,564

361.895

41.817

24.062

427,774

634,608

287,433

14,725

936.766

(11,845)

(10,488)

10.735

(11.598)

(44,544)

(87,433)

775

(131.202)



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
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Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Records Management

Personnel s 195,032 S 159,793 S 35,239

Purchased Services 40,479 30,120 10,359

Supplies 11,702 9,188 2.514

247,213 199,101 48,112

Finance

Personnel 481,594 481,589 5

Purchased Services 42,288 42,284 4

Supplies 22,571 22,568 3

546,453 546,441 12

Purchasing

Personnel 204,766 198,240 6,526

Purchased Services 56,569 44,038 12,531

Supplies 6,434 6.039 395

267,769 248.317 19,452

Business License

Personnel 197,841 131,214 66.627

Purchased Services 398,823 341,699 57,124

Supplies 3.038 1.447 1.591

599,702 474.360 125.342

Management Information Systems

Personnel 1,442,401 1.522.039 (79,638)

Purchased Services 393,315 347.634 45,681

Supplies 116,188 101,732 14,456

Capital 554,304 533,801 20,503

2.506,208 2.505,206 1.002

DA-Public Services

Personnel 269,453 250,978 18,475

Purchased Services 5,800 5,637 163

Supplies 250 284 (34)

275,503 256,899 18,604

General Government Current Expenditures

General Government Capital Expenditures

Total General Government
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22,821,855

585018

23.406,873

22,193,897

666.515

22,860.412

627,958

(81.497)

546,461



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GMP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Public Safely

Sheriffs Office

Personnel S 16,974,276 S 16,476,939 S 497,337

Purchased Services 1,670,260 1,614.725 55.535

Supplies 1,576.953 1,454.022 122.931

Capital 478.913 861.786 (382.873)

20.700,402 20,407,472 292.930

Emergency Management

Personnel 566,698 496.822 69,876

Purchased Services 137,386 132,738 4,648

Supplies 31,917 31,234 683

Other 10,000 10.000

746,001 67°.794 75.207

Communications I Traffic Management

Personnel 3,413,483 3.176,484 236.999

Purchased Services 2,469,045 2.295,404 173,641

Supplies 195.504 184,853 10.651

Capital 28.228 28,127 101

Other 75,000 75.000

6,181,260 5.759,868 421,392

Emergency Medical Services

Personnel 5,470,427 5.079,512 390,915

Purchased Services 371,120 384,330 (13,210)
Supplies 374,840 365,178 9,662
Other 130,500 130,586 (86)

6.346,887 5.959.606 387,281

Detention Center

Personnel 5,011,222 4,893.313 117.909

Purchased Services 1,422,685 1,352.165 70,520

Supplies 190,178 156.820 33,358

Capital 156,932 6.943 149.989

6.781,017 6,409.241 371.776
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GMP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Building Codes and Inspections

Personnel S 1,122.692 S 1,105,300 S 17,392

Purchased Services 178,192 169,753 8,439

Supplies 32.146 36,635 (4,489)

1,333,030 1,311,688 21,342

Public Safely Current Expenditures 41,424,524 39,621,813 1,802,711

Public Safely Capital Expenditures 664,073 896,856 (232,783)

Total Public Safely 42,088,597 40,518,669 1,569,928

Public Works

Facilities Maintenance

Personnel 2.944,094 2,620.583 323,511

Purchased Services 2.567,159 2,780.795 (213,636)

Supplies 564,639 515.875 48,764

6.075.892 5,917.253 158.639

Public Works

Personnel 2,265,684 2.052.886 212.798

Purchased Services 567,452 596.294 (28.842)

Supplies 477,483 468.816 8,667

3.310.619 3,117,996 192,623

Engineering

Personnel 478,191 365,473 112,718

Purchased Services 43,237 48,327 (5,090)

Supplies 30.683 36.271 (5.588)

552,111 450.071 102,040

Solid Waste I Recycling

Personnel 1,462,331 1,435,597 26,734

Purchased Services 4,437,220 3,893,942 543,278

Supplies 97.601 96,780 821

Capital 431,922 285,348 146,574

6,429,074 5,711,667 717,407

Schedule A-2
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Public Works Current Expenditures

Public Works Capital Expenditures

Total Public Works
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15.935,774

431,922

16.367,696

14,911,639

285,348

15,196.987

1,024,135

146.574

1,170.709



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Public Health

Animal Shelter and Control

Personnel $ 723,760 $ 697,712 s 26.048

Purchased Services 54,931 54,716 215

Supplies 147,297 146,912 385

925.988 899,340 26,648

Mosquito Control

Personnel 855,048 810,289 44,759

Purchased Services 287.729 269,628 18,101

Supplies 556.108 534.332 21,776

Capital 98.939 99,837 (898)

1.797.824 1,714.086 83,738

Environmental Science

Other 300.000 5.000 295,000

Public Health Subsidies 2,613,567 2.630.740 (17.173)

Public Health Current Expenditures 5,538,440 5,149,329 317,161

Public Health Capital Expenditures 98,939 99,837 (898)

Total Public Health 5,637,379 5.249,166 388,213

Public Welfare

Veterans Affairs Office

Personnel 208.072 177,678 30,394

Purchased Services 19,987 13,461 6,526

Supplies 4,800 3.067 1.733

232,859 194,206 38.653

Department of Social Services

Personnel 25,305 1,418 23,887

Purchased Services 142,090 115,557 26,533

Supplies 960 130 830
Other 79.000 79,000

247.355 196,105 51,250

Public Welfare Subsidies 484.000 481,320 2,680

Schedule A·2
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Public Welfare Current Expenditures

Total Public Welfare
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Cultural and Recreation

Parks and Leisure Services

Personnel $ 2,513,410 $ 2,267,693 $ 245.717

Purchased Services 1,412,908 1,436,822 (23,914)

Supplies 239,096 215.133 23,963

Capital 60,520 26.911 33,609

Other 140,000 140,000

4.365,934 4,086.559 279.375

3.455,931 3,211.074 244,857

448,171 470,398 (22,227)

597,653 610.248 (12,595)

25,365 3,624 21,741

4,527,120 4.295.344 231,776

4,716,300 4.716.300

Libraries

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

Capital

Cultural and Recreation Subsidies

Cultural and Recreation Current Expenditures

Cultural and Recreation Capital Expenditures

Total Cultural and Recreation

13,523,469

85.885

13.609,354

13,067,668

30.535

13,098,203

455,801

55.350

511.151

Total Current Expenditures

Total Capital Expenditures

Total Expenditures

100.208.276

1.865,837

$ 102,074,113

95.815.977

1.979.091

$ 97,795,068

4.392.299

(113,254)

$ 4,279.045
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Bea ufort County

South Caro lina

Photo byMichelle Vi/ale

Dogs. docks and boats arc a compatible combination in Beaufort County where water

recreation is pr ized. Recreational fishi ng fro m a bridge. dock. boat. inshore or offshore. is

common practice and such species as sheepshcad . flounder. croaker. sea trou t. whiting

and cobia arc plentiful.



Beau fort County

South Carolina

Photo by Jfollica Wiser

Sunlight filtered through the branches of trees on sunny mornin gs 111 Beaufo rt County creates

shafts of light and shadow thai can mesmerize the beholder. A forest of oak s and pines lines

either side ofa roadway in one ofmany rural. undeveloped parts of the County.



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30. 2010

Schedule B-1

Total

Special Debt Capital Nonmajor

Revenue Service Projects Governmental

Funds Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 31,159,922 S 15,165.957 S 18,121.042 S 64,446,921

Receivables, Net 1,175,171 1,175,171

Due from Other Governments 1,355,605 1,355,605

Prepaid Items 5,597 5,597

Total Assets S 33.696,295 S 15.165.957 S 18,121.042 S 66,983,294

LIABILITIES AND FUND EaUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable s 2.294.304 $ s 578.545 S 2,872,849

Accrued Payroll 486,803 486,803

Due to Others 67.918 67.918

Defered Properly Tax Revenue 70,468 70,468

Deferred Revenue 96,438 96,438

Total Liabilities 3.015,931 578.545 3.594,476

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for Encumbrances 2.541.893 2.029.583 4,571,476

Reserved for Capital Projects 15.512,914 15,512,914

Reserved for Debt Service 15,165,957 15,165,957

Reserved for Special Revenue Funds 28,138,471 28,138,471

Total Fund Balance 30.680,364 15,165,957 17,542,497 63.388,818

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 33.696,295 $ 15,165,957 $ 18,121,042 S 66.983,294
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the YearEnded June 30, 2010

SpecialRevenueFunds

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

PropertyTaxes $ 3,916,071 S 3.802.558 $ (113.513)

Licenses andPermits 8.038,223 5.617.267 (2.420.956)

Intergovernmental 11.419.116 10.814.089 (605.027)

Chargefor Services 4,217.694 4,800,871 583.177

Finesand Forfeitures 278,652 368.885 90,233

Interest 25,665 154.611 128.946

Miscellaneous 1.020,147 807.995 (212.152)

TotalRevenues 28.915,568 26.366.276 (2,549.292)

Expenditures

General Government 5.145,791 4,597,637 548.154

PublicSafely 3.180,166 2.920.778 259.388

PublicWorks 640.912 502.992 137.920

PublicHealth 7,311.476 6.896.376 415.100
PublicWelfare 950.901 951.537 (636)

Cultural andRecreation 545.146 667.321 (122,175)

CapitalProjects 12.147.682 6.793,552 5.354.130

Total Expenditures 29.922.074 23.330.193 6.591.881

Excess of Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures (1.006.506) 3.036.083 4.042.589

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 5,095.737 4.475.889 (619.848)
Transfers Out (11.703.978) (12.501.624) (797.646)

Total OtherFinancing Sources(Uses) (6.608.241 ) (8.025.735) (1.417.494)

NetChange in FundBalance (7.614,747) (4,989.652) 2.625.095

FundBalanceat the Beginning of the Year 35.670.016 35.670.016

FundBalanceat the Endof the Year $ 28.055.269 s 30.680.364 S 2.625.095
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTHCAROLINA

STATEMENTOF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year EndedJune 30. 2010

Debt Service Funds
Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

PropertyTaxes $ 818,000 $ 821.578 s 3.578

Intergovernmental 740,000 740.000
Interest 77,474 82.922 5.448

Total Revenues 1.635.474 1,644.500 9.026

Expenditures

DebtService- Principal 980,000 980.000

DebtService- Interestand Fees 2.262,250 2.262.250

Total Expenditures 3.242,250 3.242.250

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1.606,776) (1.597.750) 9,026

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 2,892.683 3.488,774 596,091

Transfers Out (326.556) (326,556)

Total OtherFinancing Sources (Uses) 2,566,127 3,162,218 596.091

Net Change in Fund Balance 959.351 1,564.468 605.117

FundBalance at the Beginning of the Year 13.601.489 13.601,489

FundBalanceat the End of the Year s 14.560.840 S 15.165.957 s 605.117
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORGOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Vear EndedJune 30, 2010

Capital Projects Funds

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property Taxes S 19,750 S 23,809 S 4,059

Intergovernmental 139,297 139,297

Interest 23,387 21,147 (2.240)

TotalRevenues 182,434 184,253 1.819

Expenditures

CapitalProjects 24.179,464 13,814,193 10.365.271

TotalExpenditures 24,179,464 13,814.193 10.365.271

Excessof RevenuesOver (Under)Expenditures (23,997.030) (13.629.940) 10.367,090

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Transfers In 295,771 295,771

Transfers Out (1.877,401) (1,877,401)

TotalOther Financing Sources(Uses) (1.581,630) (1,581,630)

Net Change in FundBalance (25.578,660) (15,211.570) 10.367.090

FundBalance at the Beginning of the Year 32.754,067 32.754.067

FundBalanceat the End of the Year S 7.175,407 S 17.542,497 S 10,367.090
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property Taxes $ 4.753.821 s 4.647.945 S (105.876)

Licenses and Permits 8,038,223 5,617,267 (2,420.956)

Intergovernmental 12,298.413 11.693,386 (605.027)

Charge for Services 4.217,694 4,800.871 583.177

Fines and Forfeitures 278.652 368.885 90.233

Interest 126.526 258.680 132,154

Miscellaneous 1.020,147 807.995 (212.152)

Total Revenues 30.733.476 28.195.029 (2.538,447)

Expenditures

General Government 5.145.791 4.597.637 548.154

Public Safety 3.180.166 2.920.778 259.388

Public Works 640.912 502.992 137.920

Public Heallh 7,311.476 6.896,376 415.100

Public Welfare 950,901 951.537 (636)

Cultural and Recreation 545,146 667,321 (122.175)

Debt Service - Principal 980,000 980,000

Debt Service - Interest and Fees 2.262,250 2.262.250

Capital Projects 36.327.146 20,607.745 15,719.401

Total Expenditures 57.343.788 40.386.636 16.957.152

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (26.610.312) (12.191.607) 14,418.705

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 8,284,191 8.260,434 (23,757)

Transfers Out (13.907.935) (14.705.581) (797,646)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (5.623.744) (6.445.147) (821,403)

Net Change in Fund Balance (32.234.056) (18.636.754) 13,597.302

Fund Balance at the Beginning of the Year 82.025.572 82.025.572

Fund Balance at the End of the Year $ 49.791.516 s 63.388.818 S 13.597.302
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 2010

General Public Public

Government Safety Works

Programs Programs Programs

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled,Cash and Investments s 10,254,031 S 4,129,113 s 9,614,507

Receivables, Net 129,697 557,333 428,071

Due from Other Governments 151,825 236,669 827,710

Prepaid Items 5,597

Total Assets S 10,541.150 S 4,923,115 S 10,870,288

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable S 221,889 S 951,500 S 879,810

Accrued Payroll 110,655 63,329 18,757

Due to Others 29,287

Deferred Property Tax Revenues 70,468

Deferred Revenues 89,713

Total Liabilities 403.012 1,133,829 898,567

FUNP BALANCE

Reserved for Encumbrances 95,795 24,545 2.421,553

Reserved for Special Revenue Funds 10,042.343 3,764.741 7.550,168

10,138,138 3,789,286 9,971,721

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance S 10,541,150 s 4,923,115 s 10,870,288
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Disabilities Cultural

Alcohol and Special Public and

and Drug Needs Welfare Recreational

Programs Programs Programs Programs Total

S 19,767 S 602,308 S 84,004 S 6,456,192 S 31,159.922

4,349 5,056 11,814 38,851 1,175,171

52,959 7,614 31,234 47.594 1,355,605

5,597

S 77.075 s 614.978 $ 127.052 S 6.542,637 S 33,696,295

s 24,964 S 91,435 $ 26,592 s 98,114 $ 2,294,304

51,042 219,518 8.023 15,479 486,803

38,631 67,918

70,468

6,725 96,438

76,006 356,309 34,615 113.593 3,015.931

2,541,893

1.069 258,669 92,437 6.429,044 28,138,471

1.069 258.669 92,437 6,429.044 30.680,364

S 77,075 S 614.978 S 127.052 s 6.542,637 s 33.696,295

- 87-

Schedule C-1



Schedule C·2

Sheet 1

BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE· BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General Government Programs

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property Taxes S 3,916.071 S 3.802.558 S (113.513)

Licenses and Permits 3,035.135 2,770,373 (264.762)

Intergovernmental 1,191,872 1,193,533 1.661

Charge for Services 1,380,433 1,345,625 (34.808)

Fines and Forfietures 50,000 48,060 (1.940)

Interest 10,665 31,518 20.853

Miscellaneous 632,071 503.993 (128.078)

Total Revenues 10,216,247 9,695,660 (520.587)

Expenditures

General Government 5,145,791 4,597,637 548,154

Capital 440,416 245,603 194,813

Total Expenditures 5,586.207 4,843,240 742,967

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 4,630.040 4,852,420 222,380

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,071.058 1,073,049 1,991

Transfers Out (7,495,444) (7,634,080) (138,636)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (6,424,386) (6,561,031 ) (136,645)

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,794,346) (1,708.611) 85.735

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 11,846,749 11,846,749

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 10,052,403 $ 10,138,138 S 85,735
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Schedule C-2

Sheet 2

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Public Safety Programs

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licenses and Permits $ 40,000 $ 25,251 S (14,749)

Intergovernmental 1,756,184 1,275,414 (480,770)

Charge for Services 1,368,771 1,612,149 243,378

Fines for Forfietures 228,652 320,825 92,173

Interest 20,388 20,388

Miscellaneous 320,009 240,680 (79.329)

Total Revenues 3,713.616 3.494.707 (218.909)

Expenditures

Public Safety 3.180,166 2,920,778 259,388

Capital 3.656.090 2.495.441 1.160.649

Total Expenditures 6.836.256 5.416,219 1.420.037

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (3.122,640) (1.921,512) 1,201,128

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,472.610 1.483.912 11.302

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,472.610 1.483.912 11.302

Net Change in Fund Balance (1.650,030) (437,600) 1.212.430

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 4.226.886 4.226.886

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 2.576.856 $ 3.789.286 S 1.212.430
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Schedule C-2

Sheet 3
BEAUFORTCOUNTY. SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBININGSTATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN

FUND BALANCE- BUDGETAND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUEFUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Public Works Programs

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licenses and Permits s 3,930,082 S 2,258,119 S (1,671,963)

Intergovernmental 2,863.559 2,494,900 (368.659)

Charge for Services 1,001,800 1,240,227 238.427

Interest 15.000 62,013 47.013

Miscellaneous 13,200 12,000 (1,200)

Total Revenues 7.823.641 6.067,259 (1.756,382)

Expenditures

PublicWorks 640,912 502.992 137,920

Capital 5,795.551 2.942.896 2.852,655

Total Expenditures 6.436,463 3.445,888 2.990.575

Excess of Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures 1,387.178 2,621.371 1.234,193

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Transfers In 8.808 8,808

Transfers Out (3,775.255) (4,417.913) (642,658)

Total OtherFinancing Sources (Uses) (3.766,447) (4,409.105) (642,658)

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,379.269) (1.787,734) 591.535

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 11.759,455 11.759,455

FundBalance at Endof Year $ 9.380,186 s 9,971.721 $ 591.535
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Schedule C·2
Sheet 5

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Public Health-Disabilities and Special Needs Programs

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 3,897,329 S 3,950,713 S 53,384

Charge for Services 235,026 245,036 10,010

Interest 3,454 3,454

Miscellaneous 22,705 24,925 2,220

Total Revenues 4,155,060 4,224,128 69,068

Expenditures

Public Health 5,971,860 5,612,937 358,923

Capital 58,769 27,858 30,911

Total Expenditures 6,030,629 5,640,795 389,834

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,875,569) (1,416,667) 458,902

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,871,596 1,438.123 (433,473)

Transfers Out (7,400) (24) 7.376

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,864.196 1,438.099 (426,097)

Net Change in Fund Balance (11,373) 21,432 32,805

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 237,237 237.237

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 225,864 s 258,669 S 32.805
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Sheet 6

BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Public Welfare Programs

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 706,954 S 702.777 $ (4,177)

Charge for Services 40,947 72.702 31.755

Miscellaneous 25,225 17.963 (7.262)

Total Revenues 773.126 793,442 20.316

Expenditures

Public Welfare 950,901 951,537 (636)

Total Expenditures 950,901 951.537 (636)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (177,775) (158.095) 19.680

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 178.000 178.000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 178.000 178.000

Net Change in Fund Balance 225 19,905 19,680

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 72.532 72.532

Fund Balance at End of Year S 72,757 $ 92,437 s 19.680
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Schedule C-2

Sheet 8

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE· BUDGET AND ACTUAL· CONTINUED

ALL NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Totals

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property Taxes S 3,916,071 S 3,802,558 S (113,513)

Licenses and Permits 8,038,223 5,617,267 (2,420,956)

Intergovernmental 11,419.116 10,814,089 (605.027)

Charge for Services 4,217.694 4,800,871 583,177

Fines and Forfietu res 278.652 368.885 90.233

Interest 25.665 154,611 128,946

Miscellaneous 1.020.147 807.995 (212,152)

Total Revenues 28.915,568 26,366,276 (2,549.292)

Expenditures

General Government 5.145.791 4,597,637 548,154

Public Safety 3,180.166 2.920.778 259,388

Public Works 640,912 502.992 137.920

Public Health 7.311,476 6.896.376 415.100

Public Welfare 950.901 951.537 (636)

Cultural and Recreation 545.146 667,321 (122.175)

Capital 12,147,682 6,793.552 5,354,130

Total Expenditures 29.922,074 23,330,193 6.591.881

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,006,506) 3,036.083 4,042.589

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 5.095.737 4,475,889 (619,848)

Transfers Out (11.703.978) (12.501.624) (797,646)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (6.608,241 ) (8,025,735) (1,417,494)

Net Change in Fund Balance (7,614,747) (4.989.652) 2.625,095

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 35,670.016 35.670.016

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 28,055.269 $ 30.680,364 S 2,625,095
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

June30,2010

Local Local Local
Accommodations DelWebb Purchaseof Accommodations Hospitality Admissions

.Tax Development Real Property Tax Tax Fee
Program Agreement Program Program Program Program

~

Equityin PooledCashand Investments s s 361,062 s 1,963,493 $ 1,594,720 s 2.516,095 s 2,200,452

Receivables, Net 421 119,280

Duefrom OtherGovernments 144,738 4,172 2,915

Prepaid lIems 1.684 1,684 1,684

TotalAssets 144.738 361.483 2.082,773 1.600,576 2.517,779 2.205,051

LIABILITIES AND FUNDEqUITY

Liabilities

AccountsPayable $ 170,273 $ 24,871 $ 14,181 S 91 s 37 s 18

AccruedPayroll 4,376 2.187

DeferredPropertyTax Revenues 70.468

TotalLiabilities 170,273 24,871 84.649 4,467 2.224 18

FUNP BALANCE

Reservedfor Encumbrances 73,171 1.405

Reservedfor SpecialRevenueFunds (25,535) 263,441 1,998,124 1,596,109 2,514,150 2,205.033

(25.535) 336.612 1,998,124 1,596,109 2.515,555 2,205,033

TotalLiabilities and FundBalance $ 144,738 S 361,483 S 2,082,773 s 1,600,576 S 2,517.779 S 2,205,051
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Employer

Treasurer Clerk Educalion Group Public

Execution Clerk of Court Assistance Benefit Defender Reforestation

Fees of Court Discretionary Trust Trust Trust Trust Total

S 532.562 S 8.626 S S S 188.599 S 587.819 S 300,603 S 10.254.031

9.996 129.697

151.825

545 5.597

532.562 8.626 198.595 588.364 300.603 10.541,150

s s s s S 1.038 S 2.566 S 8.814 S 221.889

25.329 8.626 70.137 110.655

70.468

25.329 8.626 1,038 72.703 8,814 403.012

21.219 95.795

507.233 197.557 515.661 270.570 10,042,343

507.233 197.557 515.661 291.789 10,138,138

S 532.562 $ 8,626 S S S 198.595 s 588,364 S 300.603 S 10.541,150
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS- GENERALGOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010

Accomodalions Tax Program

Variance

Positive

Budgel Aclual (Negalive)

Revenues
Intergovernmental S 456,150 S 456.652 S 502

TotalRevenues 456,150 456,652 502

Expenditures

General Government
Olher 409,500 409,496 4

Tolal Expendilures 409,500 409,496 4

Excess 01 Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures

(Under)Expendilures 46,650 47,156 506

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Transfers Out (46.650) (46,583) 67

TolalOlherFinancing Sources(Uses) (46.650) (46,583) 67

NetChange in FundBalance 573 573

FundDeficilat Beginning of Year (26.108) (26,1081

FundDeficilat Endor Year S (26.108) S (25.535) S 573
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Dell Webb Development Agreement

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Charge for Services S 20,000 S 3,103 S (16,897)

Inlerest 2,946 2,946

Miscellaneous 35.000 2.188 (32.812)

Total Revenues 55,000 8.237 (46.763)

Expenditures

General Government

Purchased Services 159,030 169,036 (10,006)

Supplies 25,000 25.000

Capital 350.574 183.846 166.728

Total Expenditures 534,604 352.882 181.722

Excess 01Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

(Under) Expenditures (479,604) (344,645) 134,959

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Tolal Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance (479,604) (344,645) 134,959

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 681.257 681.257

Fund Balance at End or Year S 201.653 S 336,612 $ 134.959
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS- GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the Year EndedJune3D, 2010

Purchaseof RealPropertyProgram

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

PropertyTaxes S 3,916,071 S 3,802,558 s (113,513)

Intergovernmental 63,596 64.947 1,351

Interest 5.000 11,135 6.135

Miscellaneous 4.023 4.024 1

Tolal Revenues 3.988.690 3.882,664 (106,026)

Expenditures

GeneralGovernment

Purchased Services 355,832 370,013 (14,181)

TotalExpenditures 357.238 371.419 (14.181)

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures

(Under)Expenditures 3.631,452 3,511.245 (120.207)

Other Financing Sources(Uses)

TransfersOut (3.877.200) (3.877.200)

TotalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses) (3.877.200) (3.877.200)

Net Changein FundBalance (245,748) (365,955) (120.207)

Fund Balanceat Beginning 01Year 2.364.079 2.364.079

Fund Balance at End01Year $ 2.118,331 S 1.998.124 $ (120.207)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Local Accomodations Tax Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negalive)

Revenues

Licenses and Permits 5 825.112 $ 562.867 5 1262,245)

Total Revenues 825.112 562,867 (262.245)

Expenditures

General Government

Personnel 81,962 76,613 5,349

Purchased Services 7,550 3,661 3,889

Supplies 3,200 706 2,494

Other 732.400 386,173 346,227

Tolal Expenditures 825.112 467.153 357.959

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendilures

(Under) Expenditures 95,714 95,714

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Translers In

Tolal Olher Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance 95,714 95,714

Fund Balance al Beginning or Year 1,500.395 1.500.395

Fund Balance at End or Year S 1,500.395 $ 1.596,109 $ 95,714
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS- GENERALGOVERNMENT GRANTS
For the YearEndedJune30, 2010

LocalHospitalityTax Program

Variance

Posilive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licenses andPermits S 1.155.188 S 1,153,119 S 12.069}

TotalRevenues 1.155,188 1,153.119 12.069}

Expenditures

GeneralGovernment

Personnel 45,438 42,861 2,577

Purchased Services 6,950 2,224 4,726

Supplies 3,683 483 3,200

Capital 53.702 53,702

TotalExpenditures 109,773 99,270 10.503

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures

(Under)Expenditures 1,045,415 1,053,849 8,434

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Transfers Out (1,224.337) 11.224,337)

TotalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses) 11,224.337) 11.224,337)

Net Change in FundBalance (178,922) (170,488) 8,434

FundBalance at BegInning of Year 2,686.043 2,686.043

FundBalance al Endof Year S 2.507.121 S 2,515.555 S 8.434

-102 -

ScheduleC-4

Sheet 5



BEAUFORTCOUNTY.SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUEFUNDS- GENERALGOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

LocalAdmissionsFee Program

Variance

Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licensesand Permils $ 1,054,835 $ 1,054,387 S (448)

TotalRevenues 1,054,835 1,054,367 (448)

Expenditures

GeneralGovemment
Personnel 45.085 14.193 30.892
Purchased Services 7.150 2.270 4.860
Supplies 2.600 706 1.694

Total Expenditures 54.635 17.169 37.666

Excessof RevenuesOver (Under)Expenditures

(Under)Expenditures 1.000.000 1,037.216 37.218

OtherFinanclngSources(Uses)

TransfersOut (1,000.000) (1,000,000)

Total OtherFinancingSources(Uses) (1.000.000) (1,000,000)

NetChangein Fund Balance 37,218 37.218

FundBalanceat Beginning01 Year 2.167,815 2.167.815

Fund Balanceat End of Year S 2.167.815 S 2.205.033 S 37.218
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS- GENERALGOVERNMENT GRANTS

Forthe YearEndedJune 30, 2010

TreasurerExecutionFees

Variance

Posilive

Budgel Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Chargefor Services s 1,360,433 $ 1,342,522 S (17,911)
Interest 8,871 8,871

TotalRevenues 1.360.433 1,351.393 19,040)

Expenditures

GeneralGovernment

Personnel 566,981 560,379 6,602

Purchased Services 631,437 410,039 221,398

Supplies 16.600 12.005 4.595

Total Expenditures 1,215,018 982.423 232,595

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures

(Under)Expenditures 145,415 368,970 223,555

Olher Financing Sources(Uses)

Transfers Oul (1.344,769) (1.344,769)

TotalOther Financing Sources(Uses) (1.344.769) (1,344.769)

Net Changein FundBalance (1,199,354) (975,799) 223,555

Fund Balance at BegInning of Year 1.483,032 1.483,032

Fund Balance at Endof Year S 283,678 S 507,233 S 223.555
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· GENERALGOVERNMENTGRANTS

For the Year EndedJune 30.2010

Clerkof Court

Variance

Posilive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovemmental S 222.227 S 222.035 S (192)
Inlerest 3.099 1.303 (1.796)

Tolal Revenues 225.326 223.338 (1.988)

Expenditures

GeneralGovemment
Personnel 163,979 163.982 (3)
Purchased Services (1.845) (1.845)
Other 316.825 316.825

TotalExpenditures 478.959 478.962 (31

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures

(Under)Expenditures (253,633) (255,624) (1.991)

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)
TransfersIn 417.695 419.686 1.991

Tolal OtherFinancing Sources(Uses) 417.695 419.666 1.991

Net Changein Fund Balance 164.062 164.062

Fund Deficilal Beginning or Year (164,062) (164.062)

Fund Balance al Endor Year S S s

-105 -

ScheduleC-4

Sheet 8



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS- GENERALGOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30.2010

Education Assistance Trust

Variance.

Posilive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

lnterest S S S

Total Revenues

Expenditures

General Government

Other 6,604 6.803

Total Expenditures 6,604 6.803

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

(Under) Expenditures (6.804) (6.803)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out (2.488) (2.489) (1)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2.488) (2.489) (1)

Net Change in Fund Balance (9.292) (9.292)

Fund Balance al Beginning of Year 9.292 9.292

Fund Balance al End or Year S S S
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· GENERAL GOVERNMENTGRANTS

For the YearEndedJune30, 2010

EmployerGroupBenefitTrust

Variance

Posilive

Budget Aclual (Negalive)

Revenues
Inlerest S S 1,078 S 1.078
Miscellaneous 200,000 225,343 25.343

TotatRevenues 200,000 226.421 26.421

Expenditures

GeneralGovernment

Purchased Services 10.000 12,240 (2,240)
Other 190.000 226.081 (36.081)

Tolal Expenditures 200.000 238.321 (38,321)

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures

(Under)Expenditures (11.900) (11,900)

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)
TransfersIn

TotalOtherFinancJng Sources(Uses)

Net Changein FundBalance (11.900) (11,900)

FundBalance al Beginning of Year 209,457 209,457

Fund Balance al Endof Year S 209,457 $ 197.557 s (11,900)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Public Derender Trust

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 449,899 S 449,899 S
Interest 1,566 4,606 3,040

Miscellaneous 384.892 272,438 (112.454)

Total Revenues 836.357 726.943 (109.414)

Expenditures

General Government

Personnel 1.280.212 1,332.780 (52.568)

Purchased Services 49.764 49.768 (4)

Supplies 14.388 9.805 4.583

Total Expenditures 1,344.364 1.392,353 (47.989)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

(Under) Expenditures (508.007) (665,410) (157,403)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 653.363 653.363

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 653,363 653.363

Net Change in Fund Balance 145,356 (12,047) (157,403)

Fund Balance at Beginning or Year 527.708 527.708

Fund Balance at End of Year S 673,064 S 515.661 $ (157,4031
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· GENERALGOVERNMENT GRANTS

For !he Year EndedJune30, 2010

Reforestation Trust
Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

FinesandForfeitures S 50,000 S 49,060 S (1,940)

Inlerest 1,579 1,579

TotalRevenues 50.000 49.639 (361)

Expenditures

GeneralGovernment

Purchased Services 13,B60 19,934 (5,074)
Capital 36,140 9,055 29,065

TotalExpenditures 50.000 26.999 23.011

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures

(Under) Expendilures 22,650 22,650

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In

Tolal OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Nol Changein FundBalance 22,650 22,650

FundBalance at Beginning 01Year 269.139 269,139

FundBalance at End01 Year S 269.139 S 291,789 S 22,650
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property Taxes $ 3,916,071 $ 3.802,558 $ (113,513)

Licenses and Permits 3,035,135 2,770,373 (264.762)

Intergovernmental 1,191,872 1,193,533 1.661

Charge for Services 1,380,433 1,345,625 (34,808)

Fines and Forfeitures 50,000 48,060 (1,940)

Interest 10,665 31.518 20,853

Miscellaneous 632,071 503.993 (128,078)

Total Revenues 10,216,247 9,695.660 (520,587)

Expenditures

General Government

Personnel 2,183.657 2,190.808 (7,151)

Purchased Services 1,239,728 1.036,340 203,388

Supplies 66,877 25,111 41,766

Capital 440,416 245,603 194,813

Other 1,655,529 1,345,378 310.151

TotalExpend~ures 5,586,207 4,843,240 742,967

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

(Under) Expenditures 4,630,040 4,852,420 222,380

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,071,058 1,073,049 1,991

Transfers Out (7,495,444) (7.634,080) (138,636)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (6.424.386) (6,561,031) (136,645)

Net Change in Fund Balance (1.794,346) (1,708,611) 85,735

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 11.846.749 11.846.749

Fund Balance at End of Year s 10,052.403 $ 10,138.138 s 85,735
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS" PUBLICSAFETYGRANTS

June 30.2010

Emergency Emergency School

E-911 Public Medical Medical Highway Victims Sheriffs Resource Sheritrs

Telephone Radio Safely Services Services 170 Assistance Special Officer Grant
Program Equipment Grant Grant Donations Program Program Program Program Program

l!.S.Sf!S
Equrty in PooledCashandlnveslments s 2,046.505 $ 217.356 $ s 3,488 $ 317.298 163,614 $ $ 116,894
Receivables, Net 50.278 404,453 14,147 59,381
DuefromOtherGovemments 167.969 ---- 65,746 ---- --- ---- ----
TotalAnets 2,264.752 217,356 470,199 ~ 317.298 177,761 59,381 116,894 ----
liABILITIESANDFUNDEQUITY
Liabilities

AccounlsPayable $ 73,392 31 $ 365.245 $ 107.054 $ 190 $ 41,982 $ $

AccruedPayroll 14.318 19.809 17,970

Dueto Others
Deferred Revenues ~ ---- --- ---- ----
TotalLiabitities 87.710 ___3_1 454.958 ---- 107,054 ~ 41.982 ~ ---
FUNDBALANCE

Reservecl lor Encumbrances 15.241
Reservecl for Special Revenue Funds 2.177.042 217.325 ---- ~ 210,244 157,762 17,399 98,924 ----

2.177,042 217,325 ----l2.lli. ~ 210,244 157,762 17,399 98.924 ----
Tolal Ljab~ilies andFundBalance s 2.264,752 $ 217,3$ $ 470,199 _$__ $ 3,488 317,298 $ 177,761 $ 59,381 $ 116.894 -$--"
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FEMA SlICnlls

Public Resllicted SlIonlfs SlIeri1l's Detention

Saloly ORlI} ORig Family Detention Cantar An:mal Animal Hazordous

Training Award Seizuro Coun Conler Alien Shellor Sheller Malerlals Logistics DNA

~ TRisl TRisl Trusl Trusl Assistance Memorial SpaylNeuler Trusl Team Lob Tolel

S S 164.284 S 613.030 S 20.479 $ 115.702 $ 209 $ 10.758 $ 983 S $1.184 $ 90.392 196.937 $ 4.129.1\3

924 5.174 23,076 557.333

--- --- --- ~ --- --- --- --- --- --- 236,009

---ill. 194,294 ~ 23,433 120,876 ~ 10,758 983 74260 90,392 196,937 4,923.115

$ 824 $ $ 356.602 s $ 3.223 s 209 $ $ S $ 1.504 $ 1,244 s 951.500

11,232 63,329

17,871 11,419 29,287

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 89.713

---ill. --- 374,473 --- 14,639 ~ --- ---~ '2.476 1,'33,829

9,304 24.545

--- 164.284 ~ 23,433 '06.237 --- ~ 983 --..1!ill. 79,584 184,461 3.764.741

--- 164,284 ~ 23,433 '06,237 --- 10,758 983 --..1!ill. ---!!!!J!!!!!. 184,461 3,789.286

~ ~ S 6'3,030 S 23,433 S 120,876 L....l!!! $ 10,758 $ 983 $ 74,260 $ 90,392 S 100,937 s 4.923,'15
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGESIN FUNOBALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNOS - PUBLIC SAFETYGRANTS

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2010

E-911 TelephoneProgram

Variance

Positive
BUdget Actual (Negalive)

Revenues

Chargelor Services $ 1,108,771 s 1,319,303 S 210,532
Inlerest 11,167 11,167

TotalRevenues 1.108,771 1,330.470 221.699

Expenditures

PublicSalety

Personnel 257,454 292,818 (35.364)

Purchased Services 736,011 701,982 34,029

Supplies 9,890 4,880 5,010

Capital 194,146 160,676 33,470

Other 90,000 106,508 (16.5081

Tolal Expenditures 1,287,501 1,266,864 20.637

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (178,730) 63,606 242,336

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)
Transfers In

TotalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

NetChangein FundBalance (178.730) 63,606 242,336

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 2.113.436 2.113.436

FundBalance at Endof Year S 1.934.706 S 2,177.042 S 242.336
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAlANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Radio Equipment

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Miscellaneous s 200,000 s $ (200.000)

Total Revenues 200,000 (200,000)

Expenditures

Public Safety

Personnel 20,000 20,000

Purchased Services BO,OOO 31 79,969

Capital 100,000 100,000

Total Expenditures 200,000 31 199,969

Excess 01Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (31) (31)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance (31) (31)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 217,356 217.356

Fund Balance at End of Year S 217,356 S 217,325 S (31)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS - PUBLICSAFETYGRANTS

For the YearEndedJune 30,2010

PublicSafety Grant

Variance

Positive

Budget Aclual (Negalive)

Revenues

Intergovemmental S 1.204.556 S 690.842 S (513.714)

TotalRevenues 1,204,556 690,842 (513,714)

Expenditures

PublicSafety

Capilal 1.204,556 690,842 513,714

Tolal Expenditures 1.204,556 690.842 513,714

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expendilures

Olher Financing Sources(Uses)

TransfersIn

Tolal OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

NetChangein FundBalance

FundBalance al Beginning of Year 15,241 15,241

FundBalance at Endof Year S 15,241 S 15.241 S
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· PUBLICSAFETYGRANTS

For Ihe Year EndedJune 30,2010
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY. SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNOS - PUBLIC SAFETYGRANTS

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2010

EmergencyMedicalServices Donations

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Miscellaneous S 3,690 S 3.691

TotalRevenues 3,690 3.691

Expenditures

Other 203 (203)

TotalExpendilures 203 (203)

Excess otRevenues Over (Under)Expenditures 3,690 Mee (202)

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Transfers In

TotalOtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

NetChangein Fund Balance 3.690 Mee (202)

FundBalance at Beginning of Year

FundBalance at EndotYear S 3,690 S 3.488 S (202)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Highway 170 Program

Variance

Posilive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest S S 6.136 S 6.136

Total Revenues 6.136 6.136

Expenditures

Public Safety

Capital 2.089,060 1,575.595 513,465

Total Expenditures 2.089,060 1,575,595 513,465

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (2.089,060) (1,569,459) 519.601

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 703,134 703,134

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 703,134 703,134

Net Change in Fund Balance (1.385,926) (866,325) 519,601

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1.076.569 1,076.569

Fund Balance at End of Year S (309,357) S 210,244 S 519.601
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· PUBLICSAFETYGRANTS

For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010

VictimsAssistanceProgram

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 56,556 S 54,253 S (2,303)

FinesandForfeitures 174,000 177,563 3,563

Total Revenues 230.556 231,816 1.260

Expenditures

PublicSafety

Personnel 495,862 407,316 88,546

Purchased Services 20,912 12,755 8,157

Supplies 20,457 14,614 5,843

Other 3,000 1,762 1,238

Total Expenditures 540,231 436,447 103,784

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)E)(penditures (309,675) (204,631) 105,044

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)
TransfersIn 303.363 303,364

TotalOtherFinancing Sources (Uses) 303,363 303,364

Net Changein FundBalance (6,312) 98,733 105,045

Fund Balance al Beginning 01 Year 59,029 59,029

FundBalance at Endof Year S 52,717 S 157,762 S 105,045
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· PUBLICSAFETY GRANTS

For the Year EndedJune 30. 2010

Shcrifrs SpecialProgram

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues

Chargefor Services $ 260,000 $ 292,846 $ 32.846

TotalRevenues 260,000 292.846 32,846

Expenditures

PUblic Safety
Personnel 260.000 275,448 (15.448)

TotalExpenditures 260,000 275,448 (15.448)

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures 17.398 17,398

Other Financing Sources(Uses)

TransfersIn

TotalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Net Changein FundBalance 17.398 17.398

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

FundBalanceat Endof Year S S 17.399 S 17.398
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS- PUBLIC SAFETYGRANTS

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2010

SchoolResourceOUicerProgram

Valiance

Posilive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 346,325 S 356,077 S 9,752

TotalRevenues 346,325 356.077 9.752

Expenditures

PublicSafety

Personnel 415,391 378,554 36,837

Purchased Services 29,352 24,365 4,987

Supplies 16,615 14,055 2.560

TotalExpenditures 461.358 416.974 44.384

Excess or Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (115,033) (60,897) 54,138

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Transfers In 115.033 115,033

TotalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses) 115,033 115.033

NetChangein FundBalance 54,136 54,136

FundBalanceat Beginning or Year 44.788 44,788

FundBalanceal End or Year S 44.788 S 98.924 S 54,136
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SheriIrs Grant Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 35,084 S 35.084 S

Total Revenues 35.084 35.084

Expenditures

Public Salety

Personnel 36,943 36,943

Purchased Services 2,293 2,293

Supplies 2,160 2.159

Total Expenditures 41.396 41,395

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (6,312) (6,311)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 6.312 6.311 (1)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 6.312 6.311 (1)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning or Year

Fund Balance at End or Year S S S
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTHCAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUNDBALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· PUBLICSAFETYGRANTS

For the YearEndedJune 30. 2010

FEMAPublicSalely Training Grant

Variance

Positive

Budgel Actual (Negalive)

Revenues
Intergovernmental S 7,317 S 7.317 S

Tolal Revenues 7,317 7.317

Expenditures

PublicSafely

Purchased Services 7,317 18,618 (11.301)

Tolal Expendilures 7.317 18,618 (11.301)

Excess01 Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (11.301) (11.301)

OlherFinancing Sources(Uses)
TransfersIn 11.301 11,301

Tolal OlherFinancing Sources (Uses) 11.301 11,301

NetChangein FundBalance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

FundBalanceat Endof Year S S S
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Sheriffs Restricted Drug Award Trust

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Fines and Forfeitures $ 54,652 S 143,262 88,610

Interest 716 716

Total Revenues 54,652 143,978 89,326

Expenditures

Public Safety

Capital 44,583 44,583

Other 5,000 5,000

Total Expenditures 49,583 49,583

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 5,069 94,395 89,326

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance 5,069 94,395 89,326

Fund Balance at Beginning or Year 69,889 69,889

Fund Balance at End or Year $ 74,958 $ 164,284 $ 89.326
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Sheriffs Drug Seizure Trust

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest $ s 809 $ 809

Miscellaneous 30,000 118,279 88,279

Total Revenues 30.000 119,088 89,088

Expenditures

Public Safely

Other 50.000 88,165 (38.165)

Total Expenditures 50.000 88,165 (38.165)

Excess of Reve!1ues Over (Under) Expenditures (20,000) 30,923 50,923

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 20,000 20,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 20,000 20,000

Net Change in Fund Balance 50,923 50,923

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 187,634 187.634

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 187.634 $ 238,557 $ 50,923
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· PUBLIC SAFETYGRANTS
For the Year EndedJune 30,2010

Sherifrs FamilyCourtTrust

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues

Inlergovernmental S 6,104 S 15.987 S 9,883

Inlerest 112 112

Total Revenues 6.104 16.099 9,995

Expenditures

Public Safety
Supplies 20,368 20,762 (394)

Total Expenditures 20.368 20.762 (394)

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (14,264) (4,663) 9.601

Other Financing Sources(Uses)
TransfersIn

Total Other Financing Sources(Uses)

Nel Change in Fund Balance (14,264) (4.663) 9,601

Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year 28.096 28,096

Fund Balanceat Endof Year S 13.832 S 23.433 S 9.601
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS- PUBLIC SAFETYGRANTS

For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010

DetentionCenler Trust

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest S S 520 S 520

Miscellaneous 80,319 107.344 27.025

TolalRevenues 80,319 107.864 27,545

EKpendilures

PublicSafety
Purchased Services 210 209 1

Supplies 8,140 8,698 (558)
Other 59,368 70,297 (10,929)

TotalExpenditures 67,718 79,204 (11.486)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures 12,601 28,660 16,059

OlherFinancing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In

TotalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

NetChange in FundBalance 12.601 28,660 16,059

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 77,577 77.577

FundBalance at Endof Year S 90,178 S 106.237 S 16.059
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUNDBALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUEFUNDS· PUBLIC SAFETYGRANTS

For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010

DetentionCenler Alien Assistance

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 72.923 S 72,923 S

TotalRevenues 72,923 72,923

Expendilures

PublicSafety

Personnel 29,090 29,090

Purchased Services 42,577 42,577

Supplies 1.256 1.256

Tolal Expenditures 72.923 72.923

Excessof RevenuesOver (Under)Expenditures

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

TransfersIn

Tolal OtherFinancingSources(Uses)

NetChangein FundBalance

FundBalance at Beginning or Year

Fund Balance al End of Year S S S
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY. SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· PUBLIC SAFETYGRANTS

For the YearEndedJune30, 2010

AnimalShelterMemorial

Variance

Posilive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest S S 21 $ 21
Miscellaneous 6.000 10,386 4,386

Tolal Revenues 8,000 10,407 4,407

Expendilures

PublicSarety

Purchased Services 6.000 6,000

TotalExpendilures 6,000 6,000

Excess01 Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures 10,407 10,407

OtherFinancingSources (Uses)
TransfersIn

Total OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Net Changein FundBalance 10,407 10,407

Fund Balanceat Beginning 01 Year 351 351

Fund Balanceat Endof Year S 351 S 10,758 S 10.407
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS- PUBLICSAFETYGRANTS

For the Year EndedJune 3D, 2010

AnimalShelterSpay/Neuter

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest S S 3 3
Miscellaneous 980 980

Total Revenues 983 983

Expenditures

PublicSafety
Supplies

Total Expenditures

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures 983 983

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

TransfersIn

Total OtherFinandngSources(Uses)

Net Changein FundBalance 983 983

Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year

Fund Balanceat End01Year S S 983 S 983
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· PUBLICSAFETYGRANTS

For the YearEndedJune30,2010

HazardousMaterialsTrust

Variance

Posilive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licenses andPermits S 40,000 S 25,251 S (14,749)

Intergovernmental 5.000 22,226 17,226

Interest 349 349

TotalRevenues 45,000 47,826 2,826

Expenditures

PublicSalety

Personnel 44,588 22,978 21,610

Purchased Services 16,412 12,433 3,979

Supplies 2,334 2,439 (105)

Other 11.677 11,677

TotalExpenditures 75.011 49,527 25.484

Excessof Revenues Over(Under)Expenditures (30,011) (1,701) 28,310

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

TransfersIn

TotalOlher Financing Sources(Uses)

NetChangein FundBalance (30,011) (1,701) 28,310

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 75,961 75,961

FundBalance at Endof Year S 45,950 S 74.260 S 28,310
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Logistics Team

Variance

Posilivc

Budget Aclual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest S S 555 S 555

Tolal Revenues 555 555

Expenditures

Public Salety

Purchased Services 17,645 16,780 865

Supplies 14,757 7,B21 6,936

Capital 23.745 23.745

Total Expendilures 56.147 4B.346 7.801

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (56,147) (47,791) 8,356

Olher Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Tolal Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance (56,147) (47.791) 8.356

Fund Balance al Beginning 01 Year 136.679 136,679

Fund Balance at End of Year S 80,532 S BB,BBB S B,356
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS- PUBLIC SAFETYGRANTS

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2010

DNALab

Variance

Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental $ S S

TotalRevenues

Expenditures
PublicSafely

Personnel 211,823 203,271 8,552
Purchased Services 52,025 20,619 31,406
Supplies 54,569 34,345 20,224

Tolal Expendilures 318.417 258.235 60.182

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (318,417) (258,235) 60,182

Olher FinancingSources (Uses)
TransfersIn 318.417 318.417

TotalOlher Financing Sources (Uses) 318.417 316.417

Net Changein FundBalance 60,182 60,182

FundBalanceat Beginning of Year 124.279 124.279

FundBalanceat Endof Year S 124.279 S 184.461 S 60.182
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC SAFETY GRANTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licenses and Permits S 40,000 S 25,251 S (14.749)

Intergovemmental 1,756,184 1,275,414 (480.770)

Charge for Services 1,368,771 1,612,149 243.378

Fines and Forfeitures 228.652 320.825 92.173

Interest 20.388 20.388

Miscellaneous 320,009 240,680 (79.329)

Tolal Revenues 3,713,616 3,494,707 (218,909)

Expenditures

Public Salety

Personnel 1.771.151 1,646,418 124,733

Purchased Services 1,011.619 853,509 158,110

Supplies 165,501 124,390 41,111

Capital 3,656.090 2.495,441 1,160,649

Other 231,895 296,461 (64,566)

Total Expenditures 6,836,256 5,416.219 1,420,037

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (3,122,640) (1,921.512) 1,201,128

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1.472.610 1,483.912 11,302

Tolal Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,472,610 1.483,912 11,302

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,650,030) (437,600) 1,212,430

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 4.226,886 4.226.886

Fund Balance at End otYear S 2,576,856 S 3,789.286 S 1,212,430
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

June 30, 2010

County Solid

Road Oil Wastel

Improvement Collection Recycling Energy

Program Grant Grant Grant

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 7,885,663 S 2.056 s 8.745 s
Receivables, Net 181.310

Due from Other Governments 565,107 357

Total Assets 8,450,770 2,413 8,745 181,310

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable S 385,435 S S 1.191 S 180,937

Accrued Payroll 18.384 373

Total Liabilities 403.819 1.191 181,310

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for Encumbrances 1,930,531

Reserved for Special Revenue Funds 6,116,420 2,413 7,554

8,046.951 2,413 7,554

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance S 8,450.770 S 2,413 S 8,745 S 181.310
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Waste Traffic

Tire Management Barton's Impact Traffic Road

Recycling Recycling Run Analysis Management Impact

Grant Grant Agreement Program Program Fees Total

S 494,750 S 12,000 S S 223,355 S S 987,938 S 9,614,507

246,761 428,071
14,421 247,825 827,710

509.171 12,000 223,355 247.825 1.234.699 10,870.288

Schedule C·7

S 1,756

1.756

491,022
16.393

507,415

S

12,000

12,000

s S

223.355

223.355

S 247,825

247.825

S 62,666

62.666

1,172,033

1,172.033

S 879,810

18.757

898.567

2,421.553
7.550.168

9.971.721

S 509,171 S 12,000 s S 223.355 S 247,825
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

County Road Improvement Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 1,950,000 S 1,963,646 $ 13,646

Charge for Services 1,000,000 1,238,427 238,427

Interest 15,000 45,830 30,830

Total Revenues 2,965,000 3,247,903 282,903

Expenditures

Public Works

Personnel 399,368 369,472 29,896

Purchased Services 40,934 12,345 28,589

Supplies 2,200 1,922 278

Capital 4,391,770 2,441,198 1,950,572

Total Expenditures 4,834,272 2,824,937 2,009,335

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,869,272) 422,966 2,292,238

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out (353,578) (353,578)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (353,578) (353,578)

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,222,850) 69,388 2,292,238

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 7,977,563 7,977,563

Fund Balance at End of Year s 5,754,713 $ 8,046,951 $ 2,292,238
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Schedule C-8

Sheet 2

Revenues

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Oil Collection Grant

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

S 14,352 $ 8.351 S (6,001)

14,352 8.351 (6.001)

Expenditures

Public Works

Purchased Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year $

14,352

14,352

2,565

2,565
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8,503

8.503

(152)

(152)

2,565

2,413 s

5,849

5,849
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS
For the YearEndedJune 3D,2010

SolidWaste/Recycling Grant

Variance
Positive

ScheduleC-8

Sheet3

Revenues
Intergovernmental

TotalRevenues

Expenditures

PublicWorks

Supplies

Capital

TotalExpenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In

TotalOtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

NetChange in Fund Balance

FundBalance at Beginning of Year

FundBalance at Endof Year

$

$

Budget

14,487

14,487

9,780

9.780

4,707

4,707

881

5.588

- 140-

s

$

Actual

14,488

14,488

7,815

7,815

6,673

6,673

881

7,554

$

s

(Negative)

(7.815)

9.780

1.965

1,966

1,966

1.966



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Schedule C-8
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Revenues

Intergovernmental

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Energy Grant

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

S 554,520 S 181,310 S (373,210)

1,200 (1,200)

555,720 181,310 (374,410)

Expenditures

Public Works

Personnel

Purchased Services

Supplies

Capital

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year s

28,920

3,400

28,194

495,206

555,720
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1,474

179,836

181,310

$

27,446

3,400

28,194

315,370
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Tire Recycling Grant

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 48,000 S 56,555 S 8,555

Interest 2,694 2,694

Total Revenues 48,000 59,249 11,249

Expenditures

Public Works

Purchased Services 53,325 48,837 4,488

Supplies 14,000 13,344 656

Capital 491,022 491,022

Total Expenditures 558,347 62,181 496,166

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (510,347) (2,932) 507,415

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 8,808 8,808

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 8,808 8,808

Schedule C·B

Sheet 5

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year s

(501,539)

501.539
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2010

Waste Management Recycling Grant

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Schedule C-B

Sheel6

Revenues

Miscellaneous

Tolal Revenues

Expenditures

Public Works

Purchased Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

s

s

12.000

12,000

12,000

12,000
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS- PUBLICWORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Barton'sRunAgreement

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Charge for Services $ 1.800 $ 1,800 s
Total Revenues 1.800 1,800

Expenditures

PublicWorks
Capital

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 1,800 1,800

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

TransfersOut (44,100) (44.100)

Total OtherFinancing Sources (Uses) (44,100) (44.100)

Net Change in Fund Balance (42,300) (42,300)

FundBalance at Beginningof Year 42,300 42,300

Fund Balance at End of Year $ s $
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Traffic Impact Analysis Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Schedule C-S

Sheet S

Revenues

licenses and Permits

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Capital

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

$

$

,

79,200

79,200

(79.200)

(79,200)

302,555

223.355
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Traffic Management Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Schedule C-B

Sheet 9

Revenues

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Public Works

Purchased Services

Capital

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

$

s

282,200

282,200

40,800

241,400

282,200
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270,550

35,861

234,689

270,550

$

$

(11,650)

(11,650)

4,939

6,711

11,650



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Road Impact Fees

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licenses and Permits S 3,930,082 S 2,258,119 S (1,671.963)

Interest 13,489 13,489

Total Revenues 3,930,082 2.271.608 (1.658,474)

Expenditures

Public Works

Purchased Services 3,419 3,419

Capital 87,173 7.973 79,200

Total Expenditures 90.592 11.392 79.200

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 3,839,490 2,260,216 (1.579.274)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out (3,377.577) (4.020.235) (642,658)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3.377,577) (4.020.235) (642.658)

Net Change in Fund Balance 461,913 (1,760,019) (2,221.932)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 2.932.052 2.932.052

Fund Balance at End of Year S 3.393.965 $ 1.172.033 s (2.221,932)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WORKS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

licenses and Permits S 3,930.082 S 2,258,119 s (1,671,963)

Intergovernmental 2,863.559 2,494,900 (368,659)

Charge for Services 1,001.800 1,240,227 238,427

Interest 15.000 62,013 47,013

Miscellaneous 13.200 12,000 (1,200)

Total Revenues 7,823.641 6,067,259 (1,756,382)

Expenditures

Public Works

Personnel 428.288 370,946 57,342

Purchased Services 168,230 108,965 59,265

Supplies 44,394 23,081 21,313

Capital 5.795,551 2.942,896 2.852,655

Total Expenditures 6.436,463 3.445,888 2.990,575

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 1,387,178 2.621,371 1.234,193

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 8,808 8.808

Transfers Out (3,775,255) (4,417,913) (642,658)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,766,447) (4,409,105) (642.658)

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,379.269) (1,787.734) 591,535

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 11,759.455 11.759,455

Fund Balance at End of Year s 9.380,186 s 9,971,721 S 591,535
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCESHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· ALCOHOLAND DRUG PROGRAMS
June30, 2010

Safety School

Central Action Intervention

Administration Program Program

ASSETS
Equity in Pooled Cashand Investments $ 17,353 $ $

Receivables, Net 3,064

Due from OtherGovernments 7,944 10,592

Total Assets 17,353 11,008 10,592

LIABILITIES ANDFUNDEQUITY

Liabilities

AccountsPayable $ 8,931 $ 3,695 $ 7,991

AccruedPayroll 8,422 7,313 2,601

Total Liabilities 17,353 11,008 10,592

FUNDBALANCE
Reserved for SpecialRevenue Funds

Fund Balance at Endof Year

-149 -

$ 17,353 $ 11,008 $ 10,592



Beaufort County

South Caro lina

Photo by Pam Pray

The Common Starfish or Common Sea Star is native to the Beaufort County coast and is

frequently sighted on one of the County's many sandy beaches - along with assorted seashells

that deli ght collectors



Community

Based Preventive Intensive

Treatment Education Outpatient

Program Program Program Total

S S 2,414 S S 19,767

1,285 4,349

18,535 7,944 7.944 52.959

19,820 10,358 7.944 77,075

Schedule C-9

s 2,222

16.529

18,751

1,069

1.069

S 19.820

$

s

1,534

8,824

10,358

10,358

s

s

591

7,353

7,944

7,944

s

s

24,964

51.042

76,006

1.069

1.069

77,075
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - ALCOHOL AND DRUG PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Central Administration

Variance

Positive

BUdget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S S S

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Public Health

Personnel 1,866 1,866

Purchased Services 114,911 127,559 (12,648)

Supplies 19,300 14,378 4,922

Capital (132,876) (139,601) 6,725

Total Expenditures 3,201 2,336 865

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (3,201) (2,336) 865

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 3,201 2,336 (865)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,201 2,336 (865)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year S S s
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - ALCOHOL AND DRUG PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Safety Action Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues

Intergovernmental $ 79,178 $ 68.678 s (10,500)

Charge for Services 87,500 183.355 95.855

Total Revenues 166.678 252.033 85.355

Expenditures

Public Health

Personnel 173.879 173,199 680
Purchased Services 20,200 22,169 (1,969)
Supplies 5,525 5,206 319
Capital 21,464 24,529 (3,065)

Total Expenditures 221,068 225,103 (4,035)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (54,390) 26,930 81,320

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 54,390 (54,390)
Transfers Out (26,930) (26,930)

Total Other Financin9 Sources (Uses) 54,390 (26.930) (81,320)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year S $ $
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - ALCOHOL AND DRUG PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - ALCOHOL AND DRUG PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Community Based Treatment Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 348,216 S 372,846 S 24,630

Charge for Services 83,217 79,458 (3,759)

Total Revenues 431,433 452,304 20,871

Expenditures

Public Health

Personnel 460,383 415,730 44,653

Purchased Services 36,618 40,715 (4,097)

Supplies 1,550 459 1,091

Capital 54,919 55,877 (958)

Total Expenditures 553,470 512,781 40,689

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (122,037) (60,477) 61,560

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 125,238 60,477 (64,761)

Transfers Out (3.201) 3,201

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 122,037 60,477 (61,560)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1.069 1.069

Fund Balance at End of Year s 1.069 $ 1,069 $
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES,EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUEFUNDS· ALCOHOLAND DRUG PROGRAMS

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - ALCOHOL AND DRUG PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Intensive Outpatient Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental $ 38,428 S 50,043 S 11,615

Total Revenues 38,428 50,043 11,615

Expenditures

Public Health

Personnel 172,614 163,541 9,073

Purchased Services 8,400 7,668 732

Supplies 2,200 1,791 409

Capital 17,898 21,157 (3,259)

Total Expendilures 201.112 194,157 6.955

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (162.684) (144,114) 18.570

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 162.684 144,114 (18,570)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 162.684 144.114 (18.570)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year $ $ S
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· ALCOHOLAND DRUG PROGRAMS

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2010

Total

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 678,435 $ 765,797 s 87,362

Charge for Services 170,717 264,386 93,669

Miscellaneous 1,641 1,641

Total Revenues 849,152 1,031,824 182,672

Expenditures

PublicHealth

Personnel 1,080.836 1.019,429 61,407

Purchased Services 229,979 240,568 (10,589)

Supplies 31,075 23,443 7,632

Capital (2,274) (1) (2,273)

Total Expenditures 1,339,616 1.283.439 56.177

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (490,464) (251.615) 238,849

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 493,665 278,545 (215.120)

Transfers Out (3.201) (26.930) (23.729)

Total OtherFinancing Sources(Uses) 490.464 251.615 (238.849)

Net Change in FundBalance

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 1,069 1,069

FundBalance at End of Year s 1,069 $ 1,069 $
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDSPROGRAMS
June30. 2010

Central Employed Supervised Service Family Gift PortRayal Early

Adminis- Services Management Coordination Support Store Residence Intervention

tration Program Program Program Program Program Program Program

~
Equityin Pooled CashandInvestments $ 77,756 $ 100,677 $ 15,943 $ 9.248 $ $ 1,317 $ 102.919 $ 15.780
Receivables, Net 50 3,810
DuefromOtherGovemments --- 7,239 . .--- ---
TotalAssets 77.806 104,487 15,943 16,487 --- .....1lli. 102,919 15,780

LIABILITIES ANDFUNp EQUITY
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 14,878 $ 24,568 $ 70 $ 1,070 $ $ $ 18,677 $ 968
Accrued Payroll 24,297 45,729 1,471 15,157 54.933 14,812
Dueto Others 38.631
Defene<! Revenues --- ---- ---
TotalUabitilies 77,806 70.297 1.541 16,227 - - 73,610 15.780--- ---
FUNp BALANCE

Reserved for Special RevenueFunds --- 34.190 14.402 260 - -1.ill. 29.309---
--- 34.190 14.402 260 - -1.ill. 29.309---

FundBalanceat Endof Year $ 77.806 $ 104,487 $ 15.943 $ 16,487 -$--" $ 1,317 $ 102.919 $ 15.780
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(I
Beaufort County

South Carolina

1'/1010 by Pat Keown

The private gardens of Beaufort County arc enjoyed throughout the year . A mild climate and

healthy balance of sun and rain make the County a garde ner' s paradise. xtcuy varieties of semi­

tropica l and trad itional flowers and plants create vivid co lo r in yards. parks and along road ways.

Master gardening programs arc popular with residents who enjoy their homegro wn flowers and

vegetables.



Summer Community Enhanced Vacation Community

Services Training Services in your Respite Rehabi5tation CTH 1 Support

Program Program Program Community Program Program Program Waiver Total

S 16.855 S 185.276 S 40.751 S S 161 S 25.620 S 8.981 S 1.024 S 602.308

30 1.168 5.056

--- -----lli. - 135 --- 7,614---
16,885 188,442 40,991 ~ 25,755 8.981 1.024 614.978

$ 2.110 $ 17.924 $ 4,183 $ $ $ 137 S 5.987 $ 863 $ 91.435

2,210 60293 161 294 161 219.518

38,631

~ --- - - 6.125--- ---
11,045 78.217 ~ ~ 137 ~ 1.024 358.309

----2.lli. 108.225 36,808 --- 25.618 ~ 258,669

5.840 108.225 36,808 --- 25.618 --ll.!!!!. 258,669

!..1!:!!! S 186,442 ~ $ !.....1ll S 25.755 !.!&ll S 1.024 S 614,978
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDSPROGRAMS

For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010

CentralAdministration

Variance

Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest S S 3,454 s 3,454

Miscellaneous 1.360 1,360

Tolal Revenues 4.814 4,814

Expenditures
PublicHealth

Personnel (13,703) (13,703)

Purchased Services 168,727 150,368 18,359

Supplies 38,262 28.798 7,464

Capital 1198,686) (174,352) (24,334)

TotalExpenditures (7,400) 4,814 (12,214)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures 7,400 (7,400)

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)
Transfers Out 17.400) (7.400)

TotalOtherFinancing SourcesIUses) 17.400) (7.400)

NetChangein FundBalance (14,800)

FundBalance at Beginning of Year

FundBalance at Endof Year S S S 114,800)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 3D,2010

Employed Services Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 883,119 S 883,121 S 2
Miscellaneous 20,355 20.518 163

Total Revenues 903,474 903,639 165

Expenditures

Public Heallh

Personnel 1,186,656 1,107,041 79,615

Purchased Services 284,296 283,476 820

Supplies 72,520 68,465 4.055

Capital 83,140 68,298 14.842

Total ExpendilUres 1,626,612 1.527.280 99,332

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (723,138) (623,641) 99,497

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 723.138 623.667 (99.471)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 723,138 623.667 (99,471)

Net Change in Fund Balance 26 26

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 34,164 34.164

Fund Balance at End of Year S 34.164 S 34.190 S 26
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS- DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDS PROGRAMS

For the YearEndedJune30, 2010

Supervised ManagementProgram

Variance

Positive
Budget Aclual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental S 30,277 S 30,277 S

TotalRevenues 30,277 30,277

Expenditures

PublicHealth

Personnel 26,375 29,494 (3,119)

Purchased Services 589 447 142

Supplies 1,618 1.252 366

Capital 1,695 3,832 (2.137)

TotalExpenditures 30.277 35,025 (4.748)

Excessof Revenues Over(Under)Expendilures (4,748) (4,748)

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)
TransfersIn 4.749 4.749

TotarOtherFinancing Sources (Uses) 4.749 4.749

Net Changein Funcl Bali:ince

Fund Balanceal Beginning 01 Year 14.401 14.401

Fund Balanceal Endof Year S 14,401 S 14.402 s
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDS PROGRAMS

For the YearEndedJune 30,2010

ServiceCoordinationProgram

Variance

Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 377,906 S 375.353 s (2,553)

Tolal Revenues 377,906 375.353 (2,553)

Expendilures

PublicHeallh

Personnel 376,544 349,492 27,052
Purchased Services 10,292 7,549 2,743
Supplies 5.350 3,789 1,561
Capital 9,867 22.983 (13.116)

Tolal Expenditures 402,053 383,813 18.240

Excess01 Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (24,147) (8,460) 15,687

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

TransfersIn 24.147 8.720 (15,427)

TotalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses) 24.147 8.720 (15.427)

NetChangein FundBalance 260 260

Fund Balance at Beginning 01 Year

Fund Balance al Endof Year S S 260 S 260
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUNDBALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS- DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDSPROGRAMS

Forthe YearEndedJune 30,2010

FamilySupportProgram

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 6.825 S 6,825 S

TotalRevenues 6.825 6.825

Expenditures
PublicHealth

Purchased Services 6.825 7.074 (249)

TotalExpenditures 6,825 7.074 (249)

Excess or Revenues Over(Under)Expenditures (249) (249)

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In 249 249

TotalOtherFinancing Sources (Uses) 249 249

NetChangein FundBalance

FundBalance at Beginning or Year

FundBalance at Endor Year S S S
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUEFUNDS- DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDSPROGRAMS

For the Year EndedJune 30. 2010

Gilt Siore Program

Variance
Positive

Budget AClual (Negative)

Revenues

Miscellaneous S 2.350 s 2.387 S 37

TotalRevenues 2,350 2,387 37

Expenditures

Pub6cHeallh

Supplies 2,350 2.230 120

TotalExpenditures 2.350 2,230 120

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures 157 157

OtherFinancingSources (Uses)

Transfers In

Tolal Olher FinancingSources(Uses)

Net Changein FundBalance 157 157

Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year 1.160 1,160

Fund Balanceal Endof Year s 1,160 S 1.317 $ 157
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDS PROGRAMS

For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010

PortRoyalResidenceProgram

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental $ 910,938 S 910,937 s (1)

Chargelor Services 99,024 103,529 4,505

TotalRevenues 1,009,962 1.014.466 4.504

Expenditures

PublicHealth

Personnel 1,245,646 1,153,004 92,642

Purchased Services 80,164 64,976 15,188

Supplies 84,058 74,012 10,046

Capital 48,580 38,191 10,389

TotalExpenditures 1,458,448 1,330,183 128,265

Excess01 Revenues Over (Under)Expendilures (448,486) (315,717) 132,769

OtherFinandngSources (Uses)

Transfers In 437,113 315,705 (121,408)

TOlal OtherFinancing Sources(Uses) 437,113 315,705 (121.4081

Net Changein FundBalance (11,373) (12) 11,381

Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year 29.321 29,321

FundBalanceat End01 Year S 17,948 S 29,309 s 11,361
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBININGSTATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUEFUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDSPROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS- DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDSPROGRAMS

For the Year EndedJune30, 2010

SummerServicesProgram

Variance

Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmenlal $ $ 13,127 $ 13,127
Chargefor Services 750 (750)
Miscellaneous 660 660

TotalRevenues 750 13,787 13,037

Expenditures

PublicHealth

Personnel 12,321 9,461 2,860
Purchased Services 11,709 7,669 4,040
Supplies 3,765 261 3,504

Tolal Expenditures 27,795 17,391 10,404

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (27,045) (3,604) 23,441

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)
Transfers In 27,045 3,606 (23,439)

TolalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses) 27,045 3,606 (23,439)

NetChangein FundBalance 2 2

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 5,838 5.838

FundBalance at Endof Year $ 5,838 $ 5,840 $ 2
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Community Training Program

Variance

Positive

BUdget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 1,057,059 S 1.058,196 S 1,137

Charge for Services 135.252 141.507 6.255

Total Revenues 1.192,311 1.199.703 7.392

Expenditures

Public Health

Personnel 1.455,978 1,313,989 141,989

Purchased Services 94,948 81,440 13,508

Supplies 117,071 93,927 23,144

Capital 36.823 31,740 5.083

Total Expenditures 1,704.820 1.521,096 183.724

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (512.509) (321,393) 191,116

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 512.509 321.391 (191.118)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 512.509 321,391 (191,1181

Net Change in Fund Balance (2) (2)

Fund Balance at Beginning 01Vear 108,227 108,227

Fund Balance at End of Vear S 108.227 S 108,225 S (2)
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBININGSTATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS- DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDS PROGRAMS

For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY,SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDS PROGRAMS

For the YearEndedJune 30,2010

Vacation in Your Community

Variance
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovemmental S S S

Tolal Revenues

Expenditures

PublicHealth
Personnel

TotalExpenditures

Excessof Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Olher Financing Sources(Uses)

TransfersOut (24) 24

TotalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses) (24) 24

NetChangein FundBalance (24) 24

FundBalance at Beginning or Year 24 24

Fund Balance at Endof Year S 24 s S 24
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDS PROGRAMS

For the YearEndedJune30, 2010

RespiteProgram

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 13,635 S 10.969 S (2.666)

TotalRevenues 13.635 10.969 (2.666)

Expenditures

PublicHealth

Personnel 6,586 4,628 1,958

Purcl1ased Services 8,635 9,309 (674)

Capital 3,425 263 3,162

TolalExpenditures 18.646 14,200 4,446

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (5,011) (3,231) 1,780

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

TransfersIn 5.011 3,231 (1.780)

TolalOtherFinancing Sources(Uses) 5.011 3,231 (1,780)

NetChangein Fund Balance

FundBalance at Beginning of Year

FundBalance at Endof Year S S S
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Rehabilitation Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental s s 45.260 s 45,260

Total Revenues 45,260 45,260

Expenditures

Public Health

Personnel 6,586 6,367 219

Purchased Services 44.911 (44.911)

Capital 26.039 968 25.071

Total Expenditures 32.625 52.246 (19.621)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (32,625) (6,986) 25,639

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 32,625 6,987· (25,638)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 32,625 6,987 (25,638)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 25,617 25,617

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 25,617 $ 25.618 S
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIALREVENUE FUNDS-DISABILITIES AND SPECIALNEEDSPROGRAMS

For the YearEndedJune30,2010

CTH 1 Program

Variance

Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental s 27,906 s 26,767 $ (1,139)

TotalRevenues 27,906 26,767 (1,139)

Expenditures
PublicHealth

Personnel 13,004 10,408 2,596
Purchased Services 19,135 29.243 (10,108)
Capital 6,833 748 6,085

Total Expenditures 38,972 40,399 (1,427)

Excessof Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (11,068) (13.632) (2,566)

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)
TransfersIn 11,068 13.632 2,566

TotalOtherFinancing Sources (Uses) 11,068 13,632 2,566

NetChangein FundBalance

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 2,700 2,700

FundBalance at Endor Year $ 2,700 $ 2,700 $

-174 -

ScheduleC-12

Sheet 15



BEAUFORT COUNlY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 3D, 2010
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Beaufort County

South Caro lina

Photo by Patr ick Moore

T here are many types of islands that make up the "Sea Island" landscape of Beaufort Count y.

Barrier islands protect the mainland during storms by acting as a buffe r from the ocean .



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 3,897,329 $ 3,950,713 S 53,384

Charge for Services 235,026 245,036 10.010

Interest 3,454 3,454

Miscellaneous 22,705 24.925 2.220

Total Revenues 4,155,060 4,224.128 69,068

Expenditures

Public Health

Personnel 4.666,736 4,338,685 328,051

Purchased Services 973,909 998,213 (24,304)

Supplies 331,215 276,039 55,176

Capital 58,769 27.858 30.911

Total Expenditures 6,030,629 5,640.795 389.834

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,875,569) (1,416.667) 458.902

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,871,596 1,438,123 (433,473)

Transfers Out (7,400) (24) 7.376

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1.864.196 1,438.099 (426.097)

Net Change in Fund Balance (11,373) 21,432 32,805

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 237,237 237.237

Fund Balance at End of Year S 225.864 S 258.669 S 32.805
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WELFARE PROGRAMS

June 30, 2010

Daufuskie Sheldon HUD

Ferry Rehabilitation Homes

Grant Project Program

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments s 43,969 $ 1,345 $ 9,507

Receivables, Net 3,689

Due from Other Governments 26,484

Total Assets 74,142 1.345 9,507

LIABILITIES AND FUND EaUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable S 6,409 S S 9,507

Accrued Payroll

Total Liabilities 6,409 9,507

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for Special Revenue Funds 67,733 1.345

67,733 1,345

Fund Balance at End of Year s 74,142 $ 1,345 S 9,507
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Dale
Waler

Grant

Collaborative

Organization

for Services
to Youth

S 29,183
8,125
4.750

42.058

S 10,676
8.023

18,699

23,359

23,359

$ 42,058

Total

$ 84,004
11,814
31,234

127.052

$ 26.592
8.023

34.615

92,437

92.437

S 127,052
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WELFARE PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Daufuskie Ferry Grant

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental $ 50,000 $ 49,730 S (270)

Charge for Services 27,704 51,515 23,811

Total Revenues 77,704 101,245 23,541

Expenditures

Public Welfare

Purchased Services 152,656 (152,656)

Other 152,704 152,704

Total Expenditures 152,704 152,656 48

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (75,000) (51,411) 23,589

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 75,000 75,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 75.000 75.000

Net Change in Fund Balance 23,589 23.589

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 44.144 44.144

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 44,144 $ 67,733 $ 23,589
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WELFARE PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Sheldon Rehabilitation Project

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Miscellaneous S 225 S 275 s 50

Total Revenues 225 275 50

Expenditures

Public Welfare

Other

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 225 275 50

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance 225 275 50

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,070 1,070

Fund Balance at End of Year S 1,295 S 1.345 s 50
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUE FUNDS· PUBLICWELFARE PROGRAMS

For the YearEnded June 30,2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· PUBLIC WELFARE PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Dale Water Grant

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental s 9.500 S 9.500 S

Total Revenues 9.500 9.500

Expenditures

Public Welfare

Capital 9.500 9.500

Total Expenditures 9.500 9.500

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year S $ s

-182 -



Schedule C·14

Sheet 5

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· PUBLIC WELFARE PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Collaborative Organization for Services to Youth

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 72,528 S 67,616 S (4,912)

Charge for Services 13,243 21,187 7,944

Miscellaneous 25,000 17,688 (7,312)

Total Revenues 110,771 106,491 (4,280)

Expenditures

Public Welfare

Personnel 161.365 157,512 3,853

Purchased Services 49.987 53,534 (3,547)

Supplies 2,419 2,404 15

Total Expenditures 213,771 213,450 321

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (103.000) (106.959) (3,959)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 103.000 103,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 103,000 103.000

Net Change in Fund Balance (3.959) (3.959)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 27.318 27.318

Fund Balance at End of Year s 27.318 $ 23,359 S (3.959)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - PUBLIC WELFARE PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental s 706,954 S 702,777 S (4,177)

Charge for Services 40,947 72,702 31,755

Miscellaneous 25,225 17.963 (7,262)

Total Revenues 773.126 793,442 20,316

Expenditures

Public Welfare

Personnel 161,365 157,512 3,853

Purchased Services 49,987 206,190 (156,203)

Supplies 2,419 2,404 15

Other 727,630 575.931 151.699

Total Expenditures 950.901 951,537 (636)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (177,775) (158,095) 19,680

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 178.000 178.000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 178.000 178.000

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year s

225

72,532

72.757
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURAL AND RECREATIONPROGRAMS

June30, 2010

Library Library

Library Library Special Impact

Grants Trust Trust Fees

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled Cashand Investments S 22,569 S 23,044 s 312,918 S 3,371,432

Receivables, Net 12,719

Due from OtherGovernments

Total Assets 22.569 23,044 312.918 3,384.151

LIABILITIES AND FUNDEQUITY

Liabilities

AccountsPayable S 3,460 S S 943 S 5,191

AccruedPayroll

Total Liabilities 3,460 943 5,191

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for Special Revenue Funds 19,109 23,044 311,975 3,378.960

19,109 23,044 311,975 3,378,960

FundBalanceat Endof Year S 22,569 S 23,044 S 312,918 S 3,384,151
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Summer

PALS PALS State Nutrition

Capital Impact PARD Program

Program Fees Grants Grants Tolal

S 45,926 S 2,629,741 S S 50,562 S 6,456,192

26,132 38,851

47,594 47,594

45.926 2.655.873 98.156 6.542.637

Schedule C-15

s

45.926

45.926

s 5,843

5,843

2.650,030

2.650.030

s s 82.677

15,479

98.156

S 98,114

15,479

113.593

6,429.044

6,429.044

s 45.926 S 2,655,873 s s
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS • CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

library Grants

Variance

Positive

BUdget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 57,369 S 57.370 S 1

Miscellaneous 5.790 2,239 (3.551)

Total Revenues 63.159 59,609 (3.550)

Expenditures

Cultural and Recreation

Purchased Services 3.990 4.590 (600)

Supplies 33,871 34.223 (352)

Total Expenditures 79,574 60.978 18,596

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (16,415) (1,369) 15,046

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance (16,415) (1.369) 15.046

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 20,478 20,478

Fund Balance at End of Year S 4,063 $ 19,109 $ 15.046
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Library Trust

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Miscellaneous $ 1,147 s 1.554 s 407

Total Revenues 1.147 1.554 407

Expenditures

Cultural and Recreation

Other 11.147 14,095 (2.948)

Total Expenditures 11,147 14,095 (2.948)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (10,000) (12.541) (2,541)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance (10.000) (12.541 ) (2.541)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 35.585 35.585

Fund Balance at End of Year S 25.585 S 23,044 S (2.541)
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

LibrarySpecial Trust

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest S S 921 S 921

Total Revenues 921 921

Expenditures

Cultural and Recreation

Supplies 15,000 13,692 1,308

Total Expenditures 15.000 13,692 1.308

Excessof Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures (15.000) (12.771) 2,229

OtherFinancing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance (15,000) (12,771) 2,229

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 324,746 324.746

FundBalanceat Endof Year S 309,746 S 311.975 $ 2.229
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAlANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS· CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30.2010

PALS Capital Program

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Charge for Services S 20.000 S 20,746 S 746

Interest 444 444

Total Revenues 20.000 21,190 1,190

Expenditures

Cultural and Recreation

Supplies 32,498 32,497

Total Expenditures 32,498 32,497

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (12,498) (11.307) 1.191

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance (12,498) (11,307) 1.191

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 57.233 57.233

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 44.735 $ 45.926 $ 1.191
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

PALS Impact Fees

Variance

Positive

BUdget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licenses and Permits $ 557,500 S 345,823 $ (211,677)

Interest 15,718 15.718

Total Revenues 557,500 361.541 (195.959)

Expenditures

Cultural and Recreation

Capital 2,135,143 1,025,347 1.109,796

Total Expenditures 2,135,143 1,025,347 1,109,796

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,577,643) (663,806) 913,837

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,577.643) (663,806) 913.837

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 3,313.836 3.313.836

Fund Balance at End of Year s 1,736,193 s 2,650,030 S 913,837

-192 -

,0.4.3.. ., ..g..'. ..k);;:::;;::;:::; 1M;;:;;:;:; ; n $.0. ...



Schedule C-16

Sheet7

BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJORSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the YearEnded June 30, 2010

State PARD Grants

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental S 20,000 $ 15,789 $ (4,211)

Miscellaneous 3,000 3,000 .

Total Revenues 20.000 18,789 (1.211)

Expenditures

Cultural and Recreation

Capital 20,000 34.242 (14.242)

Total Expenditures 20,000 34.242 (14.242)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)Expenditures (15,453) (15,453)

OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

TransfersIn 15,452 15,452

Total OtherFinancing Sources (Uses) 15,452 15,452

Net Change in FundBalance (1) (1)

FundBalance at Beginning of Year

FundBalance at End of Year S $ S (1)
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIALREVENUEFUNDS- CULTURAL AND RECREATION PROGRAMS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Licensesand Permits S 1,033,006 S 563,524 S (469,482)

Intergovernmental 324,783 430,955 106,172

Chargefor Services 20,000 20,746 746

Interest 37,238 37,238

Miscellaneous 6,937 6,793 (144)

Total Revenues 1,384,726 1,059,256 (325,470)

Expenditures

Culturaland Recreation
Personnel 62,005 82,588 (20,583)
Purchased Services 188,281 271,836 (83,555)
Supplies 283,713 298,802 (15,089)
Capital 2,196,856 1,081,754 1,115,102
Other 11,147 14,095 (2,948)

Total Expenditures 2,742.002 1,749,075 992,927

Excessof Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,357,276) (689,819) 667,457

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 15,452 15,452
TransfersOut (422.678) (422,677) 1

Total Other Financing Sources(Uses) (422.678) (407,225) 15.453

Net Changein Fund Balance (1.779,954) (1,097,044) 682,910

Fund Balanceat Beginning of Year 7,526,088 7,526.088

Fund Balanceat Endof Year S 5.746,134 s 6.429.044 S 682.910
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Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo by Peggy Macliean

This large piece of driftwood likely washed ashore aft er erosion etc away its root structure in the

maritime fo rest. Erosion is a natural occurrence and the beaches of Beaufort County are

constantly changing shape.



Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo hy Chris Kirk

Beaufort County has a thriving sea food industry. In add ition 10 finfish: shrimp and oysters arc

also abu ndant. However. todays shrimpers face serious challenges caused by competition from

other regions. strict environmental regu lations and rising insurance costs.



BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2010

Blulrton Bluffton

Parkway TIF

Bonds Bonds Totals

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 2,087.371 S 13,078.586 S 15.165.957

Total Assets S 2,087.371 S 13.078.586 S 15.165.957

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable S S S

Tolalliabilities

FUNP BALANCE

Reserved for Debt Service 2.087.371 13.078,586 15.165.957

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,087.371 S 13,078.586 S 15.165.957
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR DEBTSERVICE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

BlufftonParkwayBonds
Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Intergovernmental S 740,000 $ 740,000 S
Interest 5,000 7,241 2,241

Total Revenues 745,000 747,241 2,241

Expenditures
DebtService- Principal 700,000 700,000

DebtService- Interest andFees 1,217,250 1,217,250

Total DebtService Expenditures 1,917,250 1,917,250

Excess of Revenues Over(Under) Expenditures (1,172,250) (1,170,009) 2,241

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,462,465 1,638,561 176,096

Transfers Out (326,556) (326,556)

Total OtherFinancing Sources (Uses) 1,135,909 1,312,005 176,096

Net Change in FundBalance (36,341) 141,996 178,337

FundBalance at Beginning of Year 1,945,375 1,945,375

FundBalanceat Endof Year $ 1,909,034 s 2,087,371 $ 178,337
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

Bluffton TIF Bonds

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property Taxes $ 818,000 S 821,578 S 3,578

Interest 72,474 75,681 3,207

Total Revenues 890,474 897,259 6,785

Expenditures

Debt Service - Principal 280,000 280,000

Debt Service -Interest and Fees 1,045,000 1,045.000

Total Debt Service Expenditures 1,325,000 1,325,000

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (434,526) • (427,741) 6,785

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 1,430,218 1,850,213 419,995

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,430,218 1,850,213 419,995

Net Change in Fund Balance 995,692 1,422,472 426,780

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 11,656,114 11,656,114

Fund Balance at End of Year s 12,651,806 S 13.078,586 S 426,780
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBININGBALANCEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGESIN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGETAND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICEFUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Total
Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

PropertyTaxes $ 818,000 $ 821,578 $ 3,578

Intergovernmental 740,000 740,000

Interest 77,474 82,922 5,448

Total Revenues 1,635,474 1,644,500 9,026

Expenditures

DebtService - Principal 980,000 980,000

Debt Service - Interestand Fees 2,262,250 2,262,250

Total DebtServiceExpenditures 3,242,250 3.242.250

Excessof Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,606,776) (1,597,750) 9,026

Other Financing Sources(Uses)

Transfers In 2,892,683 3,488,774 596,091

Transfers Out (326,556) (326,556)

Total OtherFinancing Sources (Uses) 2.566,127 3,162,218 596,091

Net Change in Fund Balance 959,351 1,564,468 605,117

FundBalanceat Beginningof Year 13,601,489 13.601,489

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 14,560,840 S 15.165,957 $ 605.117
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

June 30, 2010

Bluffton Multicounty Administrative 2001

Parkway Industrial Building Bond

Project Park Renovations Projects

ASSETS

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 2,043,604 $ 24,061 S 5,927,952 S 142,853

Total Assets $ 2,043.604 $ 24,061 $ 5,927,952 S 142,853

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 174,001 $ 241 $ $ 2,750

Total Liabilities 174,001 241 2,750

FUND BALANCE

Reserved and Reserved for Encumbrances 10,835 597,988

Reserved for Capital Projects 1,858,768 23,820 5,329,964 140,103

Total Fund Equity 1,869,603 23,820 5,927,952 140,103

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,043,604 $ 24,061 $ 5,927,952 $ 142,853
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Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo by Zeke Jordan

The Great Blue Ilcron is another stunning wading bird ceru men to Beaufort County. Durin g the

breeding season their croaking calls can be heard from nests built in trees close to wetlands.

Both parents feed the young by regurgitating their food. They generally feed on small fish while

standing at the water ' s edge.



2002 2003 2005 2009 2010

Bond Bond Bond Bond Bond

Projects Projects Projects Projects Projects Totals

S 442.804 S 224.967 S 3.097.269 S 916.848 S 5.300.684 S 18.121.042

S 442.804 S 224.967 S 3.097.269 S 916,848 S 5.300,684 S 18,121,042

Schedule E-1

S 16,329

16,329

426,386

89

426.475

s

224.967

224.967

s 291,865

291.865

22,865

2.782.539

2.805,404

s 7,437

7,437

1,850

907.561

909,411

s 85,922

85.922

969,659

4.245.103

5.214.762

s 578.545

578.545

~,029,583

15.512.914

17.542,497

S 442.804 $ 224.967 S 3.097.269 s 916.848
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTHCAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES· BUDGETAND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITALPROJECT FUNDS
For the YearEndedJune 30, 2010

BlufftonParkway Project

ScheduleE·2
Sheet 1

Revenues
Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures
CapitalProjects

Excessof Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
TransfersIn

Total OtherFinancing Sources(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

FundBalance at Beginning of Year

s

Budget

2,407

2,407

607,712

(605,305)

(605,305)

2,451,308

s

Actual

2.844

2.844

584,549

(581,705)

(581,705)

2,451,308

s

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

437

437

23,163

23,600

23.600

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 1,846.003
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Multicounty Industrial Park

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property Taxes $ 19,750 $ 23,809 S 4,059

Interest 11 11

Total Revenues 19,750 23.820 4.070

Expenditures

Capital Projects 19.750 19.750

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 23,820 23,820

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance 23,820 23,820

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year $ $ 23.820 s 23.820
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Administration Building Renovations

Variance

Positive

BUdget Actual (Negative)

Schedule E-2

Sheet 3

Revenues

Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Capital Projects

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

$ 6.267

6.267

754,774

(748,507)

(748,507)

6.077.911

$ 6.827

6.827

156,786

(149,959)

(149,959)

6,077.911

s 560

560

597.988

598.548

598.548

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 5.329,404
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

2001 General Obligation Bond Projects

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Schedule E·2

Sheet 4

Revenues

Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Capital Projects

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

s

$

143,614

(143,614)

(143.614)

143,614
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2

3.513

(3,511)

(3.511)

143.614

140.103

s

$

2

2

140,101

140,103

140.103

140.103



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

2002 General Obligation Bond Projects

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Schedule E-2

Sheet 5

Revenues

Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Capital Projects

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

$ 1,600

1,600

1,297,870

(1,296,270)

$ 1,111

1,111

870,906

(869,795)

$ (489)

(489)

426,964

426,475

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

(502,048) (502,048)

(502,048) (502,048)

(1,798,318) (1.371,843)

1.798,318 1.798.318

s $ 426,475 $
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30,2010

2003 General Obligation Bond Projects

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Schedule E-2

Sheet 6

Revenues

Interest

Total Revenues

$ 186

186

$ 153

153

$ (33)

(33)

Expenditures

Capital Projects

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

225,000

(224,814) 153

(152.277) (152.277)

(152,277) (152,277)

(377,091) (152,124)

377,091 377.091

S S 224.967 S
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

2005 General Obligation Bond Projects

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental s 40.000 S 40.000 s
Interest 3.229 3.385 156

Total Revenues 43.229 43.385 156

Expenditures

Capital Projects 3,400.958 595.710 2.805.248

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (3,357.729) (552,325) 2.805,404

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 256.548 256,548

Transfers Out (160.000) (160.000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 96.548 96.548

Net Change in Fund Balance (3.261.181) (455,777) 2.805,404

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 3.261.181 3.261.181

Fund Balance at End of Year s S 2.805.404 S 2.805.404
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

2009 General Obligation Bond Projects

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Schedule E-2

Sheet 8

Revenues

Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Capital projects

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance at End of Year

$

$

1,698

1.698

1.330.922

(1,329.224)

39.223

(95.334)

(56.111)

(1,385.335)

1.385,335
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2.331

2.331

422.144

(419,813)

39,223

(95,334)

(56,111)

(475.924)

1.385.335

909,411

s

s

633

633

908.778

909,411

909,411

909,411
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BEAUFORTCOUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES· BUDGETAND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJORCAPITALPROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

2010Bond Projects

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental s 99.297 $ 99,297 s
Interest 8.000 4,483 (3,517)

Total Revenues 107.297 103,780 (3.517)

Expenditures

Capital projects 16.398.864 11,180,585 5,218,279

Excessof Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (16.291,567) (11,076,805) 5,214,762

Other Financing Sources(Uses)

Transfersout (967,742) (967,742)

Total OtherFinancing Sources(Uses) (967,742) (967,742)

Net Change in FundBalance (17,259,309) (12,044,547) 5,214,762

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 17,259,309 17.259.309

Fund Balanceat End of Year $ $ 5,214,762 $ 5.214,762

- 210-



Schedule E-2

Sheet 10

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING BALANCE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Total

Variance

Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Property Taxes $ 19,750 $ 23,809 S 4.059

Intergovernmental 139.297 139.297

Interest 23.387 21.147 (2.240)

Total Revenues 182.434 184.253 1.819

Expenditures

Capital Projects 24,179,464 13.814.193 10.365.271

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (23,997.030) (13.629.940) 10.367.090

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 295.771 295.771

Transfers Out (1.877,401) (1.877,401 )

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1.581.630) (1.581.630)

Net Change in Fund Balance (25.578.660) (15.211.570) 10.367.090

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 32.754,067 32.754.067

Fund Balance at End of Year S 7.175,407 S 17.542.497 S 10.367.090
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Balance Balance

July 1.2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010

Broad Creek Public Service District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 152.911 S 1,839,667 S 1,913,774 S 78,804

Due to Agency:

Operations S 139,826 S 1,535,129 S 1,608,262 S 66.693

Water/Sewer 2,700 44.026 45,000 1.726

Debt Service 10.313 260.512 260,512 10.313

Capital Projects 72 72

S 152,911 s 1,839,667 s 1.913,774 S 78,804

Fripp Island public Service District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 737,682 S 1.388.801 S 1.037,163 s 1,089,320

Due to Agency:

Erosion Control S 67,074 S 23,984 S S 91,058

Water/Sewer 24,795 369,870 130,000 264,665

Debt Service 241.338 421.850 402,371 260,817

Fire Department 1% Funds 98,208 27.975 5,840 120.343

Fire Operations 306,267 545,122 498,952 352.437

$ 737,682 $ 1,388,801 $ 1.037,163 S 1,089,320

Forest Beach Public Service District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments s S 264,230 s 264,230 $

Due to Agency:

Operations s S 96 s 96 $
Fire Department 1% Funds 257,486 257,486

Fire Operations 5.913 5.913

Fire Debt Service 735 735

S S 264,230 $ 264,230 $
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Sheet 2

BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS· CONTINUED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Balance Balance

July 1. 2009 Additions Deductions June 30.2010

Hilton Head #1 Public Service District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 783.353 S 4.799.883 S 4,842.059 S 741.177

Due to Agency:

Operations S 28.273 S 1.029.154 S 959,000 S 98,427

Water/Sewer 8.544 539.324 477.000 70.868

Debt Service 496.751 970,401 946,653 520,499

Capital Projects 237.140 1,767,260 2,004,400

Assessment A 9.734 349.716 335,000 24,450

Assessment B 267 27,568 20,000 7,835

Assessment C 2,644 85,658 70,000 18,302

Assessment D 30,802 30,006 796

s 783,353 $ 4,799.883 s 4.842.059 $ 741,177

South Beach Public Service District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 181.196 $ 147.530 s 305.300 S 23.426

Due to Agency:

Water/Sewer $ 165,159 S 132.816 s 292.367 S 5.608

Debt Service 16.037 1.781 17.818

Fire Operations 12.207 12.207

Fire Debt Service 726 726

$ 181.196 s 147.530 S 305.300 s 23,426

Bluffton Fire District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments s 5.226,447 s 10,078,885 S 9.138.747 S 6.166,585

Due to Agency:

Operations $ 2.804.263 $ 9,450,516 S 8.324.651 $ 3,930.128

Debt Service 545.099 177.067 176.651 545.515

Capital Projects 2 2

Fire Department 1% Fund 44,495 304.690 10.000 339.185

Impact Fees 1.832.588 146.612 627,445 1,351.755

S 5.226.447 S 10,078,885 S 9.138.747 S 6.166,585
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Sheet 3

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS· CONTINUED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Balance Balance

July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30,2010

Burton Fire District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 1.705.212 S 4.588.780 S 4,478,431 S 1,815,561

Due to Agency:

Operations S 868,615 S 4,118,606 S 3.768,285 S 1.218,936

Debt Service 319.543 402.259 406.312 315,490

Fire Department 1% Fund 131.884 41,224 8.834 164,274

Impact Fees 385.170 26,691 295,000 116.861

$ 1.705.212 S 4,588.780 s 4,478,431 S 1,815,561

Daufuskie Island Fire District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 17.878 S 962.541 S 934.281 S 46.138

Due to Agency:

Operations s S 883.511 S 883,511 S
Debt Service 7,975 60,446 38,000 30,421

Fire Department 1% Fund 527 14.078 12.770 1,835

Impact Fees 9.376 4,506 13.882

s 17,878 $ 962,541 $ 934,281 S 46,138

Ladys Island/St Helena Island Fire District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 864.484 S 4.698.443 S 4.614,938 S 947.989

Due to Agency:

Operations S 315,254 S 4,366,164 S 4,270.692 S 410,726

Debt Service 25,158 216,453 189.999 51,612

Fire Department 1% Fund 177,593 79,218 52,420 204,391

Impact Fees 346,479 36.608 101.827 281.260

$ 864,484 S 4,698.443 s 4.614,938 S 947,989

- 214-



Schedule F

Sheet 4
BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Balance Balance
July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30. 2010

Sheldon Fire District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 167,683 s 1,118,044 $ 1,095.192 $ 190.535

Due to Agency:

Operations s 91,779 $ 1.031.681 s 1,011.000 s 112,460

Debt Service 16,825 68,756 66.772 18,809

Fire Department 1% Fund 31,948 15.023 17,420 29,551

Impact Fees 27.131 2.584 29,715

S 167.683 S 1.118.044 S 1.095.192 S 190,535

City of Beaufort

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 40.788 S 6.778.337 S 6,773.041 S 46.084

Due to Agency:

Municipal s 40.788 S 6.385.428 S 6,380,132 s 46,084

Stormwater Fees 343.375 343,375

Fire Department 1% Fund 49.534 49.534

S 40,788 s 6.778.337 S 6.773.041 S 46,084

Town of Port Royal

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 1.621 s 2,466,031 S 2,451.563 s 16.089

Due to Agency:

Municipal s 1.621 $ 2.300.071 S 2,285.603 s 16,089

Stormwater Fees 154.026 154.026

Fire Department 1% Fund 11.934 11.934

S 1.621 $ 2,466,031 S 2,451.563 s 16,089

Town of Bluffton

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments s 107,423 $ 6,375,220 s 6,417,539 $ 65,104

Due to Agency:

Municipal s 107,423 $ 5,360,325 s 5.402,644 $ 65,104

Stormwater Fees 1.014,895 1.014.895

$ 107,423 s 6.375.220 $ 6,417,539 s 65.104
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Balance Balance

July 1, 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010

Town of Hardeeville

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S S 60 s S 60

Due to Agency:

Municipal s S 60 S $ 60

S s 60 S S 60

Town of Yemassee

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1.70 s 21,182 $ 17,904 S 3,448

Due to Agency:

Municipal S 170 S 21,049 $ 17,771 $ 3,448

Fire Department 1% Fund 133 133

s 170 s 21,182 S 17.904 $ 3,448

Town of Hilton Head

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments s 200,541 S 26,197,036 S 26.231.892 S 165.685

Due to Agency:

Municipal S 193,016 $ 23.306.612 S 23.342.717 S 156.911

Stormwater Fees 2.554.829 2,554,829

Fire Operations 19,777 19,777

Fire Debt Service 7,525 1.249 8.774
Fire Department 1% Fund 314.569 314.569

s 200.541 $ 26,197.036 $ 26.231,892 $ 165.685

Beaufort-Jasper Academy for Career EXcellence

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 665.719 s 4,849.036 s 4.393.049 S 1.121,706

Due to Agency:

General S 386.293 s 4.036.280 $ 3,496.216 S 926,357

Special Revenue Funds 279,426 750.335 834,412 195,349

Education Improvement Act 62.421 62,421

S 665,719 S 4.849.036 S 4.393.049 S 1.121.706
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS· CONTINUED

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Balance Balance

July 1. 2009 Additions Deductions June 30. 2010

Beaufort County Schoo! District

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments s 71.857.008 S 376.177.917 S 399.932.755 $ 48.102.170

Due to Agency:

General S 37,799.295 $ 180,883,743 s 189,916,698 S 28,766,340

Special Revenue Funds 675 15,986.144 15,981.819 5.000

Debt Service 9.233.877 45,513,516 46,300,746 8,446,647

Capital Projects 2.194.528 183.796 193,636 2.184,688

School Lunch Program 549.909 7.231.181 6,514,363 1.266,727

School 8% Projects 4.515.776 47,950.500 52,424,159 42,117

Education Improvement Act 6.641,498 13.165,453 13.263.621 6.543.330

8% BANS 1.775,499 1.279 1,742,757 34.021

Facilities 2008 4.806,467 41.573.391 46.379.171 687

Facilities 2007 4,338.931 12.084.578 15.629.682 793,827

Facilities 2005 553 11.604.336 11.586.103 18.786

S 71.857,008 $ 376.177,917 $ 399.932.755 s 48.102.170

Special Assessments

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 136.787 $ 102.259 s 60.661 S 178,385

Due to Agency:

Burlington Estates S 17.966 $ 910 $ $ 18.876

Burlington Land 13.162 667 13.829

Cedarcrest 2,127 31.060 31,000 2,187

Kings Grant II 15.299 1.378 16.677

O'Neal Place 10,751 609 11.360

Pleasant Farm 330 19,230 19.230 330

Robin Wood 14,490 802 15,292

Seabrook 40,044 37.243 77,287

Woodland Estates 12,372 491 12,863

Brown's Island 10.246 9.869 10,431 9,684

S 136,787 $ 102.259 s 60.661 S 178,385
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BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS - CONTINUED

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Balance Balance

July 1. 2009 Additions Deductions June 30, 2010

Departmentally Held Funds

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments S 8.231,614 S 58.148,592 S 50,805,319 S 15,574,887

Due to Agency:

Clerk of Court S S 7,988,290 $ S 7,988,290

Master in Equity. Foreclosures 474,200 23.064,871 22,647,007 892,064

Register of Deeds - Bonds 1,099,002 175,107 748,407 525.702

Treasurer- JPC Escrow 247.061 44.474 40,909 250.626

Treasurer- Bankruptcy Escrow 170,668 31,281 30.609 171,340

Treasurer - Surplus Tax Escrow 6,240,683 26,844,569 27.338.387 5,746.865

S 8,231,614 S 58,148,592 S 50.805,319 S 15,574.887

Total - All Agency Funds

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 91.078,517 S 511.002.474 S 525.707,838 $ 76.373.153

Due to Agency:

General s 91.078.517 S 511.002,474 $ 525.707.838 S 76.373.153
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULEOF FINES,FEES.ASSESSMENTS AND SURCHARGES
For the YearEnded June30,2010

Clerkof CourtFjnes, Fees,Assessments and Surcharges

Remitted to the StateTreasurer
Remitted to OtherAgencies
Retained by the County

Total Fines, Fees, Assessments and Surcharges Collected

Magistrate CoyrtsFines,Fees,Assessmentsand Surcharges

Remitted to the StateTreasurer

Remitted to OtherAgencies
Retained by the County

Total Fines. Fees, Assessments and Surcharges Collected

Victjms Assistance ServiceS

FundsCarried Forward from Prior Years

FeesandAssessments from the Clerk of Court

FeesandAssessments from the MagistrateCourts
Townof HillonHeadAllocation

CountyGeneral FundAllocation

FundsAllocated to Victim AssistanceServices

VictimAssistance Expenditures

FundsAvailable for Carryforward

-219 -
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711,240
31,539

327,516

1,070,295

1,340,409
22,991

1.065.838

2,429.238

59,029

36.056
141,507

54.253
303.364

594.209

(436.447)

157.762



Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo by Russ Dimke

·1111: ruins of the old Sheldon Church arc just one of several interesting. his toric landm arks in

Beaufort County. 1111: church was originally built between 1745 and 1755. It was later burned by

the British in the Revo lutionary War. It was reb uilt and burned again by Sherman during the

Civil War. Toda y. it provides a popular and enchanting backdrop for picnics and wedd ings.



Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo hy ram BrL'de lJ

H 1C ocean off Beaufort County provides countless opportunities lo r ou tdoo r rec reat ional

activities for families and individuals. You can camp out at Hunt ing Island State Park and join

(he sur fers on the beach then: the next mornin g.



Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo by Dianne Stewart

111c outdoor life in Beaufort County is appreciated by young and old - human and animal!

Equestrians enjoy saddling up and laking their horses to the local slate park where sun. water.

wide sandy beaches and forested tra ils make fur a great ou ting.



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

STATISTICAL SECTION

Thispartof theBeaufort Countycomprehensive annual financial reportpresents detailedinformation as a context

for understanding whatthe information in the financial statements, notedisclosures, and required supplementary
information saysabout the government's overall health.

CONTENTS

Financial Trends
These schedules containtrendinformation to help the reader understand howthe

govemment's financial performance andwell-being havechanged overtime.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules containinformation to helpthe reader assess the
government's mostsignificant local revenue source, property tax.

DebtCapacity
These schedules presentinformation to helpthe reader assess theaffordability of
thegovernment's currentlevelsof outstanding debtandthegovernment's ability to

issueadditional debt in the future.

Demographic andEconomic Information
These schedules offer demographic andeconomic indicators to helpthe reader
understand the environment withinwhich thegovernmenfs financial activities
takeplace.

Operating Information
These schedules containserviceandinfrastructure datato helpthe reader

understand howthe information in the government's financial reportrelates to the
services the government provides andtheactivities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted. the information in theseschedules is derived fromthe comprehensive
annual finanCial reportsfor the relevant year.
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Table 1

Sheet 1

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

LAST EIGHT- FISCAL YEARS

FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2005 FY2006

Governmental Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 23,002,639 $ 21,299,949 S 28,519,464 s 32,782,636

Restricted 2,697,059 7,468,002 9,280,423 11,065,409

Unrestricted 19,820,951 21.161.555 25.253,922 34,938,543

$ 45,520,659 s 49,929,507 S 63.053,809 S 78.786,588

Business-Type Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 12,212,120 $ 15,239,265 S 16,081,526 s 22,699,379

Unrestricted 252,098 (249,746) (1,168.615) (695,410)

$ 12,464,218 $ 14,989,519 S 14,912,911 $ 22,003,969

I
I\J
I\J
0

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt s 35,214.759 s 36,539,214 s 44,599,990 s 55,482,015

Restricted 2,697,058 7,468,002 9,280,423 11,065,409

Unrestricted 20,073,059 20,911,810 24,085,307 34,243,133

s 57,984,876 S 64.919,026 $ 77,965,720 S 100.790,557

- • Trend data is only available for the last 8 fiscal years due to the implementation of GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003. Ten years of data will be accumulated over time.
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Sheet 2

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

LAST EIGHT· FISCAL YEARS

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010

Governmental Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt s 52,776,852 S 70,906,216 S 82,426,443 S 126,759,144

Restricted 18,695,106 48,605,864 34,763,370 43,904,651

Unrestricted 41.453,757 45,443,709 83,769,216 27,135,536

$ 112,925,715 $ 164,955,789 s 200,959,029 $ 197,799,331

Business-Type Activities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net or Related Debt S 24,046.457 S 21,340,684 S 23,074,168 S 23,805,330

Unrestricted (918,246) 266,120 (2,067,504) (1,764,310)

$ 23,128,211 $ 21,606,804 $ 21,006,664 s 22,041,020

I

""""....a.
Invested in Capital Assets, Net or Related Debt S 76,823,309 $ 92,246,900 $ 105,500,611 S 150,564,474

Restricted 18,695,106 48,605,864 34,763,370 43,904,651

Unrestricted 40,535,511 45,709,829 81,701,712 25,371,226

S 136,053,926 s 186,562,593 S 221,965,693 S 219,840.351

... - Trend data is only available for the last 8 fiscal years due to the implementation of GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003. Ten years of data will be accumulated over time.



Table 2

Sheet 1

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST EIGHT* FISCAL YEARS

FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2005 FY 2006

Expenses

Governmental Activities

General Government S 23,749.085 $ 19,299,507 $ 20,435,569 S 23,243,294

Public Safety 29,561,663 32,383,389 35,659,419 39,033,433

Public Works 10,265,982 13,982,695 14,904,707 19,534,972

Public Health 6,244,613 6,864,153 7,343,920 7,836,966

Public Welfare 1,083,331 1,163,940 948,468 1,213,994

Cultural and recreation 6,897,218 7,809,386 8,628,664 10,964,080

Interest 4,088,987 6,820,142 7,591,323 8,435,071

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 81,890,879 88,323,212 95,512,070 110,261,810

I
Business-Type ActivitiesI'\)

I'\)
I'.) Garage 2,454,837 2,702,854 3,111,165 3,770,274

Stonnwater 3,437,623 4,212,250 3,904,685

Lady's Island Airport 1,742,811 405,512 464,560 678,804

Hilton Head Airport 3,863,545 1,505,316 1,632,968 1,801,388

Total Business-Type Expenses 8,061,193 8,051,305 9,420,943 10,155,151

Total Govenrment Expenses s 89,952,072 $ 96,374,517 s 104,933,013 S 120,416.961

.. - Trend data is only available for the last 8 fiscal years due to the implementation of GAse 34 in fiscal year 2003. Ten years of data will be accumulated over time.
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Sheet 2

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST EIGHT" FISCAL YEARS

FY 2003 FY 2004 FY2005 FY 2006

Program Revenues

Governmental Activities

Charges for services

General Government s 7,419,083 $ 9,264,212 $ 11,811,709 $ 15,892,733

Public Safety 6,7n.391 5,762,904 6,850,467 8,885,678

Public Works 2,152,936 2,354.902 3,198,409 3,886,634

Public Health 329,203 284,451 327,663 398,718

Public Welfare 21,669 5,871

Cultural and Recreation 2,393,054 1,966,944 2,823.252 3,863,531

Operating Grants and Contributions 7,556,846 6,739.125 5,893,333 7,466,688

Capital Grants and Contributions 2,770,673 3.148,936 6,751,581

K, Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 26,628,513 29,143,211 34.075.438 47,151,434

'"(.oJ

I

BUSiness-TypeActivities

Charges for services

Garage 2,454,761 2,665.716 3,108,261 3,746,682

Stormwater utility 3,674,636 3,930.774 4.207,825 4,529,385

lady's Island Airport 422.192 346,964 471,341 772,380

Hilton Head Airport 1,994,035 1,107,416 1,076,508 1,119,330

Operating Grants and Contributions 157,085 171.894 247,021

Capital Grants and Contributions 19,785 2,337,140 240,806 5,595,366

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 8,565,409 10,545,095 9,276.635 16,010,164

Total Government Program Revenues s 35,193,922 s 39,688,306 $ 43,352,073 S 63,161,598

Net (Expense) I Revenue

Govenrmental Activities $ (55.262,366) $ (59.180,001 ) $ (61,436,632) S (63,110.376)

Business-Type Activities 504,216 2,493.790 (144,308) 5.855,013

Total Government Net (Expense) I Revenue s (54,758,150) $ (56,686,211 ) s (61,580,940) $ (57,255,363)

.. - Trend data is only available for the last 8 fiscal years due to the implementation of GASe 34 in fiscal year 2003. Ten years of data will be accumulated over time.
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Sheet 3

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST EIGHT· FISCAL YEARS

FY 2003 FY2004 FY 2005 FY 2006

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

Property Taxes s 48,464,482 $ 54,454,188 $ 65,662,952 s 68,707,288

Sales Taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted 7,121,077 5,930,598 5,802.176 6,009,783

Unrestricted investment earnings 1,709,644 1,000,454 1,627,662 2,823,419

Transfers In I (Out)

Miscellaneous 606,578 647.994 1,467,144 1.303,665

Total Govenrmental Activities 57,901,781 62,033,234 74,559,934 78,844,155

Business-Type Activities
I

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted 1,164,820f\.)
f\.)
::.. Unrestricted Investments Earnings 46,820 31,511 63,721 71,225

Transfers In I (Out)

Miscellaneous 3,979

Total Business-Type Activities 46,820 31,511 67,700 1,236,045

Total Government S 57,948,601 s 62.064,745 S 74.627,634 s 80.080,200

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities S 2,639,415 S 2,853,233 S 13,123,302 S 15,733,779

Business-Type Activities 551,036 2,525,301 (76,608) 7.091,058

Total Government Changes in Net Assets $ 3,190,451 S 5.378,534 s 13.046,694 $ 22,824,837

• • Trend data is only available for the last 8 fiscal years due to the implementation of GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003. Ten years of data will be accumulated over time.
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Sheet 5

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST EIGHT* FISCAL YEARS

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010

Program Revenues

Governmental Activities

Charges for services

General Government $ 14,964,925 S 13,170,035 S 16,717,090 S 17,046,292

Public Safety 8,423,902 7,990,064 7,193,599 7,130,652

Public Works 5,678,226 7,016,889 3,125,389 3,502,896

Public Health 407,968 410,076 479,704 551,682

Public Welfare 9,725 16,525 22,429 72,702

Cultural and Recreation 2,817,775 2,809,504 1,098,497 1,279,808

Operating Grants and Contributions 6,980,330 8,312,520 8,046,928 8,353,023

Capital Grants and Contributions 8,567,228 33,285,927 4,223,966 2.654,488
I

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 47,850,079 73,011,540 40,907,602 40.591,543N
IV
(J)

Business-Type Activities

Charges for services

Garage 4,016,829 4,913,862

Stonnwater utility 2,880,264 3,233,196 2,845,833 3,713,687

Lady's Island Airport 676,061 729,620 535,016 490,691

Hilton Head Airport 1,314,648 1,508,468 1,473,958 1,435,463

Operating Grants and Contributions 219,079 244,468 124,881 133,223

Capital Grants and Contributions 1.334,933 1,004,624 986,411 1,862,895

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues 10,441,814 11,634,238 5,966,099 7,635,959

Total Government Program Revenues $ 58,291,893 s 84,645,778 s 46,873,701 S 48,227,502

Net (Expense) I Revenue

Govenrmental Activities $ (76,836,607) $ (55,081,501 ) $ (104,004,339) $ (107,150,583)
Business-Type Activities (2,462,580) (1,425,137) (669,297) 735,099

Total Government Net (Expense) I Revenue $ (79.299.187) s (56,506,638) $ (104,673,636) $ (106,415,484)

• - Trend data is only available for the last 8 fiscal years due to the implementation of GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003. Ten years of data will be accumulated over time.



Table 2

Sheet 6

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

LAST EIGHT'" FISCAL YEARS

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

Property Taxes $ 67.937,348 $ 55,867,689 S ·92,725,922 $ 91,394,021

Sales Taxes 4,647,027 25,531,506 30,440,867 28,257,192

Grants and contributions not restricted 7,719,639 9,621,104 10,353,360 9,638,402

Unrestricted investment earnings 4,179,902 4,701.846 3,728,745 4,093,395

Transfers In I (Out) 1,863,867 (250,000)

Miscellaneous 2,838,808 9,342.263 2,758,685 3,352,570

Total Govenrrnental Activities 87,322,724 106,928.275 140,007,579 136,485,580

Business- Type Activities
I

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted'"'"-...I Unrestricted Investments Earnings 174,319 66,760 59,803 46,779
•

Transfers In J (Out) (1,863,867) 250,000

Miscellaneous 4,320 270 9,354

Total Business-Type Activities 178,639 (1,776.837) 69,157 298,779

Total Government S 87,501,363 $ 105,151.438 $ 140,076,736 $ 136,784.359

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities $ 35,403,937 s 51,846,774 $ 36,003,240 $ 29,339,457

Business-Type Activities (1,010,79B) (1,338,107) (600,140) 1.034,356

Total Government Changes in Net Assets $ 34,393,139 $ 50,508,667 $ 35,403,100 S 30.373,813

.. - Trend data is only available for the last 8 fiscal years due to the implementation of GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003. Ten years of data will be accumulated over time.
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Reserved
Unreserved

Tolal General Fund

AU Other Governmental Funds

Reserved
Unreserved, Reported In:

Special revenue funds

TotalAllOtherGovemmental Funds

TotalAllGovemmental Funds

Table3
Sheet 1

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FY 2001 FY2002 FY2003 FY2004 FY 2005

$ 1,096,656 $ 1,077,382 S 1,280,763 $ 712,741 $ 974,741

9,849,453 5,658,492 2,767,765 4.437,859 10,820,609

$ 10,946,109 S 6,735.874 s 4,048,528 $ 5,150,600 $ 11,795,350

s 22,762,235 s 28,423,278 $ 86,071,043 $ 53,408,733 $ 53,944,086

17,074,992 19,009,413 14,395,742 13.366,140 15.792,363

s 39,837,227 $ 47,432,691 $ 100,466,785 $ 66,774,873 s 69.1 36.449

$ 50.183,336 $ 54,168,565 $ 104,515,313 $ 71,925,473 $ 81,531,799



GeneralFund

Reserved

Unreserved

Total General Fund

An Olher Governmen1al Funds

Reserved

Unreserved. Reported In:

Special revenue funds

Tolal AUOlher Govemmental Funds

Total All Governmental Funds

Table 3

Shccl2
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

FUND BALANCeS GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LASTTEN FlSCAl YEARS

FY2006 FY2007 FY2000 FY2009 FY2010

$ 1,324.226 s 2.088,746 S 827,243 S 2,168,732 S 2.023,487
19,043.267 19.553,774 18,929,748 18.771,412 16.217,306

S 20.367,493 S 21.642,520 S 19.756,991 $ 20,940.144 S 18.240,793

S 60,052,751 S 60,620.111 S 103,005,448 S 137.996.015 S 140.360.312

17,157.060 26.369.167 32.852.969 34,484,171

s 77.209.811 S 86.989.278 S 135.858.417 S 172.480,192 S 140,360.312

S 97,577.304 $ 108.631.798 S 155,615,408 s 193,420.336 S 158.601.105



Table 4

Sheet 1

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FY 2001 FY2002 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2005

Revenues

Property Taxes $ 42,395,824 s 43.208,104 $ 48,464,482 $ 54,454,188 $ 65,483,466

Licenses and Permits 1,882,455 2,645,795 5,976,258 5,919,147 8,462,749

Intergovernmental 17,203,389 14,379,402 14.677,923 20,564,296 22.138,156

Charges for Services 10,388,179 10,099,626 12.079,962 12,497,195 15,458,622

Fines and Fotfeilures 1,041.462 1,159,667 1,015.447 1,217.071 1,111,798

Interest 2,135,746 1.556.884 1,709.644 1.000.454 1.627.652

SeI1lsments

Miscellaneous 381.740 343.237 606,578 641.994 4.339,915

Total Revenues 75,428,795 73.392.716 84.530,294 96,300.345 118.622,368

Expenditures

General Government 18,274,555 17.529,813 20,982,726 22,302,782 24,944,004

Public Safety 22,497,160 26,935,280 28,612,042 30,331,140 32,348,721

Public Works 11,233,445 12,113,947 11,199,052 17,476,169 17,833,904
, Public Health 6,081,552 6,184,154 6,364.701 6.717.971 7,131,096

""w Public Wealth 956,584 1,035,818 927,958 1,054.705 948,468
0

Cultural and Recreation 5,232,276 5,503,690 6,290.212 6,536,270 7,082,111

Deb1 Setvice-Prineipal 13,640,000 27,995,000 5,290.000 20,040,000 5,285,000

Deb1Service-Interest and Fees 2,035,489 2,548.739 4.086,293 5,909,905 7.100.535

Capital Projects 12,427.840 22.261.046 23,330,377 42.201,243 36,842.203

Total Expenditures 92.378.901 122,107,487 107.083,361 152.570,185 139.516.042

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (16,950,106) (48,714.771) (22,553,067) (56,269,840) (20,893,674)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of Bonds 30,000,000 52.100,000 65,500,000 23,680,000 30,500.000

Debt Service-Principal- Refinancing of BANs

Bond Premiums

Transfers In 3,091,441 3.931,160 14.828,793 13.319,300 8.916,943
Transfers Out (3.091,441 ) (3.931.160) (14,828,793) (13,319,300) (8,916.943)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 30.000.000 52,100.000 65.500.000 23,680.000 30,500,000

Net Change in Fund Balanee s 13,049,894 S 3,385.229 S 42.946.933 S (32,589,840) S 9.606.326

Debt Service as a Percentage of Noncapital Expenditures 19.6% 30.6% 11.2% 23.5% 12.1%



Table 4

Sheet 2

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FY2006 FY2007 FY2008 FY2009 FY 2010

Revenues

Property Taxes S 68,227.384 S 72,842.999 $ 80,919.392 $ 92,251,291 $ 91.228.738
Licenses and Permits 14,256,278 15,282.447 15,244,516 8.269,425 8.024.048
Intergovernmental 20,228,052 23,267.197 51,219.551 53.065.121 48.903,105

Charges for Setllices 17,505,824 15,576.292 14,880.644 14.533,541 15.672,535

Fines and Forfeitures 1,171.063 1,443,782 1.287,933 1.354.535 1,483.0n

Interest 2,823,419 3,999,618 4.701,846 3.728.745 1.175,420

Settlements 6.503.786
MisceOaneous 1,441.311 2,912.367 3,091.560 2.932,325 3,352,568

Total Revenues 125,653.331 135,324,702 177.849,228 176.154.983 169.839.491

Expenditures

General Government 19.888,965 21.723,657 24.281,947 26,138.110 26,791.534

Public Safety 34,439,442 38,169,617 42.629,557 45.642,410 42,542,591

Public Works 19,210,085 19.254,211 19.505,060 17.298.711 15,414,631
I PubticHealth 7,703,359 8.808,346 9.648,711 12.170,658 12,045,705

N
~ PUblic WeaRh 1,213,994 1,340,276 1.552,651 1.456,197 1,823,166.....
I CUl1ural and Recreation 7,729,719 8,714,649 9.364,666 13.980.694 13,734,989

Debt Service-Principal 5,665,000 31.830.000 7.615.000 25.395,000 7,565,000

Debt Service-Interest and Fees 7,870,542 9.339.579 10.119,245 11.039.289 10,926,464

Capitol Projects 30,886,720 35,382.016 51,042.649 38.983.986 76,482,615

Total Expenditures 134.607.826 174,562.351 175.759,486 192.105.055 207,326,697

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (8,954,495) (39,237.649) 2.089,742 (15.950.072) (37,487,206)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of Bonds 25,000,000 47.680.193 43.030,000 53.755.000 48,755,000

Debt Setlliee-Principal- Refinancing of BANs (48,755.000)

Bond Premiums 2,917,975

Transfers In 11.231,560 10.350.964 18.842,778 17,631.847 19,413,742

Transfers Out (11,231.560) (10.350.964) (16.978,911) (17.631,847) (19.663.742)

Tolal Olher Financing Sources (Uses) 25,000.000 47,680.193 44,893,867 53.755,000 2,667.975

Net Change in Fund Balance S 16,045.505 s 8.442.544 S 46.983,609 s 37.604,928 S (34.619.231)

Debt Service as a Percentage of Noncapital Expenditures 13.0% 29.6% 14.2% 23.8% 14.1%



Fiscal

Year
Assessed

Value

Real Property

Market

Vatue

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ASSESSED VALUE AND MARKET VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Personal Property

Assessed Market

Value Value

Totals

Assessed

Value

Market

Value

Total Direct

Tax Rate

TableS

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

621,274,881 12,059,025,117 5.15% 174,822,349 1.732,629,822 10.09%

708,384.471 14,171.046,525 5.00% 148.572,971 1,490.798,424 9.97%

712,511,246 14,219,019,560 5.01% 170,011,192 1,719,021,153 9.89%

740,613,636 15,649,673,497 4.73% 184,242,061 1,897,765.656 9.71%

1,354,125.807 27,588,978,918 4.91% 184,286,675 1.911,616.663 9.64%

1,342,243,568 27,504,991,147 4.88% 162.980,756 2.029,648,269 8.03%

1,397,740.562 31,569,997,800 4.43% 184,669,523 2.419,677,833 7.63%

1,452,621.579 32,753,008,310 4.44% 207,538.743 2.626,086.500 7.90%

1,551,233,656 32,339,226,541 4.80% 243,531.884 2.212,126.019 11.01%

1,720,365.297 45,978,771,345 3.74% 234,553,487 2.691,291.572 8.72%

796,097,230

856.957,442

~2,522,438

924,855,697

1,538,412,482

1,505,224,324

1.582,410,085

1,660.160,322

1,794.765,540

1,954.918,784

13,791,654,939

15,661,844,949

15,938,040,713

17,547,439,153

29,500,595,581

29,534,639,416

33,989,675,633

35,379.094,810

34,551.352,560

48,670,062,917

52.1

50.6

54.0

58.0

44.1

45.1

44.6

47.4

51.90

45.98

Source: BeaufortCounty Auditor



Table 6

BEAUFORTCOUNTY,SOUTHCAROLINA

PROPERTYTAX MILLAGES-ALL OVERLAPPINGGOVERNMENTS

LASTTEN FISCAL YEARS

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

County·Wide Levies

County-Operations 36.0 35.2 40.1 42,9 32.7 33.7 36.7 38.9 45.50 40.21

County-Debt Service 7.2 7.2 7.2 7,2 5.4 5.4 5.4 5.8 4.00 3.62

County-Solid WasleJRecycline 6.9 6.2 4.7 5,9 4.5 4.5

County-Purchase of RealProperty Program 2.0 2.0 2.0 2,0 1.5 1.5 2.5 2.7 2.40 2.13

Total DirectTax Rate 52.1 50.6 54.0 58,0 44.1 45.1 44.6 47.4 51.90 45.96

SChoo/-Operalions 96.7 97.6 107.0 108,2 75.2 rts 91.7 97.3 102.60 90.26

SChool-Operalions SUrcharge 2.9

School-DebtService 23.1 22.2 22.2 22.2 19.0 19.0 17.0 22.6 28,00 24.43

IndigentHealth Care 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

ContinUing Educalion 4.0 4.0 4.0 4,0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0

MuniOoal levies
I

N Cityof Beaufort 68.4 68.4 73.4 73.4 55.8 55,8 52.8 52.8 52.80 60.62
W
W Townof Port Royal 85.0 85.0 85.0 85.0 85.0 78.0 74.0 74.0 74.00 69.00

Townof Bluffton 49.0 49.0 49.0 49.0 42.0 42.0 42.0 40.0 40.00 3800

Town of Hilton Head 30.5 31.0 31.0 31,0 22.3 19,0 19.0 19.0 19.36 18.54

Townof Yemassee 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.00 70.00

Fire levies

BurtonFire-Operalions 48.5 49.5 57.9 61.9 49.6 51.9 51.9 55.1 58.10 55.87

BurtonFire.DebtService 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 4.6 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.00 5.53

BlufftonFire-Operation 20.5 21.5 22.5 25.5 17.9 19,5 20.3 21.1 22.30 19.67

BlufftonFire-DebtService 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 0.40 0.37

DaufuskieIslandFire-Operations 40.5 40.5 42.5 47.5 27.9 29.7 29.7 31.5 33.20 30.11

DaufuskieIslandFire-Debt Service 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.50 2.23

lady'S Island/SI. Helena-Operations 25.7 26.7 31.9 35.1 27.1 28,9 28.9 30.7 32.40 30.39

lady'S Island/SI Helena·Debt Service 2.1 2.1 21 35 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.7 1.70 1.50

SheldonFire-Operations 30.6 32.6 37.0 39.9 29.6 34,9 34.9 37.0 37.50 32.09

SheldonFire-DebtServices 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.3 2,5 2.5 2.5 2.50 2.14

Source:BeaufortCountyAudilor



Table7
BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

PROPERTY TAXLEVIES ANDCOLLECTIONS
LASTTEN FISCAL YEARS

Total
Current Percent Collections in Collections

Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Subsequent As Percent
Year levy (1) Collections Collected Years(2) of Levy

2001 41.934,211 39,267.259 93.6% 2.666.952 100.0%

2002 43,559.515 40,870.579 93.8% 2.337.525 99.2%

2003 47.656.212 45.147.129 94.7% 2.509.083 100.0%

2004 53.641.630 50.203.062 93.6% 3.137.823 99.4%

2005 63.554.010 60.416.187 95.1% 3.137.823 100.0%

2006 66.885.604 62.744.316 93.8% 3.426.155 98.9%

2007 70.512.827 63.986.885 90.7% 3.594.507 95.8%

2008 76.299.793 73.731.373 96.6% 1.567.241 98.7%

2009 91.507,440 82,472,648 90.1% 2.931.468 93.3%

2010 82,788.187 79.374.355 95.9% 95.9%

(1) -IncludesCounty operations andmaintenance levy.purchase of realproperty program levy.solid wasteandrecycling program

levy.anddebtservice levy.

(2) - Includes collections of penalties as established by statestatues.

Source: Beaufort County Treasurer
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Taxpayer

MarriottResort

SouthCarolina Electric&Gas

Palmetto Electric

Columbia Properties HiltonHead

SCGHillon HeadPropertyLLC

Bluffton Telephone Company

Sea PinesResortLLC

Greenwood Development Corp

HargrayTelephone Company

Hargray. Inc

Westin HiltonHeadLimited

DunesHotelAssociates

MelroseGroup

HolidayInnBV

Source: Beaufort CountyTreasurer

Table 8

BEAUFORTCOUNTY. SOUTHCAROLINA

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

CURRENTYEARAND NINE YEARSAGO

2010 Fiscal Year 2001 Fiscal Year

Percentage Percentage

Total of Tolal Total ofTotal
Taxes Paid Rank TaxesLevied Taxes Paid Rank Taxes Levied

3.731,409 1 4.5% 2.285.898 1 5.5%

3,351.877 2 4.0% 2.046,428 2 4.9%

1.861,416 3 2.2% 1,155.246 3 2.8%

881.867 4 1.1% N/A N/A N/A

870.360 5 1.1% NfA NfA NfA

630.603 6 0.8% NfA N/A N/A

588.569 7 0.7% 428,066 8 1.0%

576.958 8 0.7% 1,015,770 5 2.4%
495,017 9 0.6% 1.081.328 4 2.6%

366.021 10 0.4% N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A N/A 729,828 6 1.7%

N/A N/A NfA 606.715 7 1.4%

N/A N/A N/A 315.365 9 0.8%

N/A NfA WA 312.600 10 0.7%

13,354.097 16.1% 9.977,244 23.8%
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Ratio of Net Net

Fiscal Estimated Assessed Obligation less:Oebt Net County Debt to County Debt

Year Population (1) Value Bonds Service Funds County Debt Assessed Value Per Capita

2001 122,080 796,097.230 56.685.000 1,625,423 55,059.577 6.92% 451

2002 124,799 856,957,442 80.790.000 1,199,156 79,590,844 9.29% 638

2003 128,559 882,522,438 86.000,000 241,939 85,758,061 9.72% 667

2004 130,993 924,855,697 80,960,000 84,747 80,875,253 8.74% 617

2005 134,910 1.538,412,482 106,175,000 874,355 105,300,645 6.84% 781

2006 139,333 1,505.224.324 100,645,000 1,283,952 99.361.048 6.60% 713

2007 143,614 1,582,410,085 141,670,000 1,091,840 140.578,160 8.88% 979

2008 147,316 1.660,160,322 177,515,000 21,807.616 155,707,384 9.38% 1,057

2009 150,415 1,794,765,540 159,305,000 4,361.432 154,943,568 8.63% 1,030

2010 155.215 1.954,918,784 201,355,000 7,107.378 194.247,622 9.94% 1,251
1

I'\J
(.oJ
(J) (1) - Source: U.S. Census Bureau
•

Table 9



BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

JUNE 30, 2010

Assessed Value - 2009 Tax Year (Fiscal Year 2010)

Constitutional Debt Limit

Outstanding Subject to Debt Limit

Legal Debt Limit Remaining Without a Referendum

Table 10

S 1,954,918,784

x8%

156,393,503

96,733.089

S 59.660.414

Total Outstanding General Obligation Debt

Less General Obligation Debllssued Under Referendum

Less General Obligation Debllssued Paid by Other Sources

Total Outstanding Debt Subject to Debt Limit

-237 -

S 201,355,000

(72,519,950)

(32.101.961 )

$ 96,733.089



Table 11
BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

LEGALDEBTMARGIN DETAIL

LASTTEN FISCALYEARS

Total Net Debt
Applicable to

Total Net Debt Legal the Limit as a
Fiscal Debt Applicable to Debt Percentage of
. Year Limit Debt Limit Margin Debt Limit

2001 63,687,778 46,685,000 17,002,778 73.3%

2002 68,556,595 56,070,000 12,486,595 81.8%

2003 70,601,795 61,660,000 8,941,795 87.3%
2004 73,988,455 57,397,353 16,591,102 77.6%
2005 123,072,999 63,429,118 59,643,881 51.5%

2006 120,417,946 58,760,294 61,657,652 48.8%
2007 126,890,994 70,887,603 56,003,391 55.9%

2008 132,812,826 88,104,325 44,708,501 66.3%

2009 143,581,243 106,425,458 37,155,785 74.1%

2010 156,393,503 96,733,089 59,660,414 61.9%
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Table 12

BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Business-Type

Governmental Aetivities Activities

Total

TIF Total Primary

General Revenue Primary Per Capita Estimated Percentage of Government

Fiscal Estimated Obligotion Bonds Capital Note Government Personal Total Personal Total Debt

Year Population (1) Bonds and BANs leases Payable Debt Income (1) Income (2) Personal Income Per Capita

2001 122,080 56.685.000 160,931 1,325,000 58,170,931 32,437 3.959,908.960 1.47% 476

2002 124,799 80.790.000 108,518 1,186,739 82,085,257 34,213 4.269,748.187 1.92% 658

2003 128,559 86.000.000 55,000,000 57,352 1.041,427 142,098,779 33.817 4,347,419,703 3.27% 1,105

2004 130,993 80.960.000 63,680,000 325,300 888,703 145,854,003 34,643 4,537,990.499 3.21% 1,113

2005 134,910 106.175.000 63.680,000 298.150 128,191 170,881,341 37,474 5.055,617.340 3.38% 1,267

2006 139,333 100.645.000 88,545,000 269,926 559,493 190,019,419 39,840 5.551,026.720 3.42% 1,364

2007 143,614 141.670,000 63,190,000 240,588 382,191 205,482,779 43,183 6.201,683.362 3.31% 1.431

2008 147,316 177.515.000 62,760,000 210,091 1,762.774 242,247,865 45,427 6.692,123.932 3.62% Ui44

2009 150.415 159.305.000 109,330,000 178,390 1,723,652 270,537,042 46,790 7,037,917,850 3.84% 1,799

2010 155.215 201.355.000 59.715.000 1,682.537 262,752.537 31.081 4.824,237,415 5.45% 1,693
I.....,
w
CO (1). Source: U.S. Census Bureau

(2) • Calallated by multiplying the estimated population by the per capita income.



Table 13

BEAUFORT COUNTY. SOUTH CAROLINA

PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

New River Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Bonds

Fiscal

Year Collections• Principal Interest Total Coverage

2001 N/A

2002 N/A

2003 269,601 N/A

2004 868,974 1,989,882 1,989,882 0,4

2005 2,263,809 1,989,882 1,989,882 1.1

2006 3.282,894 1,989.882 1,989,882 1.6

2007 5,218,464 200,000 3,283,263 3,483,263 1.5

2008 6,749,228 250,000 1,983,883 2,233,883 3.0

2009 7,189,830 310,000 1,976,382 2,286,382 3.1

2010 7,337,824 580,000 1,966,463 2,546,463 2.9

rl>
Bluffton (County-Owned) Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Bonds.::..

0
Fiscal Total Committed Total

Year Collections· Impact Fees Revenue Principal Interest Debt Service Coverage

2001 2,427 2,427 N/A

2002 32,625 32,625 N/A

2003 87,973 87,973 N/A

2004 143,207 5.712.048 5,855,255 N/A

2005 302.266 2.328,429 2,630,695 1,141,080 1,141,080 2.3

2006 321.563 2.091.573 2,413,136 135,000 1,141,080 1,276,080 1.9

2007 346.528 2,409,275 2,755,803 155,000 1,138,380 1,293,380 2.1

2008 438,793 3,216,927 3,655,720 180,000 1,134,815 1,314,815 2.8

2009 447,015 938,804 1,385,819 1,875,000 1,116,420 2,991,420 0.5

2010 821,578 1,850,213 2,671.791 280,000 1,040,100 1,320,100 2.0

• - These collections represent the reconciled TIF revenues of the 2009 fiscal year TIF reconciliation. The TIF revenues are pledged to pay the

related bonds that funded the TIF projects for the New River and Bluffton (County-Owned) TIFs.



BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

JUNE 30, 2010

Table 14

Percentage

Applicable Amount

Gross to Beaufort Applicable to

Debt Outstanding County Beaufort County

Beaufort County School District S 407,140,000 100% s 407,140,000

Town of Bluffton 12,895,000 100% 12,895,000

Town of Hilton Head 71,850,000 100% 71,850,000

Town of Port Royal 1,698,961 100% 1,698,961

City of Beaufort 18,272,816 100% 18,272,816

Broad Creek Public Service District 8,330,163 100% 8,330,163

Fripp Island Public Service District 10,199,923 100% 10,199,923

Hilton Head No.1 Public Service District 52,802,924 100% 52,802,924

Bluffton Fire District 521,373 100% 521,373

Burton Fire District 2,064,831 100% 2,064,831

Lady's Island/St. Helena Island Fire District 1,302,477 100% 1,302,477

Sheldon Fire District 535,419 100% 535,419

Subtotal of Overlapping Debt 587,613,887 587,613,887

Beaufort County Direct Debt 261,070,000

Total of Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 848.683,887

Note: As all of this debt is within Beaufort County, the percentage of applicable debt to the County is 100%.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Per Capita Estimated

Fiscal Estimated Personal Personal Unemployment Unemployment

Year Population (1) Income (1) Income Margin Rate (2)

2001 122,080 32,437 3,959,908,960 89,643 1.2%

2002 124,799 34,213 4,269,748,187 90,586 1.4%

2003 128,559 33,817 4,347,479,703 94,742 1.8%

2004 130,993 34,643 4,537,990,499 96,350 1.8%

2005 134,910 37,474 5,055,617,340 97,436 2.1%

2006 139,333 39,840 5,551,026,720 99,493 2.2%

2007 143,614 43,183 6,201,683,362 100,431 2.1%

2008 147,316 45,427 6,692,123,932 101,889 4.3%

2009 150,415 46,790 7,037,917,850 103,625 5.2%

2010 155,215 31,081 4,824,237,415 124,134 9.1%

(1) • Source: U.S. Census Bureau

(2) - Source: U.S. Department of Labor Bureau of labor and Statistics
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Employor

Departmentof Defense

BeaufortCountySchoolDistrict

BeaufortCounty

BeaufortMemorialHospital

MarinoCorp CommunitySeNices

HiltonHoad HealthSystem

Wal-Mart Stores

Care Core

CypressClub, Inc.

Marinors Inn

Sodoxho,Inc.

N/A • InformationNot Available

Source:BeaufortRegionalChamber of Commerce

Table 16

BEAUFORTCOUNTY,SOUTH CAROLINA

PRINCIPALEMPLOYERS

2010 2001

Percentage Percentage

of Tota! of Total

County County

Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

7,358 1 12,3% N/A N/A N/A

3,500 2 5.9% N/A N/A N/A
1,340 3 2.2% N/A N/A N/A

1,250 4 2.1% N/A N/A N/A

770 5 1,3% N/A N/A N/A

557 6 0,9% N/A N/A N/A

400 7 0.7% N/A N/A N/A
396 8 0.7% N/A N/A N/A

350 9 0.6% N/A N/A N/A

200 10 0.3% N/A N/A N/A

200 10 0.3% N/A N/A N/A
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Table 17

BEAUFORT COUNTY.SOUTHCAROLINA
FULL-TIMEEQUIVALENT EMPLOYEESBY FUNCTION

LASTTEN FISCALYEARS

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

General_Government 172 211 233 238 234 248 251 268 304 281

Eublic_Safetv 328 363 411 421 410 539 440 458 503 490

Eublic_Wo!'h 86 92 110 120 121 126 129 125 141 130

Public Health 15 16 23 24 24 25 24 27 28 24

PublicWelfare 73 85 91 99 100 113 114 122 128 121

Cullure & Recreation 116 143 160 129 158 165 166 159 109 93

Buslness-Twe Activities 13 30 31 36 36 43 41 50 60 54

Total Full-TimeEmployees 915 940 1.059 1.067 1.083 1.259 1.165 1.209 1.273 1.193

I
Source;BeaufortCountyEmployee Services

I\)
~
~



Tabla 18

BEAUfORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

General Government

Number of Parcels Owned N/A NIA N/A N/A NIA N/A NIA 199 202 219

Acreage of Counly-Owned land N/A N/A N/A NIA NfA N/A N/A 11.319 11.728 11,872

Miles of Paved (Maintained) Road 23 48 54 54 54 165 168 171 182 194

Miles of Unimproved Road 237 232 230 230 230 140 136 133 131 112

Total Miles of Road 260 280 284 284 284 305 304 304 313 306

Number of Vehieles N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 30 33 50

Public Safety

Number of Vehicles N/A N/A N/A NlA NJA N/A NlA 312 349 323

Public Wor1(s

Number of Vehicles N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A NJA N/A 90 86 93

K> Public Health
~ Number of Vehicles NlA N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A N/A 29 29 2501

I

Public Welfare

Number of Vehicles N/A N/A NlA N/A N/A NlA N/A 36 33 35

Cultural & Recreation

Tolal Acreage of Parks and leisure Service-Owned Land N/A NfA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 930 930 930

Number of Communily Centers N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 13 13 13

Number of Playgrounds N/A NlA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 19 19 19

Number of Football Fields N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 10 10 10

Number of Gymnasiums N/A N/A N/A N/A NlA N/A NlA 4 4 4
Number of Basketball Courts N/A N/A N/A NIA NlA NlA NlA 15 15 15

Number of Tennis Courts N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 21 21 21

Number of BaseballlSoftball Fields N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 34 34 34

Number of Soccer fields N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 23 23 23

Number of Passive Parks N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2 2 2

Number of Racquetball Courts N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2 2 2

Number of Fitness Centers N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 1 1

Number of Boat landings N/A N/A N/A N/A NlA N/A N/A 25 25 25

Number of Vehicles N/A N/A NlA NlA NlA NlA NlA 31 28 28

souree: Beaufort County



Table 19

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 __2009 2010
law EnforcementU)
Number 01Warrants 6,059 6,087 5,677 6,203 6,105 5,965 5,906 5,533 5,118 3,555
Number of Calls Responded to 96,595 97,155 130,473 157,973 194,834 206,513 235,339 242,320 286,489 304,634
Number 01Vehicle Moving Violations Citecf 11,153 10,726 12,759 14,046 17,089 15.281 20,551 22,273 75,180 18,248

Emergency Medical SeMoes I1l
Number of Calls Respondecf to 7,412 7,896 8,434 9,062 9,642 9,850 13,611 14,785 14,825 15,829

Fire OSOl1!1ments I1l
Number of Calls Responcfecfto - Beaufort Fire Department 2,393 2,632 2,344 2,795 3,224 2,770 2,786 2,850 2,926 2,917

Number of Calls Responcfecfto· Lady's Island Fire Department 1,725 1,954 1.889 2,137 2,189 2.325 2,234 2,099 2,133 2,152

Number of Calls Responcfacf10• Burton Fire Dep811m8n1 2,259 2,577 2,574 2,916 3,232 2,954 2,937 2,913 3,135 3,152

Number of calls Responcfed to· Sheldon Fire Department 689 772 672 725 818 734 688 693 686 663

Number of calls Responcfacfto • Fripp Island Fire Department 176 159 136 175 190 244 220 216 199 225

Number of Calls Responcfecfto - Blufllon Fire Department 2,434 2,649 2,939 3,308 3,654 4,106 4,367 4,705 4,934 5,157

TOlal Number 01Calls Responded to- All Fire Departmenls 9,676 10,743 10.554 12,056 13,307 13,133 13,232 13,476 14,013 14,266

Regislered Voters 121
Beaufort County NJA N/A N/A N/A NJA NIA N/A 90,887 91,619 94,143

State of Soulh Carolina NJA N/A N/A N/A NJA NJA N/A 2,553,923 2,543.914 2,584,503

I (1J•Source: Beaufort CountyI\)
~ (2) • Source: South Carolina Slate Election Commission
a>



Beaufort County

South Carolina

Photo by Gregg HUIl1

Kayakin g the waterways of Beau fort County puts you at eye level with Mother Nature just like

the Native Americans who once traveled area waters by canoe.



Beaufort County

South Caro lina

PlIO/a hy .Jack Crawford

The population o r visual arti sts in Bea ufort County has much to be thankful for with bea uty at

every outdoor glance. With wide ex panses of marshland. scenic wate rways, angel oaks d ripping

wit h 11105S and spectacular wildlife: painters arc never deprived of inspirat ion
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the YearEnded June30,2010

Direct Federal Grants:
U.S. Department of Transportation

Federal Aviation Administration
Airport Improvement Program

Lady'S Island Airport- #3-45-0008-10
Lady's Island Airport- #3-45-0008-11
Hilton Head Airport- #3-45-0030-27
Hilton Head Airport· #3-45-0030-28
Hilton HeadAirport. #3-45-0030-29
Hilton HeadAirport- TSA

U.S.Department of Energy
Officeof Energy Efficiency andRenewable

ARRA- Energy Efficiency and Conservation BlockGrant
DE-SC0002931

U.S.Department of Housing andUrbanDevelopment
Housing and Urban Development

Lowcountry Regional HOME Consortium
M09-DC450210

U.S.Department of the Interior
U.S.Geplogical Survey

U.S.Geological SurveyAssistance Award
08ERAG0049

U.S.Department of Justice
Officeof JusticePrograms

StateCriminal AlienAssistance Program
2009-AP-BX-0548

Federal Pass - Through Grants:
Federal Emergency Management Agency

Passed through the Officeof the SC AdjutantGeneral
LocalEmergency Management Performance Grant- 8EMPG01
LocalEmergency Management Performance Grant- 9EMPG01
LocalEmergency Management Performance Grant- 10EMPG01
Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness Grant· HMESC 8042160

Federal
CFDA

Number

20.106
20.106
20.106
20.106
20.106
20.106

81.128

14.239

15.808

16.606

97.042
97.042
97.042
20.703

Federal
Award

Expended

45,746
699,778

90,696
30,987

496,573
133,223

181,310

575,931

23,418

72,923

30,119
41,140
7,260

22,226

Homeland Security GrantsAdministration
Passed through SC LawEnforcement Division

Regional Medical Assistance Team I ChemicalOrdinance
Biological Radiological Attack- 8SHSP02

LowCountry Regional Medical AssistanceTeam-08SHSP03
LowCountry Regional Explosive Ordinance Disposal Team

Enhancement - 8SHSP04
Citizen CorpsProgram - 8CCP01

Passed through SC Department of NaturalResources
FloodMitigation Assistance Program- EMA-2007-FM-E0008
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97.067 15,000
97.067 9,540

97.067 135,000
97.067 4,453

97.029 8,578



U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through SC Department of Social Services

SummerFoodServices for Children· SF·133
SummerFoodServices for Children - SF-133

Passed through SC Forestry Commission
Urban andCommunity Forestry· UCF #2008U26

U.S. Department of Education
Passed through SC Department of Education I SouthCarolina StateLibrary

ARRA· StateFiscalStabilization Fund - H8701ARRA110

Institute of Museums and LibraryServices
Passedthrough SouthCarolina State Library

LibraryServices andTechnology Act - 110-09-09

U.S. Department of Healthand HumanServices
Passed through SC Department of Alcohol and Other DrugAbuseServices

Consolidated Contract· BEA·BG·10

Passed through SC Healthand HumanServicesFinanceCommission
Collaborator I Coordinator - MedicaidContract#A00545A

CDBG• State Administered Small Cities Program Cluster
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Passed through SC Department of Commerce
DaleWater Extension Phase II - 4-CI-09-001
ARRA- PublicFacilities EnergyEfficiency - 4-S-08-002

U.S. Department of Justice
Passedthrough SC Department of Public Safety

JAG· FY07 Act Edward ByrneMemorialJustice Assistance Grant
Program - 2007-DJ-BX-1415

JAG - FY 08 Act Edward ByrneMemorial JusticeAssistance Grant
Program: LocalSolicitation - 2008-DJ-BX-0523

JAG- FY 09 Act Edward ByrneMemorial JusticeAssistance Grant
Program: LocalSolicitation· 2009-DJ-BX-Q426

ARRA- JAG· FY 09 Recovery Act EdwardByrne Memorial JusticeAssistance
GrantProgram: LocalSolicitation- 2009-SB-B9-2517 (ARRA)

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passedthrough SC Department of Public Safety

MUlti-Agency Joint Enforcement Traffic Team· 2H09026

Passedthrough SC Department of Transportation
ARRA- Lowcountry Regional Transportation Authority- MT-01399-38

10.559
10.559

10.664

84.397

45.310

93.959

93.778

14.228
14.255

16.738

16.738

16.738

16.804

20.600

20.509

246,465
111,331

1,349

50,789

600

382,991

107,232

9.500
162,625

172,125

13,887

1,810

76,632

80.252

41.395

152,656

4.063,415

Note:The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awardsis presented on the modifiedaccrualbasis of accounting.
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(;) elliott davis

REPORT ON INTERNALCONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLI ANCE AND o rnER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FI NANCIAL STATEMENTS PfRFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENTAUDmNG STANDARDS

Beaufo rt County Council
Beaufort County
Beaufort. South carolina

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of the governmental activit ies, the business­
type activities, each major fund . and the aggregate remaining fund informat ion of Beaufort County,
South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collect ively comprise Beaufo rt County.
South Ca rolina's basic financial sta tements and have issued our report t he reon dated October 29, 2010.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audit s conta ined in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financi al Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Beaufort County 's internal cont rol over financial
report ing as a basis for designing our auditi ng procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Beaufort County's intern al control over financial repor ting. Accord ingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of Beaufort County's inte rnal control over financia l report ing.

A deficiency in Internal cont rol exists when the design or operatio n of a control does not allow
management or employees, In the normal course of perform ing t heir assigned function s, to prevent, or
detect or correct misstatements on a tim ely basis. A mmeriat weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in inte rnal cont rol such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the enti ty's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
ti mely basis.

Our consideration of internal cont rol over financial report ing was for the limited purpo se described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, signif icant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certai n deficiencies in Inte rnal cont rol
over financial report ing, described in the accompanying Schedu le of Findings and Quest ioned Costs that
we consider to be signifi cant deficiencies in internal cont rol over financial reporting as items 20 10·1,
20 10·2,2010-3. 201Q...4, 20 1Q.S and 20 10-6. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal cont rol that is less severe t han a material weakness. yet important enough to
merit atte ntion by those charged with governance.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Beaufort County's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instancesof noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under GovernmentAuditingStandards.

Beaufort County's responses t 0 findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit Beaufort County's responses and
accordingly, we expressno opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Beaufort County Council, management,
federal awarding agenciesand pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

~-tt b~, L.J-Co

Columbia, South Carolina
October 29, 2010
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(2) elliott davis

REPORT ON COM PLIANCEWITH REQUIREMENTSTHAT COULDHAVEA
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROLOVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Beaufort County Council

Beaufort County
Beaufort, South Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Beaufort County, South Carolina with the types of compliance
re quirements described in the United Stares Office of Managemenr and Budget (OMB) Circular A·133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and mat erial effect on each of Beaufort County' s majo r
Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. Beaufort County's major federal programs are
identified in t he Summary of Auditor's Result sectio n of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs. Compliance wi th the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major Federal programs is the responsibility of the Beaufort County's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Beaufort County's compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of comp liance in accordance with auditina standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A·133. Those
standards and OMB Circular A·133 requ ire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of comp liance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and materi al effect on a major Federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Beaufort County's compliance wi th those requirements
and performing such other procedu res as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on Beaufort County's complia nce with those requirements.

In our opinion, Beaufort County compli ed, in all material respects, wit h the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major Federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2010.
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Internal Control OverCompliance

Management of Beaufort County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
Federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Beaufort County's Internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
Federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A·133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Beaufort County's
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a Federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Beaufort County Council, management,
Federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Columbia, South carolina
October 29, 2010
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
. SCHEDULE OFFINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the year ended June 30, 2010

A. SUMMARY OFAUDIT RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified:

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses:

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted:

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness identified:

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses:

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with
Section 510(a) of Circular A-133:

1. The programs tested as major programs were:

Summer Food Servicesfor Children

Home Investment Partnership Program

Community Development Block Grant
Recovery Program

Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment
of Substance Abuse

Unqualified

None reported

Yes, six

No

None reported

None reported

Unqualified

No

10.559

14.239

14.255

93.959

2. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

3. Beaufort County, South Carolina qualified as a high risk auditee.
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BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OFFINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the year ended June 30, 2010

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

Item 2010 - 1: Disbursements from the Treasurer's Office

The Treasurer is the only one authorized to sign checks issued from the Treasurer's office. Since
many checks are issued from this office, a signature stamp is maintained so each check does not
have to be physically signed. As a result of our audit procedures related to disbursements from this
office, we noted that four employees other than the Treasurer have access to this stamp; hence
giving them the ability to issue checks without obtaining proper approval from the Treasurer. To
further support the lack of an approval process, we noted that employee expense reimbursements
were made without approval from the Treasurer. In addition to noting that too many employees
had access to the Treasurer's signature stamp, we observed blank checksbeing left unattended on a
supervisor's desk whil'e the supervisor was not in the office. These conditions increase the risk of
there being unauthorized expenditures made at the Treasurer's office.

We recommend that the Treasurer's office change its disbursement policies and begin issuing
checksthrough the accounts payable system used by the Finance department.

Management Response: The Treasurer's office has not responded to this finding as of the date of
this report.

Item 2010 - 2: Agency Reimbursements

Agencies other than municipalities are not required to submit documentation to the Treasurer's
office when requesting reimbursements. This condition increases the risk of agencies collecting
monies that they are not entitled to.

We recommend that all agencies other than municipalities be required to submit documentation
supporting the amounts requested for reimbursement.

Management Response: The Treasurer's office has not responded to this finding as of the date of
this report.

Item 2010 - 3: Missing Disbursement Populations at the Treasurer's Office

A complete population of disbursements issued at the Treasurer's office was not provided upon our
request. When we requested a population of disbursements to make testing selections from, we
were only provided one of three populations. The Treasurer's office issues disbursements from its
main operating account, tax surplus account and also prints checks from QuickBooks. However, we
were only provided the population for the disbursements made from the main operating account.
After further inquiry, we obtained the other two populations. This condition increases the risk that
the Treasurer's office is withholding information necessaryto complete the audit.

We recommend that the Treasurer's office provide all audit requests as they are necessary for the
audit to be completed.
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Management Response: The Treasurer's office has not responded to this finding as of the date of
this report.

Item 2010 - 4: Supporting Documentation and Authorization for Journal Entries

Supporting documentation for journal entries initiated in the Treasurer's office was not consistently
maintained. As a result, there is not adequate documentation that these journal entries were
properly authorized and reviewed for accuracy. This condition increasesthe risk that journal entries
that are erroneous or for an unauthorized purpose could be recorded in the County's general ledger
and not be detected.

We recommend that the Treasurer's office implement a policy in which documentation is
maintained to indicate that journal entries are approved and reviewed for accuracy by authorized
personnel other than the individual who initiated and/or recorded the journal entry in the general
ledger.

Management Response: The Treasurer's office has not responded to this finding as of the date of
this report.

Item 2010 - 5: Lackof Segregation of Duties at the Hilton Head Island Airport

During fiscal year 2010, we noted that there was a lack of segregation of duties related to receipting
cash and preparing the bank deposits. This lack of segregation of duties subjects the County to
increased risk of material misstatement within its financial statements as there is little or no
oversight over the Hilton Head Island Airport Accountant's work.

Responsibilities should be assigned within the Finance Department and the Hilton Head Island
Airport to allow for sufficient oversight and review of an individual's work, particularly in key areas
such as receipting cash and preparing bank deposits.

Management Response: The County will correct this control deficiency in fiscal year 2011 by adding
more employees to this process to better separate these duties. The County's Finance department
will take full control of the accounting functions of both airports, which was a separate function of
the airports during fiscal year 2010.

Item 2010 - 6: Supporting Documentation for Special Assessment Ratio

Supporting documentation for real property assessment ratio changes from six percent to four
percent was not consistently maintained at the Assessor's office. As a result, there is not adequate
documentation that these changes were properly authorized and reviewed for accuracy. This
condition increases the risk that properties are assessed at the incorrect ratio and property tax
revenues are understated.

We recommend that the Assessor's office implement a policy in which documentation is maintained
to indicate that changes in assessment ratios are approved and reviewed for accuracy by authorized
personnel.
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Management Response: There are four percent residential property records in the Assessor's office
that have no supporting documentation. This is related to in-office procedures of the past and the
lack of archiving records. Currently, the approval of a four percent residential assessment ratio must
have a completed and signed application, including supporting documentation that evidences the
applicant taxpayer's claim of legal residency. Documentation includes copies of vehicle
registration(s), driver's license, a state of South Carolina identification card, the latest filed state of
South carolina income tax return and other proof as may be required by the County Assessor. All
documentation is currently archived and these requirements are posted in the lobbies of the
Assessor's office. Another exception may be related to the software conversion project performed
in 2008, wherein data was reconfigured incorrectly or misapplication by staff of the expiration date
on valuation modifiers.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESnONED COSTS - MAJORFEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

NONE REPORTED
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Beaufort County

So uth Carolina

N Ullo hi ' Patti Gosdin

111c nels of shrimp boats look like ange l wings when they spread out in the water aga inst the

rising sun. Depending UpO Il when: you arc in Beaufort County. you can watch the sun go up

above the water in the morning and watch it go 00\\11 into the water in the evening.



Beaufort County

South Ca rolina

Photo hy .\ 'Iacey IJr{/d~/UJ\I'

Beaufort County loves its Marines and Sailors. Three local installat ions include a Marine Corps

Air Station. the historic Parr is Island Marine Corps Recruit Depot and a Naval Hospi tal. The

local population is closely connected with the military . which pumps S1.5 billion into the

County 's econom y each year. ~bny service members choose to remain here after retireme nt

because ofthe natural outdoor beauty. warm climate. low taxes. and friendly population.




